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Vision & cflission

Uwsion

“To develop Kamarajar Port as a mega port with world class facilities to become the
Eastern gateway Port of India.”

NMission

"To Provide Port Services of International Standards."
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Chairman’s Message

Py

=

Dear Shareholders,

Itis a pleasure to welcome you all to the 21t Annual
General Meeting of your Company. Financial
year 2020-21 has been very challenging for your
Company and its Stakeholders/Clients. COVID-19
pandemic which has affected every country,
business and individual has also impacted the
performance of your Company.

Physical Performance & Highlights

During the year 2020-21, the Company handled
cargo throughput of 25.89 million tonnes, 18.46%
lesser as against 31.75 million tonnes handled
during the previous year 2019-20. Though overall
the cargo through put has come down, many
milestones have been achieved as under:

e Containers handled during the year were
53.32% higher than previous year.

e Avg. Total Turn Round Time (calculated from
Pilot Boarding to De-boarding) of 42.97 hours
was achieved as against the Ministry target of
43 hours.

Your Port handled the Largest Ever Container
Transhipment Vessel and the largest LNG vessel
to have been handled/ berthed in East Coast of
India.

7" Trade Meet was organised in association with
Madras Chamber of Commerce & Industry to
create awareness of the project facilities available
at your Port for attracting new customers and
also to get suggestions from Stakeholders/Trade
to improve Port services.

Long Term Agreements have been executed
with M/s.Daimler India Commercial Vehicles
Pvt. Ltd. and M/s.Isuzu Motors India Pvt. Ltd for
export of automobiles.

During the MIS 2021, your Company has signed
14 MoUs with potential investors/ developers
for port projects mainly related to dredging,
expansion of rail connectivity, technology
transfer, creating new rail connectivity
for liquid/POL cargo evacuation, etc. The
investment commitments from these MoUs are
worth around Rs.2,695 Crores. The above MoUs
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will give a further fillip to the overall growth and
efficiencyimprovementofyour Company, which
in turn would provide enhanced development
opportunities for all the stakeholders.

Financial Performance

During the year under review, your Company
registered an operating income of Rs.581.09
Crores as against Rs.703.18 Crores reported in
the previous year mainly due to handling lower
cargo throughput. Consequently, a lower Profit
Before Tax (PBT) and Profit After Tax (PAT) of
Rs.295.84 Crores and Rs.152.71 Crores respectively
were reported during the year under review.

Dividend

Board of Directors have recommended dividend @
50% on paid up equity share capital which is Rs.5/-
per share for the financial year 2020-21 which will
be paid, subject to your approval at the Annual
General Meeting.

Corporate Governance

Your Company believes that Corporate Governance
is not merely compliance check point but a

framework designed to inspire confidence in the
Board and the external stakeholders with respect
to the Company’s business. Hence, a Report on
Corporate Governance is attached to the Board’s
Report voluntarily.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Your Company as a responsible Corporate citizen
has undertaken projects in line with adopted CSR
Policy and requirement of the Companies Act, 2013,
the details of which are available in the Annual
report.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
place on record our gratitude for the continued support
and guidance received from various stakeholders and
take this opportunity also to thank our employees
who had shown great resilience during the pandemic.
| wish to place on record my sincere appreciation to
all my colleagues on the Board for their invaluable
contribution in fulfilling the responsibilities of Board
and strengthening the Company. Last but not the least,
| seek your continued support and patronage to take
our Company to greater heights.

Regards,

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999GO01043322
Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3 Floor, Jawahar Building,
17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.
Phone: 044 - 25251666 -70 Fax No: 044 - 25251665.
Website: www.kamarajarport.in, Email: info@kplmail.in

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 21 Annual General
Meeting of Members of Kamarajar Port Limited will
be held on Friday the 24" day of September 2021 at
12:30 PM. (IST) through two way Video Conferencing
(VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the
Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year
ended 315 March 2021 and the reports of the
Board of Directors, the Auditor’s Report and
Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Section 143 (6) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

Place : Chennai
Date : 07.09.2021

NOTES:

a) Inview of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its
circulardated January 13,2021 read with circulars
dated May 05, 2020, April 13, 2020 and April 08,
2020 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)
permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing
(VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), without
the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue till 31.12.2021. Those wishing
to participate through VC or OAVM may do so in
person. Proxy cannot participate in the meeting
through VC or OAVM. Hence, Proxy Form,
Attendance Slip, Route Map are not annexed to
the Notice. Members participating through VC

2. To declare Dividend on equity shares for the
financial year 2020-21.

3. Toappoint a Director in place of Shri Sadagopan
Kumar Balajiarun (DIN:07526368) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

4, To pass with or without modification, the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for
payment of remuneration to Statutory Auditors:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, approval be and is hereby given
to the Board of Directors for fixing the remuneration
of the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to be
appointed by Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the financial year 2021-22"

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Jayalakshmi Srinivasan
Company Secretary

or OAVM may cast their votes on the resolutions
during the meeting by show of hands or only by
sending emails through their email addresses
registered with the Company in case of a Poll. The
said emails shall only be sent to the designated
email address circulated by the Company.

b) Corporate members intending to authorize their
representatives to participate and vote at the
meeting are requested to send a certified copy
of the Board resolution/such other documents
authorizing their representative to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote.

¢) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM
mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting by following
the procedure mentioned in the Notice.
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Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

f) Brief

Depository Participant.

Resume of the Director seeking
appointment at this Annual General Meeting is

d) Statutory Registers as stipulated
Companies Act, 2013 will be
electronically/ kept open for

during the AGM. Members seeking to inspect
send an email to

such documents can
agm-shareholders@kplmail.in.

e) Members are requested to notify immediately
any change of address to their respective

in the attached hereto and forms part of the Notice.
available Instructions for attending the AGM through VC:
inspection

1. Weblink and log-in credentials for attending
AGM through VC/OAVM will be provided in the
e-mail forwarding the Notice and Annual Report.

2. Members can join Video Conference either
through Mobile/Laptop/Desktop.

Brief Resume of Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar is as under:-

Particulars

Details

Date of Birth and Age

05.06.1971; 50 Years

Educational & Professional Qualification

B.Law

Business Occupation

Deputy Chairman, Chennai Port Trust

Experience

Indian Railway Traffic Service Officer of 1997 batch (L.R.T.S). He
worked in Southern Railways & Southern Eastern Railway, Bilaspur,
for 17 years in operations, commercial and safety wings. He has
wide experience in operations, Traffic Planning, Rail Freight
Marketing and Passenger Time Tabling. He has also worked as
Senior General Manager, Chennai CONCOR on deputation for 2
years. Before joining as Deputy Chairman, Chennai Port Trust, he
has worked as Deputy Chairman, Kolkata Port Trust (now called as
Syama Prasad Mookerjee Port) for more than 4 years and he was
holding the charge of Deputy Chairman, Haldia Dock Complex,
Kolkata and Deputy Chairman, Kolkata Dock Labour Board. He
is also the Managing Director of Central Inland Water Transport
Corporation Ltd (CIWTC) and Director in Hooghly Dock and Port
Engineers Ltd. He graduated in Law from Madras University.

Securities held in KPL

1 Equity Share of Rs.10/- as a Nominee of Chennai Port Trust

Relationship with other Directors/KMP
of KPL

Not applicable

Directorship/ Membership in other Name of the Company Nature of interest/
Companies concern
Central Inland Water Transport Corpn | Managing Director
Ltd.
Hooghly Dock & Port Engineers Ltd | Director
Bhor Sagar Port Ltd. Nominee Director

Kolkatta Port Accretion Ltd Nominee Director

Terms and conditions of appointment

Nominee Director liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration last drawn

Not applicable

Number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the year

Corporate Governance Report (Annexure VI of Board’s Report)
may be referred.
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in sharing the
developments and progress made by your Company
during the financial year 2020-21 and in presenting
the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
31t March 2021.

1.0 PERFORMANCE
(i) (a) FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Rs.in Crs.)

Particulars 2020-21| 2019-20
Income from Operations 581.09| 703.18
Other Income 6.32 30.50
Total Income 587.41| 733.68
Operating Expenses 141.59| 146.30
Finance Costs 64.99 84.65
Depreciation and Amortization 84.99 5213
Total Expenses 291.57| 283.08
Profit Before Extraordinary & 295.84| 450.60
Exceptional Items

Exceptional Items (-) - 2,61
Profit Before Tax 295.84| 447.99
Taxes 143.13| 198.96
Profit After Tax 152.71| 249.03

(i) (b) FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, your Company
registered an operating income of Rs.581.09 Crores
as against Rs.703.18 Crores reported in the previous
year. The decrease of Rs.122.09 Crores was mainly
on account of handling lower cargo throughput
due to COVID-19 pandemic. Consequently, your
Company has reported a lower Profit Before Tax
(PBT) and Profit After Tax (PAT) of Rs.295.84 Crores
and Rs.152.71 Crores respectively during the year
under review as against Rs.447.99 Crores and
Rs.249.03 Crores reported in the previous year.

(ii) OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE & HIGHLIGHTS

During the year 2020-21, the Company recorded
cargo handling of 25.89 MTPA as against 31.75
MTPA in 2019-20. The main reasons for shortfall of
cargo throughput of your Company were due to:-

a) reduced Thermal Coal handled at TNEB
Thermal Power Plants due to lesser demand
of power on account of lockdown measures
due to Covid coupled with sourcing of
power through renewable energy like Solar
and Wind Power;

b) slowdown in POL consumption, EXIM Cargo
through containers, bulk consumption and
shutting down of Automobile units due
to COVID-19 pandemic and consequent
lockdown effecting Indian Maritime sector.

Your Company handled largest ever Container Vessel
M.V. MSC Faith having a length of 366 meters and
capacity of 14336 TEUs. Another notable achievement
was that the total Container cargo handled during
the year is about 53% higher than previous year.

(Largest transshipment Vessel to call on East Coast,
MV MSC Faith berthed at Container Terminal)

Your Company also handled one of the largest
LNG Vessels to have berthed in East Coast of India,
M.T. AlNuaman (‘Q-Flex LNG carrier’) having a length
315 meters, width of 50 meters and cargo handling
capacity of 207,032 m3.
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(Calling orf 7O-F/e.x LNa VCarrie.r- at LN& Terrr;ihalj
Your Company achieved average Turn Around Time
(TAT) (calculated from Pilot Boarding to De-boarding)
of 42.97 hours as against the target of 43 hours fixed
by Ministry of Ports, Shipping and Waterways.

Your Company organised the 7" Trade Meet in
coordination with MCCI on 05.02.2021 for an
interaction with the Stakeholders/Trade to highlight
project facilities available at KPL to attract new
customers and also to get their suggestions to
further improve the Port services, particularly in the
post Covid period.

Your Company executed

agreements  with
M/s.Daimler India Commercial Vehicles Pvt Ltd on
25.02.2021 and M/s.Isuzu Motors India Pvt. Ltd. on
20.05.2021 for export of automobiles exclusively
through KPL for a period of 10 years with effect
from 15t March 2021 to 28" February 2031 and for
a period of five 5 years from 01t April 2021 to 31
March 2026 respectively.

Cargoes handled by the 8 operational Berths are
given below:

Cargo
Sl. . Capacit Handled
No. Terminals e FY - 2020-21
(in Million Tonnes)
1. |TANGEDCO - CB1 8 6.2
2. |TANGEDCO - (B2 8 3.49
3. |CICTPL (Now ECTPL)* 10 5.55
4. |ETTPL 3 412
5. |AECTPL (8,00,000TEUs) | 15.44 3.87
6. |CIBTPL (Now EBTPL)** 2 0.85
7. |GCB 2 1.17
8. |LNG 5 0.64

*  During the reporting year, M/s.JSW Infrastructure Ltd. has
purchased the entire shares of M/s.Chettinad Builders Pvt.
Ltd,, which was the holding Company of M/s.CICTPL and
has subsequently changed the name of the SPV Company as
Ennore Coal Terminal Private Limited.

**  During the reporting year, M/s. JSW Infrastructure Ltd. has
purchased the entire share of M/s.Chettinad Builders Private
Limited, which owned 90% stake in the SPV Company viz.,
CIBTPL and has subsequently changed the name of the SPV
Company to Ennore Bulk Terminal Private Limited.

2.0 DIVIDEND

For the financial year 2020-21, Board of Directors in
their meeting held on 26.8.2021 have recommended
dividend @ 50% on paid up equity share capital
which is Rs.5/- per share. The dividend will be paid,
subject to the approval of Members at the Annual
General Meeting.

3.0 TRANSFERTO RESERVES
3.1 General Reserve:

Your Company has not transferred any amount
to General Reserve during the year as it is not
mandatory to transfer any amount before
declaration of dividend under the Companies Act,
2013. The balance as on 31 March 2021 remains at
Rs.79.02 Crores.

3.2 Debenture/Bond Redemption Reserve:

Your Company has transferred Rs.8.63 Crores to
Debenture/Bond Redemption Reserve pursuant to
Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the balance
as on 31 March 2021 stood at Rs.71.30 Crores.
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4.0 FINANCE

During the reporting year, your Company has not
availed/raised any loan/borrowings.

Your Company repaid scheduled installments of
Foreign Currency Loan (FCL) amounting to Rs.91.48
crores availed from Axis Bank which had become
due during the year and also promptly paid the
monthly interest payments.

Your Company repaid scheduled installments
of term loans availed from Chennai Port Trust
amounting to Rs.23.01 Crores which had become
due during the current year and promptly paid the
quarterly interest payments.

Your Company promptly discharged the annual
interest obligation to the tune of Rs.6.74 crores and
Rs.32.22 crores on Tax Free Bonds issued during the
financial years 2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively on
the due dates.

4.1 Ratings

As per the offer document of Tax Free Bonds issued
by your Company, your Company has to carry out
the annual surveillance of Credit Ratings.

The Credit Rating Agencies have assigned the
following ratings during annual surveillance as
detailed below:

Credit Rating Agencies Ratings / Outlook
CRISIL AA/Stable
CARE AA/Negative
ICRA AA-/Stable
Brick Work AA+/Stable

4.2 Particulars of transaction made with
Related Parties

All  the
entered by the Company during the financial year

contracts/arrangements/transactions

2020-21, with the related parties werein the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis.

The disclosure of Related Party Transaction as
required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure-I.

4.3 Material changes and commitments
affecting financial position between the
end of the financial year and date of report

There are no material changes and commitments
affecting financial position of your Company
between the end of financial year and date of report.

4.4 Change in the nature of business, if any

There has been no change in the business of the
Company during the Financial Year.

4.5 Particulars of Loans, Guarantees

Your Company has not given any Loans and
Guarantees or provided any Security under Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4.6 Investments

During the year under review, your Company has
not invested / paid advance towards Investments.

4.7 Capital Expenditure

Your Company spent Rs.94.57 Crores on capital
expenditure during the financial year 2020-21 as
against Rs.200 Crores spent in the previous year.

4.8 Fixed Deposits

During the year under review, your Company has not
accepted any fixed deposits, nor has any outstanding
unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31.03.2021.

4.9 Internal Financial Control

Your Company has adopted policies and procedures
for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its
business and adheres to the Company’s policies, for
safeguarding its assets, for preventing and detecting
frauds and errors, for accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial disclosures. Internal control
procedures are also considered sufficient to provide a
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the Financial Statements. The internal control
and governance processes are duly reviewed by the
Internal Auditor for their adequacy and effectiveness.

5.0 MOU 2020-21

Asperthe MOU guidelinesissued by the Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE), your Company had
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submitted the Draft MoU 2020-21 through Ministry
of Shipping (now Ministry of Ports, Shipping &
Waterways-MoPS&W) on 02.12.2019. However,
consequent to your Company ceasing to be a
Government Company and becoming a Subsidiary
Company of Chennai Port Trust in March 2020,
signing of MoU with MoPS&W was not required.
Hence, your Company has signed the MoU for the
year 2020-21 with Chennai Port Trust on 25.03.2021.

6.0 MARITIME INDIA SUMMIT 2021

Ministry of Ports, Shipping and Waterways (MoPS&W)
organized the Maritime India Summit (MIS) 2021 from
2" March 2021 to 4 March 2021 on virtual platform
to showcase the development and investment
opportunities in the Maritime sector. The summit was
inaugurated by Hon'ble Prime Minister Shri Narendra
Modi on 2" March 2021.

(CMD, KPL and officials of KPL at Maritime India Summit — 2021)

Your Company, being an important stake holder
participated in the Summit. CMD, KPL acted as
Convener for an important Break Out Session to
deliberate on Bulk Cargo Transportation with focus on
Liquid cargo.

During MIS 2021, your Company has signed 14
MOU’s with potential investors/ developers for port
projects mainly related to dredging, expansion of
rail connectivity, technology transfer, creating new
rail connectivity for liquid/POL cargo evacuation,
development of Energy Facilitation Centres, Large
Format Retail Outlets, Bunkering facilities etc. The
investment commitments from these MoUs are
worth around Rs.2695 Crores.

g
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(Signing of MoU with MOL Toyofuji Automotive Logistics (India) Pvt
Ltd) for complete Yard Management and Stevedoring Operations)
The above MoU's will give a further fillip to the
overall growth and efficiency improvement of your
Company, which in turn would provide enhanced
development opportunities for all the stake holders.

7.0 PROJECTS UNDER IMPLEMENTATION

To increase its ability to provide various services to
its customers with pro-active and futuristic market
sensitivity, your Company has initiated action for
development of additional six berths/terminals: -
three berths to handle Coal, two berths to handle
Liquid Cargo, and one more berth to handle
Containers. The ongoing projects on completion
will add 50.58 Million Tonnes further to the existing
capacity of 53.44 Million Tonnes totaling to 104.02
Million Tonnes. The status is as detailed below:

(a) CoalBerths3 &4 (18 MTPA)

Considering the expansion of the existing Thermal
Power Plants and new Power Plants in the
vicinity of KPL, TANGEDCO had requested KPL to
establish additional Coal Berths. KPL constructed
two additional Coal berths (CB3 & CB4) at an
investment of Rs.500 Crore. The new Coal Berths
can accommodate capesize vessel of 18 m draft
and have capacity of 9 MTPA each. KPL has handed
over Coal Berth - 4 and Coal Berth - 3 to TANGEDCO
during August 2018 and June 2019 respectively, for
installation of top loading facilities like Unloaders,
Conveyor system etc. Mechanisation of the berths
by TANGEDCO is under progress.
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(b) Modification of Iron Ore Terminal on as is
where is basis to also handle common user

coal (12 MTPA)

KPL had signed an agreement for an Iron Ore
Terminal on a 30 years BOT basis in September 2006
with the Project Company SICAL Iron Ore Terminal
Limited (SIOTL). The BOT operator had developed
the first phase of 6 MTPA during 2010-11. However,
due to ban on export of Iron Ore, the Terminal was
never put into use. Consequently, modification
of existing Iron Ore Terminal on “as is where is” to
also handle Common User Coal was contemplated
and accordingly License Agreement was signed on
11.07.2016 between KPL and SIOTL.

However, due to the occurrence of Financial Default
by the Concessionaire, ‘Termination Notice’ was
issued by your Company to M/s. SIOTL on 22.03.2021
and the License Agreement was terminated on
19.06.2021. However, the Termination process (Refer
Clause 15 (jii)(b) of Note No.30 to the Accounts) is
under process.

(c) 10CL Captive Jetty (3 MTPA)

Your Company has signed the agreement on
9.6.2016 with IOCL for construction of Captive Jetty
to handle POL and LPG products. The capacity
of the Terminal is 3 Million Tonnes per annum.
Independent Engineer has been appointed. I0CL
has obtained CTE and is expecting to get PESO
clearance soon.

(d) Marine Liquid Terminal - 2 (3 MTPA)

In order to meet everincreasing demand for POL, KPL
has initiated action for development of 2" Marine
Liquid Terminal consisting of berth and tankage
facilities in DBFOT mode at an investment of Rs.393
Crores. The capacity of the Terminal is 3 MTPA. After
competitive bidding, KPL issued Letter of Award
(LoA) to Consortium of BPCL-HPCL on 14.02.2018.
Due to litigation by existing BOT operator of MLT-1,
the Concession Agreement is yet to be signed.

(e) Container Terminal - Phase 1 (stage 2)
(6,00,000 TEUs/11.58 MTPA)

The Concessionaire has raised Arbitration on many
issues including Schedule of Stage Il construction.

(f)  Automobile Export/ Import Terminal-2 (3 MTPA)

Your Company intends to develop the 2
Automobile Export/Import Terminal with estimated
capacity of 3 MTPA. The estimated project cost is
Rs.188.13 Crores (including GST). NIT was published
on 02.06.2021. Your Company intends to award the
work by 3 quarter of 2021-22.

8.0 INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT

As a corporate port, functioning on“Landlord”model,
your Port has to provide the basic infrastructure like
road & rail connectivity, dredged basin/channel,
marine services and other common utilities.

Effective internal network of road and rail as well as
external connectivity to the National Highway and
trunk railway routes are essential to ensure faster
receipt and evacuation of cargo. Towards this end
your Company has initiated actions as detailed below:

I.  Road connectivity
(i) Internal Road Connectivity

To avoid congestion in the road traffic and parking
problems of truck drivers inside the port area, your
Company has completed the development of the
internal roads, truck parking bays, Rest Shelter
Building, etc. at a cost of Rs.46.86 Crores.

(Common Truck Parking Bay near West gate)




(Rest Shelter Building for truck drivers at Common Truck Parking Bay)

(ii)

External Road Connectivity

Southern Port Access Road

(a)

Present road connectivity of Kamarajar Port to the
three National Highways (NH5, NH4 & NH45) is
through the Port Access Road, the NCTPS approach
road, Tiruvottiyur — Ponneri - Panchetty (TPP)
Road, the Inner Ring Road (IRR) and the Chennai
Bypass Road. Considering the increasing road
traffic movement of import/export of cargoes, KPL
has undertaken widening of the existing two lane
road starting from Vallur Junction (TPP road) to
Kamarajar Port Main entrance to four lane road and
has entrusted the work on a turnkey basis to TNRDC
for a cost of Rs.195 Crores. The proposal comprises
of 4.8 km length of North Chennai Thermal Power
Station (NCTPS) Road belonging to Tamil Nadu
Generation and Distribution Corporation Ltd
(TANGEDCO) and 2.3 km length of Port Access Road
belonging to Kamarajar Port.

Road improvement from NCTPS junction to KPL
Main Gate (2.3 km) is expected to be completed by
September 2021 and Road improvement from Vallur
Junction to NCTPS junction (4.8 km) is expected to
be completed by June 2022.

(b) Northern Port Access Road

The Northern Port Access Road, which connects
Kamarajar Port to NH5 has a length of 21.148 km with
a4.35 km SPUR Road to the existing Chennai ORR. This
Northern Port Access Road forms part of Section-1 of
the Chennai Peripheral Ring Road (CPRR). The State
Government vide G.0.(Ms) No.37 Highways and Minor
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Ports (HW2) Department dated 8.3.2019 has accorded
Administrative Sanction for Rs.2673.42 Crore for the
formation of the road. JICA is the funding agency for
this project. The project is being executed by TNRDC.
M/s.Tata Projects has been identified as the L1 bidder
for the work. Award of work by Government of Tamil
Nadu is expected shortly.

Il.  Rail Connectivity

Presently, your Company is connected by rail to
the mainline at Attipattu and Attipattu Pudunagar
Stations located in the Chennai - Gudur Section of
the Southern Railway on the Chennai — Delhi/Kolkata
route. Your Company developed the railway facilities
connecting the stackyards of the Coal and Iron Ore
Terminals to the existing NCTPS railway line. Further, as
part of obligations of your Company, Rail Connectivity
to Container and Multi Cargo Terminals have been
provided and is operational since October 2018.

To ease congestion in rail bound traffic, your
Company has initiated actions for the following Rail
Connectivity projects:

(a)

Your Company has entered into agreement with
Indian Port Rail & Ropeway Corporation Limited
(IPRCL) for doubling the existing single line rail
connectivity from Holding yard No.1 to Container
Yard at a project cost of Rs.86.00 Crores. The total
length of doubling rail connectivity is 2.62 kms.

Southern Rail Connectivity

IPRCL has awarded contracts for major and minor
bridge construction and track formation works in 2
separate packagesin December2018and November
2020 (re-tender) respectively. CRZ Clearance was
obtained for the project in January 2020. Works
have commenced in both the packages. The project
is expected to be completed by August 2022.

(b) Northern Rail Connectivity

Northern Rail Link connects Kamarajar Port to
Northern side of Minjur Station i.e. Chennai - Gudur
Railway mainline. Total length of the Northern rail
link connectivity is 11.211 kms. Your Company and
Kattupalli Ports agreed for 30m ROW (15m each)
out of 100m ROW being acquired by Govt. of Tamil
Nadu for NPAR. Your Company has conveyed its
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consent for incremental cost sharing due to change
in design of NPAR for providing rail connectivity to
KPL and Kattupalli Port.

Your Company has identified 55.73 acres as the
total land requirement for NRL and has requested
Industries Department, Govt of Tamil Nadu for
acquiring the required land from private owners
and also to give ROW permission for Govt. land for
99 years lease on upfront basis for NRL.

9.0 INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company maintained cordial and harmonious
Industrial relations during the year 2020-21. No man
days were lost during the year due to any strike or
stoppage of work. The labour situation at the port
was normal.

10.0 HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
10.1 Manpower

The manpower details with respect to all employees
ason 31.03.2021 are given below:

SC | ST | OBC | Others | Total
Officers 12 3 28 20 63
Staff 9 1 20 6 36
Total 21 4 48 26 929

10.2 Representation of SCs/STs/OBCs and
Minorities

Your Company meticulously follows the Presidential
Directives and orders of the Central Government
from time to time on reservation of posts/benefits
in favour of the Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribes,
Other Backward Classes, and Minorities etc. SC
employees constitute 21% of total manpower and
ST employees constitute 4% of total manpower.

Liaison Officers for SC/ST and OBC have been
appointed to ensure compliance andimplementation
of the reservation orders in the organization.

10.3 Training

Your Company has always been showing keen
interestinimparting training to its employees to keep
them abreast of the knowledge in their related fields.
During the year, due to COVID-19 Pandemic, few
employees attended online training programmes.

10.4 Grievance Redressal Mechanism

Your Company has in place a grievance redressal
procedure for Executives as well as non-executive
employees. No grievances were received for the
year under review.

11.0 HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

Your Port is committed to providing a safe and
healthy work environment for its users, contractors
& employees.

Your Company is running OHC equipped with
trained paramedical staff and ambulance service
round the clock (24 x 7) basis to provide the first
aid during emergency to the employees of the
Company and other BOT Operators and port users.

As a welfare measure, periodical health check-ups are
provided to employees and their family members.
Port organized a medical camp on 04.03.2021 at
Occupational Health Centre which benefitted KPL
Employees, BOT Operators and SHG Women.

(Medical camp conducted at Occupational Health Centre, KPL)

To prevent the outbreak of COVID-I9 within port
premises, your port has taken various preventive
measures.

Your Port gives utmost importance to Safety in the
work place. To sensitize employees, stakeholders
and port users to improve the health and safety
performance in your Port, National Safety Week was
celebrated during first week of March 2021 in your
Company.

Training programmes on Fire fighting training for port
users (11 nos.), mockdrills at berths and port users (10
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nos.), mutual aid drills with neighbouring industries
namely IPPL & BPCL (02 nos.) were conducted.

%’_.-.

(Fire fighting training conducted at KPL)

National Safety Council conducted a Safety
Audit during 23" - 27" November, 2020 for the
berths/terminals/storage facilities handling non-
inflammable products inside your Port.

Your Company endeavors to remain as eco-friendly
port serving various needs of the Maritime industry.
Port is regularly monitoring the environment. Port
has engaged M/s.Hubert Enviro Care Systems
(P) Ltd, a NABL accredited/MoEF&CC recognized
laboratory for sampling and testing of various
environmental parameters like ambient air, marine
water quality, sediment and noise. BOT operators
inside the Port are also monitoring the environment.
The environmental quality reports are regularly
forwarded to the State Pollution Control Board.

Port has empanelled three Tamil Nadu Pollution
Control Board approved recyclers of waste oil
for collection and disposal of ship generated oily
wastes. Your port has appointed a contractor for
the collection, segregation and disposal of solid
waste generated from the ships and inside port.
The segregated wastes are sent to Pollution Control
Board approved re-cyclers for further beneficial use.

12.0 DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 AND WOMEN
EMPOWERMENT

The provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
atWorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)

Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder including the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee
have been implemented in the Company with the
aim of providing protection to women against
sexual harassment at workplace and for prevention
and redressal of complaints. No complaints were
received during the year 2020-21.

As on 31 March 2021, there are a total of 17
women employees on Company rolls. Women
constitute 5% of the total employees in staff cadre
and 12% in officers cadre. International Women'’s
Day was celebrated on 6™ March 2021 with active
participation of women employees in various
events.

13.0 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY &
SUSTAINABILITY

Your Company as a responsible Corporate citizen
has undertaken projects in line with adopted CSR
Policy and requirement of the Companies Act, 2013.
CSR Policy has been amended to be in line with the
newly amended Rules/newly amended provisions
of Companies Act 2013. CSR Annual Report
detailing the various CSR initiatives is enclosed as
Annexure - Il and forms part of the Board’s Report.
All the requisite disclosures relating to composition
of the CSR committee, CSR policy and initiatives
taken during the year on CSR are contained in the
said Report.

14.0 PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
has notified Public Procurement Policy which is
applicable for CPSEs. Your Company has ceased to
be a CPSE. However, your Company has procured
65.05% of annual value of goods or services
from Micro and Small Enterprises as against 20%
mandated in the policy.

15.0 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management Policy adopted by the Company
provides aframework to identify, assess and manage
potential risks and opportunities. It provides a way
for managers to make informed management
decisions.
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Some of the objectives of a Risk Management
Framework are given below:

» Afocused approach inidentifying the obstacles
& managing them to help the Organization
perform better.

» Introduce a structured risk management
initiative across the Organization to identify
potential risks that may adversely affect
the objectives of the Organization, plan for
their mitigation with specific responsibilities
assigned.

Improve strategic decision making.
Improve business performance.
Reduce operational surprises and losses.

Improve deployment of capital.

YV V. V V V

Provide a sound basis for integrated risk
management and internal control as
components of good corporate governance;

The risks are identified, evaluated and mitigating
plans are reviewed and monitored from time to
time.

16.0 WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Company has put in place a “Whistle Blower Policy”
for employees to report to the management
instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct
or ethics policy by adopting highest standards
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior. No complaints have been received under
the Policy during the year.

17.0 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Terms and Conditions of Remuneration
were determined by the Government of India
as your Company was a Government Company
till 27.3.2020. Subsequent to disinvestment of
entire Shareholding held by Government of India
to Chennai Port Trust, the Company ceased to
be Government Company and is a Subsidiary of
Chennai Port Trust, an autonomous body under
Ministry of Ports, Shipping and Waterways,
Government of India. As per the Share Purchase
Agreement entered between The President of India
(Seller) and Chennai Port Trust (Acquirer), no action

(except in the ordinary course of business of the
Company) shall be taken by the acquirer which may
adversely impact the seniority, compensation and
benefit packages (including retirement benefits),
and growth and progression plans/prospects of
the employees of the Company, except with the
prior written consent of the Seller for a period of 3
(Three) years after the closing date. The Nomination
and Remuneration Policy comprising the above
feature is available in the weblink http://www.
kamarajarport.in/content/innerpage/manuals.php

18.0 RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company is complying with the Right to
Information Act, 2005 and has designated a Public
Information Officer, and an Appellate Authority
to look after the compliances of RTI Act, 2005. The
information required to be provided as per Section
4(1)(b) of the Right to Information Act, 2005 has
been posted on the website of the Company www.
kamarajarport.in.

During the year, 57 applications were received
and attended to under the Act. 4 appeals were
received and the same were disposed off within the
stipulated time.

19.0 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Your Company has always been at the forefront in
technology adoption for better business process
management and providing value to the business. Your
Company has undertaken many IT initiatives to carry
out all business processes and service delivery through
IT systems and IT enabled services and realized the
digital transformation propounded by the Government
of India. Your Company maintained more than 99
percent uptime of SAP operations during the year.

Some of the IT systems implemented and initiatives
taken by your Company are:

e  M/s. Pricewaterhouse  Coopers  (PWCQ)
conducted IT Audit and submitted Risk
Assessment report along with policy
documents. The entire activity including
ISMS Roll-out is expected to be completed
by third quarter of 2021-22. On successful
completion, action will be initiated towards
external audit and process of obtaining ISO-
27001 Certification.
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e Administrative, Technical & Budgetary
sanction was obtained to replace the legacy
POMS and LMS system with a new portal
for the Customers & Vendors to interact
electronically with your Company. This is
slated for implementation in 2021-22 and will
cover the entire Port Operations, including
vessels, cargo, port crafts, etc and seamlessly
merge various port operations in a single IT
system.

e Action is being taken for creation of proper
Disaster Recovery (or) Business Continuity site
during 2021-22.

20.0 IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE

Your Company has made focused efforts for the
propagation and implementation of the official
language policy of the Government of India. Official
Language Implementation Committee meetings
chaired by CMD were held every quarter for effective
implementation of Rajbhasha. Hindi workshops were
conducted every quarter to give wide awareness on
ensuring progressive use of Hindi.

Hindi Day was celebrated at Kamarajar Port on
14.09.2020 with a fortnight long celebrations from
01.09.2020 to 14.09.2020. Competitions like essay
writing, poster making, etc. were conducted for the
employees and all the programs were organized
online in view of the Covid 19 pandemic.

(Participation of KPL employees in Hindi Day Celebrations)

The ceremony began with a special address by Shri
Sunil Paliwal, CMD. The Chief Guest of the function
Shri Pradeep Sharma, Registrar, Dakshin Bharath
Hindi Prachar Sabha, Chennai expressed happiness
over the increased usage of the official language at
Kamarajar Port.

Employees were incentivized on successful
completion of Prabodh, Praveen and Pragya
Exams held during May - Nov/Dec 2020. Important
milestone has been achieved in KPL as 27
employees of KPL have gained working knowledge
in Hindi and have been entrusted with the task
of implementing the Official Language in their
respective departments.

21.0 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a) Changes in Directors & Key Managerial
Persons

During the year under review,

e Pursuant to Chennai Port Trust Letter No.
ChPT/KPL CELL/2020/F dated 28.08.2020,
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar, Deputy Chairman,
ChPT was appointed as Nominee Director
of Chennai Port Trust w.ef. 04.09.2020 on
the Board of your Company in place of
Shri Cyril C George.

e Pursuant to Chennai Port Trust Letter No.
ChPT/KPL CELL/2020/F dated 13.10.2020,
Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma was appointed as
Independent Director w.e.f. 10.11.2020 on the
Board of your Company.

e Pursuant to Chennai Port Trust Letter No.
ChPT/KPL CELL/2020/F dated 13.10.2020,
Smt. Sarla Balagopal was appointed as
Independent Director w.e.f. 10.11.2020 on the
Board of Kamarajar Port Limited.

b) Details of Meetings of the Board/
Committees and composition

Details of Meetings of the Board/Committee and
composition are given in the Corporate Governance
Report that forms part of this Annual Report. All the
recommendations of the Committees have been
accepted by the Board.




KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

c) Annual Evaluation

Your Company was a Government Company till
27% March 2020 and hence statement indicating
manner in which annual evaluation has been made
by the Board of its own performance and that of its
Committees was not required. 50% of the Directors
were appointed by the Board only in later part of the
year i.e. November 2020 (and by the Shareholders
in December 2020) after which only two Board
meetings were held in March 2021. Accordingly the
annual evaluation of Directors can be carried out
only in the following financial year.

22.0 DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Your Company has received necessary Declaration
from each of the Independent Directors of the
Company during the year 2020-21 conforming that
they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed
under 149 (6) of Companies Act 2013, and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations 2015.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent
Directors appointed during the year possess the
requisite integrity, expertise and experience required
to discharge the duties as Independent Directors.

The Independent Director who has neither taken
online proficiency self-assessment test conducted
nor exempted from taking the test by the Institute
notified under sub-section (1) of Section 150 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has given an undertaking that
the same will be complied within stipulated time.

23.0 VIGILANCE

The Vigilance Division scrutinizes the documents
with respect to the work contracts executed by
various departments. Procedural lapses, deviations
from tendering norms and shortcomings in
contract works are pointed out to the concerned
departments for corrective actions and system
improvements. The recovery of money is also
advised in fitting cases.

The CVC guidelines/notifications are circulated to
the departments. The Annual Immovable Property
Returns submitted by the officers of KPL are
scrutinized by the Vigilance Division. Clarifications
are sought for the abnormalities, if any, from the
concerned officers. The Audit reports are studied at
Vigilance Division and departments are advised to
take necessary corrective action, wherever required.

23.1 Vigilance Awareness Week, 2020

As per Central Vigilance Commission’s direction
Kamarajar Port Limited observed Vigilance Awareness
Week from 27.10.2020 to 02.11.2020 on the theme
“Vigilant India, Prosperous India".

Essay and Slogan writing competitions were held
with the active participation from KPL staff. Lectures
were organized on vigilance related topics to create
more awareness on Vigilance. Your Company also
took efforts to involve the students of schools and
colleges in the vicinity of the Port on the observance of
Vigilance Awareness Week. In the week long program,
around 150 students enthusiastically participated in
the Essay, Poster Making and Elocution Competitions
on the topic “Vigilant India, Prosperous India”

(Prizes were distributed to the students who won in various competitions)

Due to Covid19 Pandemic, as per CVC’s advice,
various Internal Housekeeping activities were
carried out in campaign mode as part of the
Vigilance Awareness Week 2020.

23.2 Adoption of Integrity Pact
The Central Vigilance Commission has recommended

e adoption of Integrity Pact and provided basic
guidelines for its implementation in respect of major
procurements in the Government Organizations.

e appointment of Independent External Monitors
(IEMs) for the implementation of Integrity
Pact and also advised the organisations to fix a
threshold value for the contracts/ procurement
which are to be brought under the Integrity Pact.

The Pact envisages an agreement between the
prospective vendors/bidders and the Employer/
Principal committing the persons /officials of the
both parties, not to exercise any corrupt influence
on any aspect of the contract.
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KPL Board has approved the Vigilance department’s
proposal of Integrity Pact in the Board meeting held
on 21.02.2015. The threshold value for contracts/
procurement to be covered under Integrity Pact
has been fixed as Rs.1 Crore and above. The CVC
had appointed the following two retired officers
as Independent External Monitors (IEM) for
implementing the Integrity Pact in KPL.

1) Shri.V. Kannan, Former CMD, Vijaya Bank.

2) Shri. R.Kuppan, IRSME (1980 batch) Former
Principal Chief Mechanical Engineer.

Integrity Pact covers all phases of the contract i.e
from the stage of Notice Inviting Tender (NIT) till the
conclusion of the contract. All the Departments were
advised to incorporate Integrity Pact clause in the
tender documents for works/procurements having
value more than the threshold value of Rs.1 Crore.

24.0 NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME
OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
DURING THE YEAR

During the year no Company has become or ceased to
be its Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.

25.0 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors state that:-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts,
the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit
of the Company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) thedirectors had prepared the annual accounts
on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company

and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

26.0 DISCLOSURE AS PER SECTION 197 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT AND THE REQUIREMENTS
OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014.

The requisite details pursuant to provisions of
Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with the Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, forms part of Directors’Report and is Annexed
to this Report as Annexure -lll.

27.0 AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India, New Delhi has appointed
M/s.B.Thiagarajan & Co., Chartered Accountants as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for auditing the
books of accounts of the Company for the period
ended 31 March 2021.

27.1 Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditor of the Company,
M/s.B.Thiagarajan & Co., Chartered Accountants, have
given an unqualified report on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2020-21.The Emphasis
of matters and Notes on financial statement referred
toin the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments.

27.2 Review of Accounts by Comptroller and
Auditor General of India

The comments of C & AG under Section 143 (6) (b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of the
Company for the Financial Year 2020-21 and replies of
the management thereto are attached as Annexure
to the Board’s Report and will form part of this report.

28.0 SECRETARIAL AUDIT

M/s. S. Dhanapal & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries was appointed to conduct Secretarial Audit
of your Company for the Financial Year 2020-21. They
have reported that during the period under review,
your Company has complied in accordance with the
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requirements to be met with the applicable provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc to
arequired extent except appointment of Independent
& Women Director(s) and all related compliances till
09t November 2020 and Board evaluation & meeting
of Independent Directors for the year. The Secretarial
Auditor’s Report for the financial year 2020-21 forms
part of this Boards’' Report as Annexure - IV,

28.1 Reply to the comments of Secretarial Auditor

As pointed out by the Secretarial Auditor, Independent
Directors including Woman Director have been
appointed only in the later part of the Financial year.
Consequently, as 50 % of the Board of Directors were
inducted in later part of the financial year, Board
evaluation & meeting of Independent Directors for
the year could not be carried out/held. Steps have
been initiated for Board evaluation.

29.0 SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant and material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future.

30.0 ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) (a) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return is available
in the following link http://www.kamarajarport.in/
content/innerpage/annual-return.php.

31.0 DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

Your Company had appointed M/s. SBICAP Trustees
Company Ltd. and M/s. Catalyst Trusteeship Ltd.
(formerly known as GDA Trusteeship Ltd.) as Debenture
Trustees for Tax Free bonds issued during the Financial
Years 2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively.

32.0 REPORT ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO.

In accordance with the provisions of Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 information

Place: Chennai
Date : 26.08.2021

regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo
is given at Annexure -V to this report.

33.0 REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A voluntary report on Corporate Governance for the
year ended 315 March 2021 is enclosed as Annexure
- VI to this report.

33.1 Secretarial Standards

Your Company is in compliance with the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of
Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General
Meetings (SS-2).

33.2 Cost Records

The Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

34.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to place on record their
gratitude for the support and guidance received
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Government of India and Chennai Port Trust
and appreciates the co-operation received from
TANGEDCO/TNEB, TNPCB, GoTN and Gol, particularly
the Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change, Department of Public Enterprises, Indian Port
Association, Ministry of Finance and Indian Railways/
Southern Railways.

Your Directors gratefully acknowledge the continued
support and cooperation received from the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India, Statutory
Auditors, Internal Auditors and Secretarial Auditor. Your
Directors thank the Port Users, BOT Concessionaires,
Contractors and Bankers for their continued support
and assistance. Your Directors wish to place on record
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done by all the employees of the Company during
the year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Annexure -1

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transactions under third proviso thereto

1.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis-Not Applicable.

(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts /arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any-

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board -

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any :

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section188

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
(@) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship- Chennai Port Trust
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

Appointment of Chennai Port Trust for Project Management Consultancy services on nomination
basis for the work of Dredging Plan Phase IV(A) - Capital and Maintenance dredging at Kamarajar Port.

(c) Duration of the contracts /arrangements/transactions 8 (Eight) Months plus 2 (Two) Months
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:

i. The PMC service fee of Rs.3.07 Crs. excluding GST for the 8months contract period. If the contract
is extended beyond 8 months, no additional service fee will be charged by ChPT upto 10 months.
If the contract period is extended beyond 10 months, additional fee of 0.25 % of the project cost
per month or part thereof will be charged by ChPT.

« Rs.80 Lakhs shall be released after signing of the Agreement.

« Rs.80 Lakhs shall be released at the end of 4" month from the Date of Commencement i.e.
from 11.07.2020.

« Rs.80 Lakhs shall be released at the end of 8" month from the Date of Commencement i.e.
from 11.07.2020.

«  Balance amount of Rs. 67 Lakhs shall be released after completion of the final billing to the contractor.

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Circular Resolution N0.03/2020-21 dated 24.07.2020 and the
same has been taken note of by the Board in its meeting held on 09.09.2020

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NO

(g) Justification for entering into the Contract: As per the roadmap indicated by the Ministry pursuant to
disinvestment and subsequent MoU between Chennai Port Trust and KPL.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,

Place: Chennai Chairman cum Managing Director
Date : 26.08.2021 (DIN:01310101)
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Annexure-ll

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) & Rules made thereunder]

Brief Outline of Company’s CSR Policy

Your Company consistently strive to meet the expectations of the society by supporting initiatives for
improving infrastructure/ quality of life of society / community without compromising on ecological
issues on sustainable basis consistent with the CSR provisions of the Companies Act, 2013; Schedule VI
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Company, as a socially responsible Corporate Port endeavors to

= promote and leverage green technologies to produce goods and services that contribute to social and
environmental sustainability

» take up on priority, CSR projects which are in the National Development agenda like safe drinking
water, provision of Toilets especially for girls, health and sanitation and education, etc., with the main
focus to address the basic needs of the deprived, under privileged and are in line with CSR rules and
the policy directions issued by the Government from time to time.

Composition of CSR Committee

Number of
Number of .
Meetings of CSR LSRR
SI.No. | Name of the Director | Designation/Nature of Directorship . CSR Committee
Committee held .
during the year attended during
the year
1 | Shri Sunil Paliwal CMD of KPL & Chairman of CSR Committee 4 4
2 |ShriP.Raveendran Nominee Director & Member 4 4
3 |ShriS. Balaji Arunkumar | Nominee Director & Member 4 2%
. Non Official Independent Director of KPL
4 | ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao & Member of CSR Committee 4 4

* Only two CSR Committees were held after Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar was appointed as Nominee Director & Member of CSR Committee

Provide the web link where composition of CSR Committee and CSR Projects Approved by the
Board are disclosed in the website

Composition of CSR Committee link: http://www.kamarajarport.in/content/innerpage/board-level-committee.php

CSR Projects Link : http://www.kamarajarport.in/content/innerpage/corporate-social-responsibility-csr.php

Provide the details of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub rule
(3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Companies Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014; If
applicable (attach the report)

Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Companies Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, and the amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any -

Not Applicable

Average Net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) : Rs.40,514.00 Lakhs

(a) Two percentage of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135 (5) : Rs.810.00 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of CSR Projects or Programmes or Activities of the previous financial years -

NIL
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - Not Applicable
(d) Total CSR Obligation for the financial year (7a+7b -7c) : Rs.810.00 Lakhs

Total Amount Spent for
the financial year

(Rs. in lakhs)

Amount Unspent (Rs. in Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR
Account as per Section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified in Schedule
Vil as per second provision to section 135(5)

(R:\?:\OI::; 5) Date of transfer Nanfms:(: the Amount Date of transfer
828.25*% 283%* 30.04.2021 NA NA NA

* Actual spent for the FY 2020-21 is Rs.1856.00 Lakhs which comprises of Rs.828.25 Lakhs spent against projects during the FY 2020-
2021 and Rs.1029.00 Lakhs spent in the FY year 2020-21 on projects which had commenced in the previous years.

** Pertains to unspent amount of previous years as on 31.03.2021.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

mi| @ 3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 9) (10) (11)
S. | Name | Itemfrom | Local [ Locationofthe| Project | Amount |Amount| Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe | thelistof | Area project Duration | allocated | Spent | Transferred |Implemen| Implementation
project | activities in | (Yes/No) for the in the to the tation through
Schedule project (in | current | unspent Direct implementing
Vilin the Rs.) financial [ CSR Account | (Yes/No) Agency
Act year for the
project as CSR
State | District per Section Name | Registration
135(6) No.
Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(M (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7 (8)
ltem from Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -
. ; spent through
S. . th.e !'?t of Local project for the Imple.men- implementing Agency
No. Name of the project | activitiesin | Area project tation CSR
Schedule VIl | (Yes/No) s Distri (in Lakh Direct N Registrati
o tate istrict inLa (Yes/No) ame egistration
Rs.) No.
1 | Contribution to Schedule VIl No NA NA 400 No PM Cares
PM Cares fund for (vii) fund
COVID-19 pandemic
2 |Contribution to Schedule Yes TN | Chengalpet | 22.05 No Chengalpet
promoting health VIl (i) Medical
care- Developing High College &
Dependency Unit Hospital
3 | Contribution to Schedule Yes ™ Chennai 100 No Chennai
promoting education VI (ii) Port & Dock
Educational
Trust
4 | Contribution to Armed | Schedule VIl No NA NA 05 No DRO,
Forces Flag Day Fund (vi) Tiruvallur
5 |Contribution to 22 Schedule Yes N Tiruvallur 300 No DRDA,
CSRinitiatives -Rural VIl (x) Tiruvallur
development projects
TOTAL 827.05
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(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
Rs.1.20 lakhs

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
NIL

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)
Rs.828.25 lakhs

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Particulars (R:?:,I:E:\s)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 810.00
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 828.25
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 18.25
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 0.00
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 18.25

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Not Applicable*
* Transfer of unspent CSR Funds to Unspent CSR account is introduced by MCA with effect from 01.04.2021.
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
Not Applicable
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details)
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
NIL
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
NIL
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc.
NIL
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).
NIL
11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5)
Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, 1.A.S.,

Place: Ch . Chairman cum Managing Director &
ace: Lhennai Chairman of CSR Committee
Date : 26.08.2021

(DIN:01310101)
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Annexure-lll
Information under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013

. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the
Company for the financial year;

The ratio of the remuneration of each director for the year 2020-21 to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company is tabulated below. CMD is the only director of the Company.

SI.No. Name Ratio
1. Shri Sunil Paliwal, CMD 4,59

. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Officer, Company Secretary or Managery, if any, in the financial year;

SI.No. Name Percentage
1. Shri Sunil Paliwal, CMD *
2. | Shri M Gunasekaran, CFO (12%)
3. | Smt Jayalakshmi Srinivasan, CS (4%)

Shri Sunil Paliwal joined KPL in mid September 2019 and received salary for around 6 months i.e. from Sep 2019 to Mar 2020 in the previous
year. The same is not comparable to the salary of full current year i.e. from April 2020 to Mar 2021. Accordingly, a comparison is not drawn.

As per the policy of the Company, the annual increment in basic pay of the employees of the Company
is 3%. The Dearness Allowance is increased as per Government rules. Further the Performance related
payments are paid as per the applicable rules depending on the performance of the Company during the
relevant year.

. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year

cYy PY Percentage
Median Remuneration 1078549.63 1137495.48 (5%)

. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:
The total number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 315t March 2021 is 99.

. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration.

Average percentage increase/(decrease) in remuneration including key managerial personnel during the
financial year was in the range of (5)-(10)% excluding CMD

. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
The remuneration to all employees of the Company is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company.

. The particulars for the year 2020-21 as required to be disclosed under Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

Nil. No employee had earned beyond the limits prescribed therein.
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Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn

Pilot

experience in various capacities.

N & R tion* Date of Last

SN D ?met. emunera cllon Qualifications & Experience | commencement | Age employment

esignation receive of employment held

1. | Shri Sanjay Kumar, 50,17,361 B.Sc Physics with 34 years of 03.05.2005 58.1 | CISF
General Manager experience in various capacities.

(CS &BD)

2. | Shri Sunil Paliwal, IAS 49,77,911 B.Tech (Comp.Sci), MS (Comp 16.09.2019 52.8 | State
Chairman-cum- Science) & MBA with 28 years of Government,
Managing Director experience in various capacities. Labour &

Employment
Department

3. | V.Krishnasamy 38,87,129 Dip in CE, B.E. Mechanical, 13.09.2007 59.10 | Chiyoda &
General Manager MBA (HRM) with 36 years of Synamprogeti
(Operations) experience in various capacities. Co.Ltd.

4. | P.Radhakrishnan, 38,80,539 BE (CIVIL) & M E Management 12.12.2007 58.0 | Mecon Ltd
DGM (Civil) with 35 years of experience in

various capacities.

5. | M. Gunasekaran, 37,88,546 M.Com, AICWAI, ACS with 35 28.11.2001 58.5 | BSES Kerala
General Manager years of experience in various Power Ltd.
(Finance) capacities.

6. | ShriC.S.Vemanna, 26,75,186 B.Com, AICWA, Dip in Fisheries 05.03.2012 534 |I0CL
Chief Manager Tech & Navigation Engg & MBA
(Finance) with 30 years of experience in

various capacities.

7. | Shri G.M. Balan, 26,60,538 B.Sc PHYSICS & MASTER-FG 16.08.2013 48.1 | LP Logistics Pvt.
Dy. General Manager with 25 years of experience in Ltd
(Marine Services) various capacities.

8. | ShriP.Om Pragesh, 25,52,675 B.COM, MBA, PGDM (PM) with 25.02.2002 48.5 | Central
Sr. Executive Secretary 27 years of experience in various Government,

capacities. Ministry of
Shipping

9. | Dr.Sravan Kumar, 25,39,509 B.Sc, Chemistry, M.Sc Marine 11.05.2005 55.4 | Dept of Ocean

Sr. Manager, HSE Science & Ph.D Marine Science Development,
with 26 years of experience in ICAM Project
various capacities. Directorate

10 | S.P. Desikamani, 25,36,820 B.Sc/Master FG with 29 years of 27.04.2018 504 | West Asia

Maritime Limited

* Remuneration includes pilotage allowances, leave encashment, PRP, etc.

Note:

(i) All are permanent employees

(i) Noemployeeisholding equity shareinthe Company except ShriSunil Paliwal, CMD and Shri M. Gunasekaran,
General Manager (Finance) who are holding 1 equity share each as Nominees of Chennai Port Trust.

(iii) No employee is a relative of any Director or Manager of the Company
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Annexure-IV

Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road

(Next to NABARD &ICICI Bank), Nungambakkam, Chennai-600 034

PhoneNo.044-4553 0256, 45530257/4265 2127
E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com, website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Partners

S.Dhanapal, B.Com,, BABL,F.CS

N. Ramanathan, B.Com,, FC.S

Smita Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI)
R.Pratheepa, B.CS, A.CS

FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Kamarajar Port Limited
(erstwhile Ennore Port Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by
M/s.KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED (erstwhile Ennore
Port Limited), (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted based on records
made available to us, in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
our opinion/understanding thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and
made available to us and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we, on strength of those records,
and information so provided, hereby report that
in our opinion and understandings, the Company,
during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on March 31,2021, appears to have complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also in our limited review, the Company has proper

and required Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minutes’
book, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and made available to
us, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021
according to the applicable provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules
made thereunder and the Companies Act, 1956
and the rules made thereunder as applicable;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
therulesandregulations madethereundertothe
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings to the applicable extent.

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines
prescribed under the Securities and exchange
Board of India Act, 1992(‘'SEBI ACT’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
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b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 as substituted by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue
of Capital And Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 as
substituted by Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act
and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and

vi) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 as
substituted by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Buy-Back of Securities)
Regulations, 2018.

vii) Acts, Rules and Regulations relating to Port
Management and related activities as identified
by the Management and communicated to us.

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute
of Company Secretaries of India with respect
to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and
General Meetings (55-2),and

i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

During the period under review, the Company has
complied in accordance with the requirements
to be met with the applicable provisions of the
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards,
etc. mentioned above to a required extent except
appointment of independent & women director(s)
and all related compliances till 09" November 2020
and Board evaluation & meeting of Independent
Directors for the year.

With respect to the applicable financial laws
such as direct and indirect tax laws, based on
the information & explanations provided by the
management and officers of the Company and
certificates placed before the Board of Directors,
we report that adequate systems are in place to
monitor and ensure compliance.

It is represented to us that the Company has
initiated measures, wherever required, to address
issues raised by the statutory authorities and
letters/notices received by the Company during
the financial year under various enactments as
applicable to the Company.

We further report that, subject to the above, the
related documents that we have come across depict
that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted
as applicable with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors and the changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the
dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes, if any.

We further report that based on our limited review
of the compliance mechanism established by the
Company, there appear adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the
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size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the

Company sought the approval of its members for

the following matters other than ordinary business

at the Annual General Meeting:

» Appointment of Shri Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S. (DIN:
01310101) as Chairman cum-Managing Director
of the Company

» Appointment of Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao (DIN:
02435597) as an Independent Director of the
Company

» Appointment of Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar
(DIN: 07526368) as a Nominee Director of the
Company

» Appointment of Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma
(DIN: 03531392) as an Independent Director of
the Company

» Appointment of Smt. Sarla Balagopal, IRTS
(Retd.) (DIN: 01572718) as an Independent
Director of the Company

Place : Chennai
Date: 26.08.2021

On 27/03/2020, the Ministry of Ports, Shipping and
Waterways, Government of India disinvested its
complete stake in the Company which was acquired
by Chennai Port Trust, whereby Company became
wholly owned subsidiary of Chennai Port Trust, with
the Trust as its sole shareholder. On 31/08/2020,
Chennai Port Trust nominated six individuals to hold
1 share each in the Company as registered holders
u/s 89 (beneficial interest retained by M/s.Chennai
Port Trust), and accordingly, from 31/08/2020, the
Company is in compliance with Section 3 of the Act
having seven shareholders.

We further report that our Audit was subjected only
to verifying adequacy of systems and procedures
that are in place for ensuring proper compliance
by the Company and we are not responsible for
any lapses in those compliances on the part of the
Company.

We further report that we have conducted entire
secretarial audit only through online verification and
examination of records, as requested and facilitated
by the Company, due to prevailing COVID situation
for the purpose of issuing this Report.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES
(A firm of Practicing Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
N.RAMANATHAN (Partner)
FCS 6665 CP No. 11084
UDIN: FO0665C000834514

This Report is to be read with our testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral

part of this report.




To

KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

The Members,
Kamarajar Port Limited

(erstwhile Ennore Port Limited)

Chennai

Our report of even date is to be read along with this
letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the
responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on
our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and
processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records.
We believe that the processes and practices,

Place : Chennai
Date: 26.08.2021

ANNEXURE -A

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained
the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate
and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management.
Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES
(A firm of Practicing Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
N.RAMANATHAN (Partner)
FCS 6665 CP No. 11084
UDIN: F0O0665C000834514

This Report is to be read with our testimony of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral
part of this report.
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Annexure-V

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH
RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULE, 2014

A)
(i)

(a)

(ii)

Conservation of Energy:

steps taken or impact on conservation of
energy:

To ensure effective utilization of electrical
energy, M/s.Greenserve Energy was appointed
for conducting Energy Audit. Pursuant to the
Audit, report was obtained during June 2020.
The following energy conservation measures
were recommended by the auditor.

Arresting of air conditioner duct leakages inside
false ceiling in both 2" and 3" floors of Jawahar
Building at Registered Office during September
2020.

The other recommendations
implemented in the following year.

will  be

Installing of occupancy sensor in toilet and
board rooms and motion sensor in pathway
of chairman corridor and other walkways
to improve the operational effectiveness of
lighting.

Installation of additional 40KW new solar power
plant in signal station and renovation of existing
storage system.

Installing new substation near signal station
which will help in reduction of distribution
losses.

Impacts
Energy Efficient.
Environment friendly.

Reduction in distribution losses leading to
conservation of energy.

steps taken by the Company for utilizing alt
ernate sources of energy:

Around 39,600 KWh (Units) of power has been
generated through Diesel Generator and
around 32,400 KWh (Units) of power has been
generated through solar and the same has been
utilized during the year 2020-21.

The following steps have also been taken for
setting up of solar power plant inside the port.

Solar Energy:

M/sTORP Systems Pvt. Ltd, Chennai was
appointed as a Consultant to carry out the work of
“Preparation of Feasibility Report (FR) for setting
up of Solar Power Plant covering Car Parking Yard
at Kamarajar Port”. The Consultant has submitted
the FR and recommended for installation of
300KW roof top solar power plant with covered
car parking shed on RESCO model to meet the
electrical power requirements of KPL.

(iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation

equipments:
Nil.

B) Technology Absorption:

i)

i)

SAP ERP System

KPL has successfullyimplemented SAP S/4 HANA
1610 ERP system covering various functional
areas like Budget, Accounts & Finance, HR &
Payroll, Material Management, Project Systems,
etc.

Plans are being drawn to migrate / upgrade
the SAP system to the latest version i.e. SAP S/4
HANA 2020 during the FY 2021-22.

This will enhance the overall IT utilization and
take KPL forward in terms of increasing the
overall productivity, enhance the customer
services, service level commitments, utilization
of resources in optimal level, etc.

Benefits

Business processes and functionalities of HR/
Payroll, Finance & Accounting, Purchase &
Contracts and Project Systems (WBS), Employee
Requests/Claim and Loan processes are
made online through Employee Self Service
(ESS) Portal. These had resulted in increased
transactional efficiency and productivity leading
to cost reduction.
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iii) In case of imported technology (imported

a)

b)

c)

during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year)

The details of imported:

Not applicable

technology

The year of import:
Not applicable

Whether the technology been fully absorbed:
Not applicable

Place: Chennai
Date: 26.08.2021

d)

If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reason thereof :
Not applicable

iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and

9

Development:
NIL

Foreign Exchange Earnings & outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings is Nil and Foreign
Exchange outflow is Rs.97.07 Crores towards
debt services of Foreign Currency Loan and
Purchase of Mobile X-ray machine.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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Annexure- VI

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.0 BRIEF STATEMENT ON COMPANY’S
PHILOSOPHY ON THE CODE OF GOVERNANCE

We believe that Corporate Governance is not merely
compliance check point but a framework designed
to inspire confidence in the Board and the external
stakeholders with respect to the Company’s business.
To sustain this confidence, we are voluntarily
attaching the Report on Corporate Governance. The
members of our Audit committee maintain a strong
oversight of the financial reporting process, the audit
process, the Company’s system of internal controls
and compliance with laws and regulations.

2.0 Composition and category of the Board of
Directors as on 31.03.2021.

2.1 Changes in Board of Directors during FY
2020-21:
Sl. Nature of
Name
no Change
D Cessation
1 Shri Cyril C George weef 04092020
. . Appointment*
2 Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar, LR.T.S. wef04.09.2020
Appointment*
3 Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma wef10.112020
Appointment*
4 Smt. Sarla Balagopal, |.R.T.S. (Retd.) wef10.11.2020

* Subsequently regularized at the AGM held on 16.12.2020

2.2 No. of Board Meetings held with dates of
the Meeting:

Sl.
No LA Category During the financial year 2020-21, 6 (Six) Board
e Chairman-cum- meetings were held on 11.05.2020, 29.06.2020,
1 Shri Sunil Paliwal, [.A.S . .
Managing Director 09.09.2020, 10.11.2020, 05.03.2021 and 30.03. 2021.
2 Shri P. Raveendran, .R.T.S. Nominee Director 2.3 Meeti dA d duri h
5 Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar, Nominee Director .3 Meetings and Attendance during the year
|.RTS. Attendance of each member along with
4 | ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao Non- official Part time Chairmanship/Membership of the Audit Committee
E:;:ez:g:r;)a?tlfnfr (AC) and Stakeholder Relationship Committee (SRC)
- offici i s L .
5 | Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma (Independent) Director of Public Limited Companies (including KPL) as per
s | SmtSarlaBalagopal, IRTS. | Non- official Part time the data/details made available during their tenure
(Retd.) (Independent) Director in the Company/Committee is given below:
No. of Board .
1 Celig vl Other a::\lr%szfa(l:loé?)mlt;?:s
o duringthe | No.ofBoard | LastAGM | .. . P
. Designation of the . Directorship as
Name of Director . tenure of Meeting attended « .
Director : on31*March | AsMember | As Chairman
respective Attended
. . 2021 Ason31* | Ason31*
Director in F.Y. h h
2020-21 March 2021 | March 2021
Ce o Chairman- cum- AC-KPL
Shri Sunil Paliwal Managing Director 6 6 Yes 3 SRC-KPL AC-SCL
Shri P. Raveendran Nominee Director 6 6 Yes 1 AC-KPL SRC-KPL
i AC-SCL
. . Nominee Director . .
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar (w.e. 04.09.2020) 4 4 Yes 3 Nil Nil
R Nominee Director
Shri Cyril C George (upto 04.09.2020) NA NA NA NA
Shri V.M.V. Subba Rao Independent Director Yes 1 Nil AC-KPL
Independent Director AC-KPL .
Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma (wef10.11.2020) 3 3 Yes 1 AC-DCI Nil
Independent Director . AC-KPL .
Smt. Sarla Balagopal (wef10.11.2020) 2 2 Yes Nil Nil

Notes: KPL-Kamarajar Port Limited, SCL - Sethusamudram Corporation Limited, DCI-Dredging Corporation of India Limited
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3.0 AUDIT COMMITTEE

The role, terms of reference, Composition of the
Audit Committee is in accordance with Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions.
Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit
Committee. Shri M. Gunasekaran, General Manager
(Finance) cum CFO acts as the Nodal Officer to
the Audit Committee. Head of Finance, Internal
Auditors, Statutory Auditors and Senior Executives
from various functions were invited in the Audit
Committee meetings for interacting with the
members of the Audit Committee.

A. Composition of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprised
of the following members as on 31.03.2021:

ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao - Chairman
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member
Shri P. Raveendran - Member
Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma - Member
Smt. Sarla Balagopal - Member

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year:

During the year 2020-21, three Audit Committee
meetings were held on 29.06.2020, 10.11 2020 and
05.03 2021.

C. The details of members including change,
if any, in their tenure, number of meetings
held during the year and attendance of the
members are as under:

o Pf Attendance by
Meeting Members
Members held
rin
Al No. of
tenure . %
meetings
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao 3 3 100
Shri Sunil Paliwal 3 3 100
Shri P. Raveendran 3 3 100
Capt Anoop Kumar Sharma 1 1 100
(From 10.11.2020)
Smt. Sarla Balagopal
(From 10.11.2020) ! ! 100

4.0 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The role, terms of reference and composition of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
in accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and other

applicable provisions. The Company Secretary acts
as Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

A. Composition of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
comprised of the following Members as on

31.3.2021:

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma - Chairman
Shri P. Raveendran - Member
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member
Smt. Sarla Balagopal - Member

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year 2020-21, two Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings were held on
29.06.2020 and 10.11.2020.

C. The details of members including change,
if any, in their tenure, number of meetings

held during the year and attendance of the
members are as under:

No.of | Attendance by
Meetings Members
Members held
during N°',°f %
tenure meetings
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao
(Up to 10.11.2020) 2 2 100
Shri Cyril C George
(From 11.05.2020 Up to 1 1 100
04.09.2020)
Shri P. Raveendran 2 2 100
Shri Sunil Paliwal 2 2 100
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar
(From 09.09.2020 and up to 1 1 100
10.11.2020)

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma and Smt. Sarla Balagopal
was inducted in this committee by the Board in
its meeting held on 10.11.2020 subsequent to
Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting.

Remuneration received by Functional Directors

Details of remuneration of functional directors of
the Company paid for the financial year 2020-21:
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Salary & Other |  Bonus/
Name of the Directors | Allowances | Commission | Total (Rs.)
(Rs.) | PRP (Rs.)
Shri Sunil Paliwal | 49,77,911/- 49,77911/-*

* The total remuneration mentioned above does not include
value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961 and Terminal Benefits.

5.0 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Stakeholder Relationship Committee looks into
redressal of complaints/grievances of bondholders
pertaining to non receipt of interest/transfer/
transmission of bonds and other miscellaneous
complaints.The Company Secretary acts as Secretary
to the Stakeholder Relationship Committee

A. Composition of Stakeholder Relationship
Committee

As on 31.03.2021, the Stakeholder Relationship
Committee comprised of the following Members

Shri P. Raveendran - Chairman
Shri Sunil Paliwal - Member
B. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the vyear 2020-21, four Stakeholder
Relationship Committee meetings were held on
29.06.2020, 09.09.2020, 10.11.2020, and 05.03.2021.
C. The details of members including change,

if any, in their tenure, number of meetings
held during the year and attendance of the

members are as under:

Attendance by
Entitled to Members
Members attend No. of %
meetings
Shri P. Raveendran 4 4 100
Shri Sunil Paliwal 4 4 100

6.0 BOARD OF LEVEL COMMITTEE ON CSR
AND SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT

The role, terms of reference and composition of the
Committee is in accordance with Companies Act, 2013
and other applicable provisions. Shri P. Radhakrishnan,
DGM(C) acts as the Nodal Officer. The Company
Secretary acts as Secretary to the CSR Committee.

A. Composition of Board Level Committee on
CSR and Sustainability Development

TheBoardLevel Committee on CSRand Sustainability
Development of the Company comprised of the
following members as on 31.03.2021:

Shri Sunil Paliwal - Chairman
Shri P. Raveendran - Member
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar - Member
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao - Member

B. Meetings and Attendance during the year

During the year under review, four Meetings of the

Committee on CSR and Sustainable Development

were held on 11.05.2020, 09.09.2020, 10.11.2020

and 05.03.2021.

C. The details of members including change,
if any, in their tenure, number of meetings

held during the year and attendance of the
members are as under:

. Attendance by
Entitled Members
Members to
attend No. of
. %
meetings
Shri Sunil Paliwal 4 4 100
Shri P. Raveendran 4 4 100
ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao 4 4 100
Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar
(From 09.09.2020) 2 2 100

Shri Cyril C George was inducted in this Committee
by the Board in its meeting held on 11.05.2020
subsequent to the CSR meeting.

7.0 GENERAL BODY MEETING

The date, time and place of the AGMs held during
the preceding three years and special resolution
passed thereat are as under:
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Special
Resolution
passed

Year Date Time Place

2019-20 | 16.12.2020 | 11.00 | Through two way
AM Video NIL
Conferencing (VC)
or Other Audio
Visual Means
(OAVM) in Board
Room at the
Registered office
of the Company

- 600001
2018-19 [06.09.2019 | 12.15 [Board Room at the NIL

PM | Registered office
of the Company
- 600001
2017-18 [24.09.2018 | 11.00 |Board Roomatthe|  NIL

AM | Registered office
of the Company
- 600001

8.0 DISCLOSURES

(i) Related Party Transactions are set out in
Note No. 30 (12) to the notes forming part
of the financial statement for the year ended
31*March 2021 in the Annual Report.

(ii) The statutory authorities have also not passed
any strictures or imposed penalty on the
Company under any Act/Rules during the last
three financial years.

(iii) Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy
and no personnel of the Company have been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

(iv) Noitem of expenditure was debited in books of
accounts which was not for the purpose of the
business. Further, no expense was incurred for
the Board of Directors and Top Management
which was personal in nature.

(v) None of the Part time Directors of the Company
have pecuniary relationship or transaction
with the Company.

(vi) Details of administrative & office expenses and
financial expenses for the year under review
and for the previous year are available in
annual accounts.

(vii) The Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company.

9.0 CODE OF CONDUCT

As part of Kamarajar Port’s persisting endeavor to
set a high standard of conduct for its employees
a “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics” has been
laid down for all Board Members and Senior
Management Personnel. All Board Members and
Senior Management personnel have affirmed
compliance with Kamarajar Port’s “Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics” for the financial year 2020-21.

Declaration

All the Board Members and Senior Management
of the Company have confirmed compliance with
‘Code of Business Conduct and Ethics’ for the year
ended 315 March 2021.

for Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-

(Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.)
Chairman-Cum- Managing Director

(DIN:01310101)

Chennai
25-06-2021

10.0 TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS

Your Company has a policy for Training of Directors
for Promoting better understanding of professional
requirements as well as sensitization to professional,
socio-economic and political environment in which
work is done.

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma, Independent Director
attended two days Familiarisation Programme
for Independent Directors conducted by Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs at Goa on 18" and 19t
February 2021.

11.0 REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE
LAWS

The Board has periodically reviewed the compliance
reports of all laws applicable to the Company and
has ensured the compliance of all the applicable
laws.
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12.0 MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Pursuant to listing of Tax Free Bonds in the Bombay
Stock Exchange, the Company intimated half-yearly
financial results/audited annual financial results
during 2020-21 to the Stock Exchange. These
financial results were published in the Business
Standard all Editions. The results were also sent
to Debenture Trustees and Bond Holders and
displayed on the website of the Company www.
kamarajarport.in

Annual Report containing inter-alia, Audited
Accounts, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report, Cash
Flow Statement and other important information

Place: Chennai
Date: 26.08.2021

is circulated to the members and others entitled
thereto. Annual Report and Audited Financial
statements including Directors’ Report and
Auditors’' Report are also available on the web-site.
Website displays major official news releases.

Website of the Company contains Contact details
of Compliance officer, Registrar and Transfer Agent.
The Company has designated Shri M.Gunasekaran,
General Manager (Finance) and Chief Financial
Officer as Compliance Officer for servicing Tax Free
Bond holders. The email id mguna@kplmail.in has

been created for addressing the queries of Bond
holders.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kamarajar Port Limited

Sd/-
Sunil Paliwal, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
(DIN:01310101)
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Suite No. 103, First Floor, Kaveri Complex, No. 96/104, Nungambakkam High Road

(Next to NABARD & ICICI Bank), Nungambakkam, Chennai - 600 034
Phone No. 044 - 4553 0256, 4553 0257/4265 2127
E-mail: csdhanapal@gmail.com, website: www.csdhanapal.com

S Dhanapal & Associates

Practising Company Secretaries

Partners

S.Dhanapal, B.Com. BABL.,FCS

N. Ramanathan, B.Com,, FC.S

Smita Chirimar, M.Com., F.C.S, DCG(ICSI)
R.Pratheepa,B.C.S., A.CS

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Board of Directors

KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
Chennai

We have been informed by the management
of M/s.Kamarajar Port Limited (“the Company”)
that pursuant to strategic disinvestment of entire
shareholding held by Gol in the Company, the
Company has ceased to be a CPSE and accordingly
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
as per the Guidelines issued by the Department
of Public Enterprises (DPE), vide reference no.
18(8)/2005-GM dated 14" May, 2010 are not
mandatory for the financial year ended March
31, 2021; however the Company has, during the
FY 20-21, taken steps to comply with the said
Guidelines on a voluntary basis, limited to the extent
of only those provisions of DPE Guidelines which
are coterminous with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013/SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

We have been engaged by the Company to
examine the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 as per
the Guidelines issued by the Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE), vide reference no. 18(8)/2005-
GM dated 14" May, 2010, on a voluntary basis,
limited to the extent of only those provisions of
DPE Guidelines which are coterminous with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 / SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Place : Chennai
Date: 26.08.2021

Our examination was limited to review the
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company, for ensuring the compliance with
the conditions of Corporate Governance as per
the Guidelines issued by the Department of Public
Enterprises (DPE), vide reference no. 18(8)/2005-GM
dated 14" May, 2010, on a voluntary basis, limited to
the extent of only those provisions of DPE Guidelines
which are coterminous with the provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 / SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion of financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we report
that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance, as per the Guidelines
issued by the Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE), vide reference no. 18(8)/2005-GM dated 14"
May, 2010, on a voluntary basis, limited to the extent
of only those provisions of DPE Guidelines which
are coterminous with the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 / SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, except
appointment of Independent Directors and all
related compliances till 09™" November 2020.

We state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For S DHANAPAL & ASSOCIATES
(A firm of Practicing Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
SMITA CHIRIMAR (Partner)
Membership Number: F8137
CP NO: 9357
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AR J@YNT vg orEr fasmer
FHATAT HETHEITeh FTUTTSIeh AT GIET, <

Indian Audit and Accounts Department
Office of the Director General of Commercial Audit, Chennai

Dated : 26.08.2021
No. DGCA/Chennai/CA-2/KPL Accounts/2-209/2021-22/683

To

The Chairman-cum-Managing Director,
Kamarajar Port Limited,

2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor,
Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai,
Chennai - 600 001

Sub:

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Kamarajar Port Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Sir,

| forward herewith comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements Kamarajar Port Limited for the year ended 31 March
2021.The date of holding of Annual General Meeting may be intimated.

Five copies of Printed Annual Report may be arranged to be forwarded to this office.

Receipt of this letter may kindly be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,

Sd/-
DEVIKA NAYAR

DIRECTOR GENERAL OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT, CHENNAI

Encl: Audit Comment

LT A WA, T/ - 2, 139 HETeHT et 7T, = - 600 034.
Indian Oil Bhavan, Level-2, 139, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Chennai - 600034
Tel: 044-28330147 Fax: 044-28330142/145 e-mail: pdcachennai@cag.gov.in




KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)(b)
of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Kamarajar Port Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2021

The preparation of financial statements of
Kamarajar Port Limited for the year ended 31 March
2021 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
under section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements
under section 143 read with section 129 (4) of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with
the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done
by them vide their Audit Report dated 25 June 2021.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of
the financial statements of Kamarajar Port Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2021 under section
143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access to
the working papers of the statutory auditors and
is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory
auditors and Company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to
highlight the following significant matters under
section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to
my attention and which in my view are necessary
for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related audit report.

(A) Comments on Financial Position
1. Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment: 32,75,798.26
lakh

Port Basin & Entrance Channel: ¥81,442.23 lakh

An amount of ¥5,907.98 lakh towards maintenance
dredging was capitalized under Property, Plant and
Equipment(PPE)and<3,110.51 lakhwas depreciated
out of the capitalised amount during the year. As
per Ministry of Shipping’s Dredging guidelines

for Major Ports, process of removing deposited
material periodically to maintain the operational
depth is termed as maintenance dredging which
is a continuous process. Thus entire amount of
%5,907.98 lakh towards maintenance dredging
being in revenue nature was required to be charged
to Profit and Loss Account. Incorrect capitalisation
of dredging expenditure resulted in overstatement
of Port Basin & Entrance Channel asset and Profit
to the extent of %2,797.47 lakh (%5,907.98 lakh-
%3,110.51 lakh) as on 31 March 2021.

2. Current Assets
Trade Receivables: 37,770.45 lakh

Above includes %2,821.86 lakh receivables towards
Licence Fee from M/sSICAL Iron Ore Terminals
Limited (SIOTL) with which the Company terminated
(March 2021) Licensing Agreement of ‘Modification
of Iron Ore Terminal to Coal Terminal’ (on DBFOT
basis) due to defaultto Lenders by SIOTL. SIOTL could
not attract/find any new investor, nor the parent
Company is willing to/able to extend any more
financial support to SIOTL. Independent Auditors
of SIOTL reported its acute liquidity crunch and cast
doubt on its ability to continue as a going concern.
This was also reproduced in the Audit report (August
2020) of its parent Company. However, provision for
doubtful debts was not created by the Company
for trade receivables from SIOTL. This has resulted
in overstatement of Trade Receivables and Profit by
32,821.86 lakh.

3. Other Non-Current Assets
Advance for Capital Expenditure: 37,328.63 lakh

Above includes %¥4,509.50 lakh towards Advance for
Capital Expenditure to M/s. Hindustan Construction
Company Limited (HCC). The Company had lost the
Arbitration proceedings (2003 and 2004) to recover
%4,509.50 lakh from HCC and petitions to set aside
the Arbitration awards were also dismissed by High
Court of Madras (2017 and 2019). As such recovery
of advance from HCC is very remote considering




21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

legal case history and elapse of significant time.
Hence, a provision for doubtful debt of ¥4,509.50
lakh was expected to be created by the Company.
However, non-existence of provision resulted in
overstatement of Advance for Capital Expenditure
and Profit by ¥4,509.50 lakh.

(B) Independent Auditors Report

KPL implemented (May 2018) SAP ERP system
covering various functional areas like Budget,
Accounts & Finance, HR and Payroll, Material
Management, Project System etc. for processing all

business transactions. Audit observed that despite
implementing SAP ERP system, Management
processed some of the accounting entries outside
the SAP ERP system and included the same in the
financial statements. Accounting entries amounting
to ¥477.43 lakh were transferred from Budget
Accounts to Capital Work in Progress outside the
SAP system. This was not disclosed in Statutory
Auditors report resulting in non-compliance of
CAG’s directions under section 143 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
DEVIKA NAYAR

DIRECTOR GENERAL OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT, CHENNAI

Place: Chennai
Date: 26.08.2021
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MANAGEMENT REPLIES TO THE COMMENTS OF CAG UNDER SEC. 143 (6) (B)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF KAMARAJAR PORT
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2021.

C & AG COMMENTS

MANAGEMENT REPLIES

1. Non-Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment: ¥2,75,798.26 lakh
- Port Basin & Entrance Channel: ¥81,442.23 lakh.

An amount of ¥5,907.98 lakh towards maintenance
dredging was capitalized under Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE) and ¥3,110.51 lakh was depreciated
out of the capitalised amount during the year. As
per Ministry of Shipping’s Dredging guidelines
for Major Ports, process of removing deposited
material periodically to maintain the operational
depth is termed as maintenance dredging which is a
continuous process. Thus entire amount of ¥5,907.98
lakh towards maintenance dredging being inrevenue
nature was required to be charged to Profit and
Loss Account. Incorrect capitalisation of dredging
expenditure resulted in overstatement of Port Basin
& Entrance Channel asset and Profit to the extent of
32,797.47 lakh (%5,907.98 lakh- %3,110.51 lakh) as on
31 March 2021.

During theyear 2020-21, KPL carried out maintenance
dredging through Dredging Corporation of India
amounting to Rs.5907.88 lakh based on the study
carried out by IIT, Madras at the instance of KPL.

As per Ministry’s Dredging Guidelines, “the sediment
quantity or approximate reduction of available depth
over a period of time can be estimated, which is required
to be removed periodically to maintain the operational
depth. This process of removing the deposited material is
termed as Maintenance Dredging, which is a continuous
process depending on the water body characteristics”
and nowhere stated that “incurred every year and
being revenue in nature”

From the above, it is clear that Maintenance Dredging
may be carried out periodically but need not be every
year and also depending on sediments accumulation
/ the water body characteristics.

Kamarajar Port (unlike other ports such as Kolkatta,
Haldia and Cochin which require maintenance
dredging every year as per their water body
characteristics) carries out maintenance dredging
once the accumulation of sediment quantity crosses
the tolerance limit in maintaining the operational
depth. KPL had carried out Maintenance dredging
in FY 2020-21 and accounted as per Ind AS, ie.
capitalized and depreciated based on life of the Asset.

As per Para No.6. Definition under Ind AS 16,

Property, Plant and Equipment are tangible items
that:

(a) are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes; and

(b) are expected to be used during more than one
period

As per Para No.7 of Recognition of the asset:

7. The cost of an item of property, plant and

equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and

only if:

(a) it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow the entity; and

(b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably
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C & AG COMMENTS

MANAGEMENT REPLIES

Depreciation:

43. Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated
separately

Maintenance Dredging was carried out at various
places viz., Approach Channel, Entrance Channel and
alongside of various berths. As per the Technical study
of In-house team, certain locations viz. Approach
Channel, Entrance channel, Harbour basin etc.
accumulate sediments which need annual dredging
and inside harbour areas like alongside jetties of CB1,
CB2, GCB, Container Terminal, Multi-cargo terminal,
SIOTL etc. are having economic benefits of two years.
Accordingly, the quantity arrived was 1.544 million
cum. out of 2.955 million cu.m. (for both set of
locations of one year and two years) for calculation of
depreciation amounting to Rs.3110.51 lakhs for both
locations.

Hence, the capitalisation of Maintenance Dredging

and depreciation claimed thereon was on the basis
of Technical study and Ind AS 16.

2. Current Assets
Trade Receivables: ¥7,770.45 lakh

Above includes %2,821.86 lakh receivables towards
Licence Fee from M/s.SICAL Iron Ore Terminals
Limited (SIOTL) with which the Company terminated
(March 2021) Licensing Agreement of ‘Modification
of Iron Ore Terminal to Coal Terminal’ (on DBFOT
basis) due to default to Lenders by SIOTL. SIOTL could
not attract/find any new investor, nor the parent
Company is willing to/able to extend any more
financial support to SIOTL. Independent Auditors of
SIOTL reported its acute liquidity crunch and cast
doubt on its ability to continue as a going concern.
This was also reproduced in the Audit report (August
2020) of its parent Company. However, provision for
doubtful debts was not created by the Company
for trade receivables from SIOTL. This has resulted
in overstatement of Trade Receivables and Profit by
%2,821.86 lakh.

M/s.Yes Bank, lead lenders to the SIOTL project, has
invoked the provision of 5.1 of Substitution Agreement
which deals with the Termination upon occurrence of
Financial default. Consequently, KPL issued “Notice of
Intent to Terminate”on 21.12.2020 with Remedy period
of 90 days as per 22.3.3 of LA. During the remedy period,
SIOTL has neither cured the default nor Yes Bank, the
lenders have withdrawn the Notice. Upon the expiry
of the remedy period, KPL has initiated the termination
process as per clause 22.3.5 of LA and appointed IT
Madras, as the Condition Surveyor.

As per the process of termination specified in LA, the
compensation payable shall be the aggregate fair
value, as determined by the Expert being a reputed
valuer, of Transfer Assets LESS amount, if any due to
the Licensor from the Licensee under the Provisions
of the Agreement as per Clause 25.3 of LA.

Hence, as per the agreement, KPL is confident
of recovering the dues after finalisation of “Final
compensation’

As the termination process has started during the
last month of financial year 2020-21, the stated Trade
Receivables would be realised after determining the
Final compensation amount payable to the Licensee
/ Lenders.

Since the recovery of entire outstanding amount is
covered under the provisions of License Agreement,
the dues have been considered good and no
provision for doubtful debt was made.
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C & AG COMMENTS

MANAGEMENT REPLIES

3. Other Non-Current Assets
Advance for Capital Expenditure: ¥7,328.63 lakh

Above includes %4,509.50 lakh towards Advance for
Capital Expenditure to M/s.Hindustan Construction
Company Limited (HCC). The Company had lost the
Arbitration proceedings (2003 and 2004) to recover
%4,509.50 lakh from HCC and petitions to set aside
the Arbitration awards were also dismissed by High
Court of Madras (2017 and 2019). As such recovery of
advance from HCC is very remote considering legal
case history and elapse of significant time. Hence,
a provision for doubtful debt of ¥4,509.50 lakh was
expected to be created by the Company. However,
non-existence of provision resulted in overstatement
of Advance for Capital Expenditure and Profit by
%4,509.50 lakh.

The Audit may please note that the said amounts
were originally claimed as counter claims and or
alleged excess payments to the Contractor (in the
Running account Bills) in an arbitration filed by the
then Project Execution Agent, i.e Chennai Port Trust
during the FY 1998-2001 and the matter not yet
reached its finality. It is stated that Rs.45.06 Crore was
shown as “Advance for Capital Expenditure” carried
from the earlier Financial years also and there was
no movement during the year 2020-21. It is further
stated the status of the cases are pending before
Division Bench, Honourable High Court of Madras.

As and when the finality is reached as per the Court
direction, necessary adjustment entries would be
made in the year of final verdict. In case, provision
is made, it will be capitalised and not charged to
P & L account and thus the overstatement of profit of
Rs.4509.50 lakhs does not arise.

(B) Independent Auditors Report

KPL implemented (May 2018) SAP ERP system
covering various functional areas like Budget,
Accounts & Finance, HR and Payroll, Material
Management, Project System etc. for processing all
business transactions. Audit observed that despite
implementing SAP ERP system, Management
processed some of the accounting entries outside
the SAP ERP system and included the same in the
financial statements. Accounting entries amounting
to 477.43 lakh were transferred from Budget
Accounts to Capital Work in Progress outside the
SAP system. This was not disclosed in Statutory
Auditors report resulting in non-compliance of CAG's
directions under section 143 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The comment was referred to the Statutory Auditors
for their remark.
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B. THIAGARAJAN & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members Kamarajar Port Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying Ind
AS financial statements of Kamarajar
Port Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise  the Balance Sheet as at
315t March 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date including summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March
2021, the profit and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit of the financial
statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together

with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matters
4. Reference is invited to Note 30(18) regarding

management’s evaluation of the impact of
the prevailing and emerging situation and
circumstances arising out of Covid-19 virus
which have had an impact on people’s health
and on our society as a whole, as well as on
the operational and financial performance of
organizations,

Reference is invited to Note 4(a) regarding
pending conveyance deed/registration deeds
for several of the immovable properties
obtained by the Company from Government/
Government  owned entities. Further,
consideration/ compensation payable to various
agencies is yet to be finalized and have not been
provided for,

Reference is invited to Note 11 regarding excess
payments of Rs.4509.49 Lakhs made to project
contractors included in Other Assets - Non-
Current and not capitalized till date pending
disputes referred to High Court of Madras.

Reference is invited to Note 30(16) regarding
balances of Trade Receivable, term Loans and
Advances, GST input credit, Advance tax and
Tax deducted at source and Trade Payables as at
315t March 2021 to the extent not subsequently
adjusted/paid are subject to confirmation and
reconciliation.
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invited to Note 30(15)(iii)(a)
regarding initiation of arbitration proceedings
by one of the BOT operators against the
Company during the year stating various claims
amounting to a sum of Rs.1180.12 Crores in
respect of which counter claims have been filed
by the Company and arbitrators appointed by
both parties and the status of the arbitration
proceedings as at the year end. Accordingly, for
reasons mentioned in the said Note, no provision
for the claims raised by the BOT operator is
considered necessary as at the year end.

Reference is invited to Note 30(15)(iii)(b)
regarding termination notice issued to one of
the BOT operators during the year in response to
the lenders of the BOT operator initiating action
of financial default as per the loan agreement
to the BOT operator. Accordingly, for reasons
mentioned in the said Note, no provision for the
same is considered necessary as at the year end.
10. Reference is invited to Note 10 regarding
balance of MAT Credit Entitlement amounting
to Rs.43,538.45 Lakhs as at the year end, which

11.

in management’s estimates, will be recovered
through utilization of such balances in future
years.

Reference is invited to Note 8 - Loans and
Advances regarding advances to employees
(House Building Advance) termed as secured, in
respect of which necessary creation of charge of
security is in process for a sum aggregating to
Rs.202.45 Lakhs as at the year end.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters
referred to Paragraphs 7 to 11 above.

Key Audit Matters
12. Key audit matters are those matters that, in

our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

S
Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s response

No.

Accuracy of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosures of revenues
and other related balances in view of
adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”(new revenue
accounting standard)

The application of the new revenue
accounting standard involves certain
key judgements relating to identification
of distinct performance obligations,
determination of transaction price of
the identified performance obligations.
The application of the new revenue
accounting standard involves certain
key judgements relating to identification
of distinct performance obligations and
determination of transaction price of
the identified performance obligations.

We evaluated management’s process to identify the impact
of adoption of the new standard and tested key controls by
selecting a sample of continuing and new contracts, and
tested the operating effectiveness of the internal control,
relating to identification of the distinct performance
obligations and determination of transaction price. We
also carried out a combination of procedures involving
enquiry and observation, reperformance and inspection of
evidence in respect of operation of these controls.

We performed the following procedures on the selected
samples:

= Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance
obligations in these contracts.

= Compared these performance obligations with that
identified by the Company.

= Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the
transaction price including any variable consideration to
verify the transaction price used to compute revenue
and to test the basis of estimation of the variable
consideration.




21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21

No. Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s response

of direct/indirect taxes including MAT
Credit entitlements, pre-paid taxes and
CENVAT recoverable which are pending
for future set-offs/adjudication.

2 Uncertain Direct/indirect tax positions | Our in-house expert has reviewed the nature of the
and recoverability of tax receivables | amounts recoverable, the sustainability and the likelihood of
as at March 31, 2021, assets in respect | recoverability upon final resolution.

Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

13. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible
for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board Report including Annexures
to Board’s Report and Annual report on CSR
Activities but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

14. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

15. If, based on the work we have performed on the
other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

16. The Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board Report including Annexures to Board'’s
Report and Annual report on CSR Activities
and Information to Shareholders is expected to
be made available to us after that date. When
we read the reports which, are expected to
be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

17.

18.

19.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income,
changesin equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In  preparing the financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

with governance.



20.

21.

22.

KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and toissue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in
the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial
controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for

23

24.

expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management

= Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation

. We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance
with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. From the matters communicated
with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most
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significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements

25.

26.

27.

As required under section 143(5) of the Act,
2013, We give in the Annexure A, our report
on the directions/sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 (“The order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section 11 of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the Annexure B, a statement on the matters
specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account;

Place: Chennai
Date: 25" June 2021

d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representation
received from the directors, as on
31t March, 2021 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of sub section
(2) of section 164 of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial control over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such control, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure C" Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s
internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations onits financial position
in its standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has made provision,
as required under the applicable law
or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For B. Thiagarajan & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Sd/-

Ram Srinivasan
Partner
M. No. 220112

UDIN : 21220112AAAABO8554
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B. THIAGARAJAN & Co.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ANNEXURE - ATO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of ourIndependent Auditors Report of even date on the Financial Statement of Kamarajar
Port Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.

1

Whether the Company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If no, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of accounts along with the financial
implications, if any, may be stated

The Company has system in place to process all
the accounting transactions through IT system.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/
interest etc. made by a lender to the Company due
to the Company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes,
the financial impact may be stated

There are no cases of restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loan/
interest etc. made by a lender to the Company
due to the Company’s inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific
schemes from Central/State agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of Deviation

During the year under review, the Company has
not received funds for specific schemes from
Central/State agencies.

1.

(a)

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of ourIndependent Auditors Report of even date on the Financial Statement of Kamarajar
Port Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Company is maintaining proper records
including quantitative details of fixed assets.
In our opinion, the records require further
improvement with respect to updating of the
situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a program of verification
to cover all the items of fixed assets in a
phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, fixed assets were
physically verified by the management
during the vyear. According to the
information and explanations given to us,
no material discrepancies were noticed on

(c) TheCompanyownsland measuring 2,787.27
acres acquired from TIDCO (950.00 acres),
TNEB (1092.20 acres), Salt Department,
Ministry of Commerce, Government of India
(712.42 acres) and Government of Tamil
Nadu (47.87 acres), which are under the
possession of the Company. Further, out
of the total land area owned, 2,008.34 acres
including 297.98 acres procured from TIDCO,
995.05 acres from TANGEDCO, 682.66 acres
from Salt Department have been registered
in the name of the Company and patta has
been obtained for 32.65 acres procured from
Government of Tamil Nadu and in respect of
the balance, registration is in process.

such verification.
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The Company is engaged in the development and
operation of port and is primarily rendering port
services. It does not hold any inventory of goods.
Thus, Para 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

As informed, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms
orother parties covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, the Company has not given
Loans, guarantees, investments or securities in
violation of Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits
within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 (asamended). Accordingly, provisions
of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

As per the information and explanation given to

us, the Central Government has not prescribed
the maintenance of cost records under sub-

7.

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 for any of the services rendered by the
Company.

(@) According to the information and
explanation given to us and as per our
verification of the records of the Company,
the Company has been generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, goods and services
tax, cess and any other statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities and no material
statutory dues have been outstanding for
more than six months from the due date as
at the year end.

(b) According to the information and
explanation given to us and as per our
verification of the records of the Company,
the following disputed amounts of tax/
duty have not been deposited with
appropriate authorities as at 31 March
2021

Statute Nature of | Amount (In | Period to which the amount relates | Forum to which
dues Lakhs) amount is pending
Income Tax Act, [Income tax Rs.1,264.84 | AY 2005-06 to AY 2012-13,2016-17 Assessing Officer
1961
Income Tax Act, |Income tax Rs.4,631.43| AY 2012-13,2014-15,2017-18 CIT (Appeals)
1961
Income Tax Act, |Income tax Rs.125.08 | AY 2002-03 to AY 2004-05, AY 2012-13 |High Court of
1961 Madras
8. According to information and explanation given provided which is in accordance with requisite

10.

11.

to us and as per our verification of the records of
the Company, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its dues to bank/financial
institution/debenture holders during the year.

The Company has not raised money by way of
Initial Public offer or further public offer. The
term loans raised have been applied for the
purposes for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and as per our verification of the
records of the Company, no fraud either on or
by the Company has been noticed or reported
by its officers or employees during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given by the management,
managerial remuneration has been paid or

12.

13.

14.

approvals mandated by Section 197 read with
scheduleV to the Companies Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and
accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations

given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has
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not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

15. According to the information and explanations
given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company

Place: Chennai
Date: 25" June 2021

has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For B. Thiagarajan & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Sd/-

Ram Srinivasan
Partner
M. No. 220112

UDIN : 21220112AAAABO8554

ANNEXURE - C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of M/s.Kamarajar Port
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021
in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAI').These responsibilitiesinclude the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
ControlsOverFinancialReporting (the“Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to
obtainauditevidenceabouttheadequacy ofthe
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtainedis sufficientand appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external
purposesinaccordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting

Place: Chennai
Date: 25" June 2021

principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion orimproper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31+
March 2021, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B. Thiagarajan & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004371S

Sd/-

Ram Srinivasan
Partner
M. No. 220112

UDIN : 21220112AAAABO8554
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

CIN: U45203TN1999G0I1043322

Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH, 2021

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Note No As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 275798.26 273178.30
(b) Right- of- Use Assets 1509.85 1575.22
(c) Capital work-in-progress 5 15881.07 10761.88
(d) Other intangible assets 6 469.90 608.86
(e) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 4160.07 4148.04
(ii) Loans & Advances 8 378.16 408.74
(iii) Others 9 392.87 360.59
(f) Deferred Tax Assets 10 14721.91 23845.14
(g) Other non-current Assets 1 7478.22 13725.83
Current Assets
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 12 7770.45 4816.59
(ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 13 3201.44 9920.80
(iii) Loans & Advances 8 53.95 52.94
(iv) Others 9 135.11 9.94
(b) Current Tax Assets 14 288.86 388.77
(c) Other Current Assets 11 1875.88 2018.77
Total Assets 334116.00 345820.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 15 30000.00 30000.00
(b) Other Equity 205204.86 207906.66
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 66377.01 77522.09
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 397.00 566.15
(b) Provisions 18 - -
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities 19 8730.10 8334.98
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade payables 20 4600.65 4255.05
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 17 11608.99 12047.45
(b) Current Tax liabilities 14 - -
(c) Other current liabilities 19 5639.50 4154.53
(d) Provisions 18 1557.90 1033.50
Total Equity and Liabilities 334116.00 345820.41
Notes to Accounts 30
Significant Accounting policies 1t03

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Sd/-
SUNIL PALIWAL, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 01310101

Sd/-
M. GUNASEKARAN
Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : 25" June 2021

Sd/-
P. RAVEENDRAN, I.R.T.S.,
Director
DIN: 07640613

Sd/-
JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN
Company Secretary

For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN.004371S

Sd/-
RAM SRINIVASAN
Partner, M.No. 220112
UDIN: 21220112AAAABO8554
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999G01043322

Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2021

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. LG 2] UGt e ]
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Income
i) Revenue From Operations 21 58109.25 70317.50
i) Other Income 22 632.47 3050.49
Total Income 58741.72 73367.99
Expenses
i) Operating Cost 23 7108.26 8320.51
ii) Employee Benefits 24 1893.15 2058.83
iii) Finance Cost 25 6499.05 8464.84
iv) Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 26 8499.44 5213.04
V) Other Expenses 27 5157.83 4250.38
Total expenses 29157.73 28307.60
Profit before exceptional items and tax 29583.99 45060.39
Exceptional Iltems 28 - 261.69
Profit Before Tax 29583.99 44798.70
Less : Tax expense
- Current Tax 10 5200.38 7827.23
- Deferred Tax 10 9112.95 12068.67
Profit for the period from continuing operations 15270.66 24902.81
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
Tax expense of discontinued operations - -
Profit from discontinued operations after tax
| Profit for the year 15270.66 24902.81
1l Other Comprehensive Income
i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 10 25.80 34.88
Less: Income Tax on Above (9.02) (12.19)
- Change in fair value of Equity instruments 12.03 -
Less: Income Tax on Above (1.28) -
Other Comprehensive Income 27.54 22.69
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 15298.20 24925.50
Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 29 5.10 8.31
(2) Diluted 5.10 8.31
Notes to Accounts 30
Significant Accounting policies 1t03

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Sd/-
SUNIL PALIWAL, I.A.S.,
Chairman cum Managing Director
DIN: 01310101

Sd/-
M. GUNASEKARAN

Sd/-
P. RAVEENDRAN, I.R.T.S.,
Director
DIN: 07640613

Sd/-
JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN

Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date : 25" June 2021

For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN.004371S

Sd/-
RAM SRINIVASAN
Partner, M.No. 220112
UDIN: 21220112AAAABO8554
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999G0I1043322
Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2021
(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit/Loss Before Tax 29583.99 44798.68
Adjustment for:-
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets - -
Depreciation 8499.44 5213.04
Interest & Finance Charges 6919.63 7730.35
Short Term gain on Mutual Funds (9.37) (148.83)
Interest Income (462.41) (623.14)
Dividend received - (51.01)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 44531.28 56919.10
Adjustment for:-
Loans & Advances (Non-Current) 30.57 (72.79)
Other Assets (Non-Current) (32.28) (20.37)
Other non-current Assets 6247.61 2991.95
Trade Receivables (2953.86) (1778.43)
Loans & Advances (1.01) 29.19
Other Assets (125.17) 10.25
Other Current Assets 142.90 628.93
Other Financial Liabilities (Non-Current) (169.15) 266.83
Other Non-current Liabilities 395.12 (2445.24)
Trade payables 345.60 (4294.05)
Other Financial Liabilities (438.47) 579.22
Other current liabilities 1484.97 124.40
Provisions 550.19 (309.99)
Current Tax Payments (5100.47) (7341.63)
Net Cash From Operating Activities 44907.83 45287.37
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of PPE (16034.26) (12902.49)
Investments made during the Year - (25.04)
Short Term gain on Mutual Funds 9.37 148.83
Interest Income 462.41 623.14
Dividend received - 51.01
Net Cash From Investing Activities (15562.48) (12104.55)
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid during the Year (18000.00) (9041.65)
Loans raised during the year - -
Loans repaid during the year (11145.08) (9673.96)
Interest & Finance Charges (6919.63) (7730.35)
Net Cash From Financing Activities (36064.71) (26445.96)
D. Net changes in Cash & Cash equivalents (6719.36) 6736.86
E. Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note No 13) 9920.80 3183.94
F. Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note No 13) 3201.44 9920.80
For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
sd/- sd/- For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,
SUNIL PALIWAL, I.A.S., P. RAVEENDRAN, I.R.T.S., Chartered Accountants,
Chairman cum Managing Director Director FRN . 0043715
DIN: 01310101 DIN: 07640613
Sd/-
Sd/- Sd/- RAM SRINIVASAN
M. GUNASEKARAN JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN Partner, M.No. 220112
Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer Company Secretary UDIN: 21220112AAAABO8554

Place : Chennai

Date : 25" June 2021 @
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Statement of Changes In Equity Balance as at 31t March, 2021

(Rupees in lakhs)

Balance as at April 1, 2021

Changes in share capital during the year

Balance as at Mar 31, 2021

30,000

0.00

30,000

Balance as at April 1,2020

Changes in share capital during the year

Balance as at Mar 31, 2020

30,000 0.00 30,000
Other Equity
For the year ended 31t March, 2021
Reserves and Surplus Other Components of Equity
Debenture Remeasurement
Particulars Redemption | General Retained | of Net Defined FVTOCI - Total
Reserve Reserve Earnings | benefit Liability/ | Investments
Asset
(Rupees in lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 6267.37 | 7902.00 | 195741.56 (42.51) (1961.76) | 207906.66
Changes in accounting policy prior period errors 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 15270.66 0.00 0.00| 15270.66
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 16.79 10.75 27.54
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 862.93 0.00 (862.93) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Dividend -F.Y.2019-20 0.00 0.00 | (18000.00) 0.00 0.00 | (18000.00)
Balance at the end of the reporting period 7130.30 | 7902.00 | 192149.29 (25.73) (1951.01) | 205204.86

Pursuant to Regulation 16 of the SEBI Debt Regulations and Section 71 C of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company creates Debenture
/ Bond Redemption Reserve (DRR) upto 25% of the value of bonds / debentures issued through public issue during the maturity period
of such bonds / debentures. Accordingly, during the year, the Company has created DRR amounting to Rs.8,62,92,983/- (Previous year

Rs.8,62,92,983/-).
Other Equity
For the year ended 31% March, 2020
Reserves and Surplus Other Components of Equity
Debenture Remeasurement
Particulars Redemption | General Retained | of NetDefined | FVTOCI- Total
Reserve | Reserve | Earnings | benefit Liability/ | Investments
Asset
(Rupees in lakhs)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 5404.44 | 7902.00 180776.87 (19.82) (1961.76) | 192101.73
Changes in accounting policy prior period 0.00 0.00 (33.50) 0.00 0.00 (33.50)
errors
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 24902.81 0.00 0.00 24902.81
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 0.00 0.00 (22.69) 0.00 (22.69)
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 862.93 0.00 (862.93) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Final Dividend (Incl DDT) - F.Y. 2018-19 0.00 0.00 (9041.68) 0.00 0.00 (9041.68)
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Balance at the end of the reporting period 6267.37 | 7902.00 | 195741.57 (42.51) (1961.76) | 207906.66
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KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED
CIN: U45203TN1999G0I1043322
Regd. Office: 2" Floor (North wing) & 3" Floor, Jawahar Building, 17, Rajaji Salai, Chennai - 600 001.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information:

Kamarajar Port Limited is a Public Limited Company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company
is operating mostly on landlord port model limiting
its functions to overall planning, development,
mobilization of investments for the development
of port and common infrastructure facilities. The
development and operations of the terminals are
mostly entrusted to private operators/captive users.

2, Basis of Preparation:

The Company has adopted Ind-AS, in accordance
with Notification dated February 16,2015 issued by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
with effect from April 01, 2016 with a transition date
of April 01, 2015.

All amounts included in the financial statements are
reported in Indian rupees (Rupees in Lacs) except
equity shares, which are expressed in numbers.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Use of estimates and judgment:

The preparation of stand-alone financial statements
of the Company requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.

3.2. Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian
rupees, the national currency of India, which is the
functional currency of the Company.

3.3. Revenue Recognition:

1) Revenue from services is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable
net of discounts and excluding taxes and

duties. Revenue from service rendered will be
recognised upon completion of services.Revenue
is recognised when following conditions are met

i) the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

ii) It is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the entity;

iii) the costs incurred for the transaction and
the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

iv) No significant uncertainty exists as to its
collection.

Revenue stream includes:
i) Vessel Related Income.
ii) Cargo related income.

iii) Revenue share and Licence fee arising from
Leasing of land and waterfront on BOT and
other port users / captive users.

iv) Composite Tariff.

Revenue recognition in respect of each stream of
revenue is described below:

i) Vessel Related income

Vessel related income consists of income from
handling of the vessels. Revenue attributable
to Vessel related operations are recognized on
completion of the specific services.

ii) Cargo related income

Cargo related income consists of income from
rendering services with respect to cargo and are
recognised on completion of related services

iii) Leasing of land and waterfront on BOT/
Captive use basis.

a) Revenue share from BOT operators is
calculated at the quoted % on the gross
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revenue as per concession / licence
agreement on accrual basis up to end of the
financial year.

b) Income from Operating Lease which include
escalation clause in line with the general
inflation trends is accounted as per terms of
the contract.

c) Income from other Operating Lease is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of lease.

d) Contingent Rent is recognized as income in
the period in which they accrue.

iv)] Composite Tariff

Composite Tariff represents the income earned
at a composite tariff for the cargo handled by
captive users.

2) Dividendincomefrominvestmentsisrecognized
when the Company’s right to receive payment is
established and it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to the Company and the amount of income
can be measured reliably.

3) a. Interest income from financial instruments
is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash flows
through the expected life of the financial
instruments to that instrument’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

b. Interestincome on belated/disputed revenue
are recognised on realization basis.

3.4. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. Costs directly attributable to acquisition are
capitalized until the property, plant and equipment

are ready for use, as intended by the Management.
The Company depreciates property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
is recognized as an asset if, and only if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The cost of an item
of PPE is the cash price equivalent at the recognition
date.

The cost of an item of PPE comprises:

i) Purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts, rebates, taxes/duties and cess
onwhichinput credit for capital goods is availed.

ii) Costs directly attributable to bringing the PPE to
the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

iii) The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

The amounts becoming payable by the Company
on account of uncontested arbitral awards on
project claims and interest on such awards up to the
date of commissioning of the asset are capitalized
in the year of award as additions during the year in
the respective asset category. The interest after the
date of commissioning of the asset on such awards
payable to the contractor is treated as revenue
expenditure in the year of award.

When parts of an item of Property, Plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accountedfor as separate items (major components)
of property, Plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of Property, Plant and equipment and are
stated at net values under “Other Income/ Other




KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

Expenses”in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Company has chosen the cost model for
recognition and this model is applied to all class of
assets. After recognition as an asset, an item of PPE is
carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Major repairs and overhauling costs:

The Company recognises in the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment, the cost of replacing
part of such an item when that cost is incurred, cost
of major repairs/ overhauling if the recognition
criteria are met. The carrying amount of replaced part
is derecognised and the cost of repairs is amortized
over the remaining useful life of the repair/ overhaul.

3.5. Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any.

Identifiable intangible assets are recognized when
the Company controls the asset; it is probable
that future economic benefits expected with the
respective assets will flow to the Company for more
than one economic period; and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably. Amortisation is provided
on Straight Line Method (SLM), which reflect the
management’s estimate of the useful life of the
intangible assets.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed forimpairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

3.6. Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of PPE is
allocated on a straight line basis over its useful life
as prescribed in the manner specified in Schedule I
of Companies Act, 2013.

For each part of an item of PPE with a cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and

useful life of that part is different from remaining part
of the asset, is depreciated separately. Depreciation
on all such items is provided from the date they are
‘Available for Use’ till the date of sale / disposal and
includes amortization of intangible assets. Freehold
landis notdepreciated. Anitem of PPEis derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. In case of port specificassets, the depreciationis
charged at the rate as determined in accordance with
the life of those assets as per the practice prevailing
in Major ports in India. Depreciation on addition in
value of assets due to arbitral award is claimed over
the remaining useful life of the assets from the start
of the financial year in which such award is passed
and accepted.

3.7. Borrowing Costs

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying asset as a part of the
cost of the asset. The Company recognises other
borrowing costs as an expense in the period in
which it incurs them. A qualifying asset is an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale.

To the extent the Company borrows generally and
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, amount of borrowing cost eligible for
capitalization is computed by applying a capitalization
rate to the expenditure incurred. The capitalization
rate is determined based on the weighted average
of borrowing costs, other than borrowings made
specifically towards purchase of a qualifying asset.
Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to
the extent as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

3.8. Foreign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency are recognized at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the reporting date.
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Foreign currency monetary items (except where
realisability of overdue receivable is uncertain) are
converted using the closing rate as defined in the
Ind AS-21. Non-monetary items are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. The
exchange difference gain/loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.9. Government Grant

Government grants are recognised where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all related conditions are complied with. These
grants are classified as grants relating to assets or
revenue based on the nature of the grants.

Grants relating to depreciable assets are initially
recognised as deferred revenue and subsequently
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset generally in the same proportion in which
depreciation is charged on the depreciable assets
acquired out of such contribution. Changes in
estimates are recognised prospectively over the
remaining life of the assets.

Grants in the form of revenue grant are recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Grants in the form of non-monetary assets such as
land and other resources are recognised at fair value
and presented as deferred income which income is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss over
the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption
of the benefit of the underlying asset.

3.10. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. A provision is reversed when it is no longer

probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.11. Contingent Liabilities / Assets:

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but
disclosed in Notes to the Accounts when the
Company has possible obligation due to past events
and existence of the obligation depends upon
occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to
determine whether outflow of economic resources
have become probable. If the outflow becomes
probable then relative provision is recognized in the
financial statements.

Where an entity is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected
to be met by other parties is also treated as a
contingent liability. The entity recognises a provision
for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent Assets:

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial
statement or disclosed in Notes.

3.12. Employee benefits:
i) Defined Benefit Plan:

Provision for gratuity, leave encashment/availment
and other terminal benefits is made on the basis of
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement, comprising actuarial
gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling and the return on plan assets excluding
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interest (if applicable), is reflected immediately in
the statement of financial position with a charge or
credit recognized in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement
recognized in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will
not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Defined Contribution Plan:

Contribution to Provident Fund is recorded as
expenses on accrual basis.

iii) Short Term Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits obligations are
measured on an undiscounted basis and expensed
as the related services are provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid
under short-term employee benefits if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

3.13. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’
as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
and other comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet
approach on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The break-up of the major components of the
deferred tax assets and liabilities as at balance sheet
date is arrived at after setting off deferred tax assets
and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

3.14. Impairment:

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit/Fixed Assets) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
inuse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible,
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually or whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

3.15. Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per equity are computed by dividing
the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing

the net profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings
per equity share and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

3.16. Financial instruments:
i) Non-derivative financial instruments:
Non-derivative financial instruments consist of:

e Financial assets include cash and cash
employee
advances, other advances, security deposits,

equivalents, trade receivables,
investments in equity securities and other
eligible current/non-current assets;

¢ Financial liabilities include long/short-term loan,
borrowings, trade payables, security deposits,
retention monies and other eligible current/
non-current liabilities.

Non derivative financial instruments are
recognized initially at fair value including any
directly attributable transaction costs except
financial instrument measured at fair value
through Statement of Profit and Loss which are
initially measured at fair value. Financial assets
are derecognized when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset have
been transferred. In cases where substantial
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are neither transferred nor retained,
financial assets are derecognized only when
the Company has not retained control over the
financial asset.

Subsequent toinitial recognition, non-derivative
financial instruments are measured as described
below:

a) Investments in, equity securities (other than
Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associates) are
valued at their fair value. These investments
are measured at fair value and changes therein,
other than impairment losses, are recognized
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in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.
The impairment losses, if any, are reclassified
from Other Equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss. When an available for sale financial asset
is derecognized, the related cumulative gain or
loss recognised in Other Equity is transferred to
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
paymentsthatare notquotedinanactive market.
They are presented as current assets, except for
those maturing later than 12 months after the
reporting date which are presented as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are initially
recognized at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Loans and
receivables comprise trade receivables, unbilled
revenues, staff advances, security deposits paid

and other assets.

The Company estimates the un-collectability
of accounts receivable by analysing historical
payment patterns, customer concentrations,
customer
economic trends. If the financial condition of a
customer deteriorates, evaluation is made for
additional allowances required, if any.

credit-worthiness and  current

Trade and other payables:

Trade and other payables are initially recognized
at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest
method. For these financial instruments, the
carrying amounts are approximate fair value due
to the short term maturity of these instruments.

Security Deposits

Security Deposits are initially recognized at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

e) Tax Free Bonds:

Taxfree bondsarerecognizedinitially atfairvalue
net of transaction costs. In subsequent periods,
Tax free bonds are presented at amortised
cost using effective interest method. Interest
expenses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as financial expenses over the life
of the tax free bonds using effective interest
rate.

ii) Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at Fair Value
through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have been affected. For Available for Sale
(AFS) equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e Breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e Probability that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the
disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Certain categories of financial assets such as
trade receivables are assessed for impairment on
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include
companies past experience of collecting payments,
as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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For financial assets that are carried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables; such
impairment loss is reduced through the use of an
allowance account for respective financial asset.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through
Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.

iii) De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or
loss.

3.17. Segment Information

The Chairman cum Managing Director (CMD) of
the Company is identified as the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS-108,
“Operating Segments.” The CMD of the Company
evaluates the segments based on standalone
financial statements. The Management considers
“Port Services” rendered in India as a single
reportable Business/Geographical segment.

3.18. Prior Period

Errors of material amount relating to prior period(s)
are disclosed by a note with nature of prior period
errors, amount of correction of each such prior
period presented retrospectively, to the extent
practicable along with change in basic and diluted
earnings per share. However where retrospective
restatement is not practicable for a particular period
then the circumstances that lead to the existence of
that condition and the description of how and from
where the error is corrected are disclosed in Notes
on Accounts.

3.19. Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.
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As alessee

The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-Use Assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets (“RoU
Assets”) at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any re measurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Company at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are
also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in Section (l) Impairment of non-financial
assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the
Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company

and payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs. In
calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is re measured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of
an option to purchase the underlying asset. Lease
liabilities has been presented under the head
“Other Financial Liabilities” Lease liabilities has
been presented under the head “Other Financial
Liabilities”.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

As a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
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and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the lease.

3.20. Current/Non-Current Classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in
the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is classified as current if:

(a) itis expected to be realized or sold or consumed
in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) it is expected to be realized within twelve
months after the reporting period; or

(d) itis cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current if:

(a) it is expected to be settled in normal
operating cycle;

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c) it is expected to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period;

(d) it has no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition
of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s normal
operating cycle is twelve months.

3.21. Dividend distribution to shareholders:

Dividends proposed by the board of directors
are recognized in the financial statements when
approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.

3.22. Prepaid expenses

Revenue expenditure under each head are
segregated into current year and prepaid wherever
the amount exceeds Rs.20,000/-

3.23. Premia for foreclosure

Premia for foreclosure of loans or any part thereof is
recognised as finance cost in the year in which the
foreclosure is effected.

3.24. Liquidated damages

Liquidated damages is accounted on certainty
basis. In respect of Capital Projects, the same will be
reduced from the cost of asset and in all other cases,
the same is recognized as Other Income.

3.25. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows are reported using the Indirect Method.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, at
banks and demand deposits with banks, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and are considered part of the Company’s
cash management system.
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4, Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rupees in lakhs)

Gross .
carrying . Gro§s Accumulated - . Accuml.lla.ted EpLL
Particulars valueas | Additions D_lsposall carrying depreciation as Depreciation leposall depreciation | Valueas
atApril 1, adjustments |  value as at at April 1, 2020 fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar31, [ atMar31,
Mar 31,2021 2021 2021
2020
Land 63,956.08 - -344|  63,952.64 - - -| 63,952.64
Building, Sheds & Other | 12,324.60 374.99 12,699.59 1,187.39 320.77 1,508.16| 11,191.42
Structures
Wharves & Boundaries | 64,485.91 - 64,485.91 6,577.31 1,536.35 8113.66| 56,372.25
Roads 8919.99| 350235 1242234 1,988.01 605.21 2,593.22| 9,829.12
Railway Track & 7,660.95 944.33 8,605.28 2,259.06 555.19 281424 5791.04
Signalling System
Docks,Seawalls,Piers & | 57,637.86 57,637.86 11,897.20 754.74 12,651.94 | 4498592
Break Water
Navigational Aids 381.67 - 381.67 290.39 6.61 297.00 84.67
Vehicles 184.47 23.78 208.25 4210 21.85 63.95 14430
Electrical Installations 1,862.03 50.58 191261 1,060.40 137.49 1,197.89 71472
Installation For Water, 306.19 306.19 149.76 8.69 158.45 147.74
Communication & Fire
Syst
Electrical Appliance 198.60 3233 230.93 108.60 19.92 128.52 10241
Office Equipment 189.03 2.83 191.86 144.79 15.14 159.93 31.93
Furniture & Fittings 930.80 15.63 946.43 419.57 74.57 49414 45229
Computers 856.65 10.99 867.64 426.84 120.90 547.74 319.91
Port Basin & Entrance 84,920.76 | 5907.98 90,828.74 5,469.99 3,916.52 9,386.51| 81,442.23
Channel
Plant & Machinery 1,099.46 14.24 1,113.69 728.15 160.48 888.63 225.06
Security Asset 65.09 - 65.09 5221 2.29 54.51 10.59
Total | 3,05,980.15| 10,880.03 -3.44| 3,16,856.73 32,801.77 8,256.71 0.00 41,058.48 | 2,75,798.26

The Company owns land measuring 2802.49 acres acquired from GoTN, TNEB, TIDCO and Salt Department, Ministry of Commerce, out of which
2787.27 acres is under possession of the Company and the balance 15.22 acres of land is yet to take possession as these lands were under litigation.
Out of 15.22 acres of land under litigation, two writ petitions W.P. No. 26041/2001 & 26042/2001 were filed by Tmt. Pappa & Thiru P. Selvaraj
against the land acquisition. The Hon'ble High Court of Madras vide its Judgement dated 19.11.2019 quashed the Notification u/.s 4(1) and the
Declaration u/s. 6 of the Land Acquisition Act, in so far as the lands of the petitioners. The court avdvised to initate land acquisition proceedings
afresh by issuing a fresh Notification u/s.4(1) of the Land Acquisitions Act.

The Company has decided not to appeal against the Judgemnt of the Hon'ble High Court of Madras dated 19.11.2019 in W.P. N0.26041/2001 and
26042/2001. The port had remitted an amount of Rs.2.86 lakhs for 6.82 acres of land belonging to Shri P. Selvaraj and Rs.0.58 lakhs for 1.38 acres
of land belonging to Smt. S. Pappa as compensation amount and the same was ordered to be kept in revenue deposit and cumulative of Rs.3.44
lakhs shown under Disposal / adjustments.

The Company procured 950 acres of land from TIDCO, out of which 297.98 acres got registered in the name of the Company and the balance
registration is in progress.

The Company procured 1092.20 acres of land from TANGEDCO, out of which 995.05 acres got registered in the name of the Company and the
balance registration is in progress.

The Company procured 712.42 acres of land from Salt Department, out of which 682.66 acres got registered in the name of the Company and the
balance registration is in progress.

The Company acquired 32.65 acres of land from GoTN and the Patta obtained in the name of Company.’

Land measuring in Sq.m. 134600, 542524, 472460, 384780 (Phase | &ll), 171611, 520000 (total measuring 550.05 acres) allotted to BOT operators viz.
M/s.Ennore Tank Terminals Private Limited, M/s.Chettinad International Coal Terminal Private Limited and M/s. SICAL Iron Ore Terminals Limited,
M/s.Adani Container Terminal Private Limited, M/s.Chettinad Bulk Terminal Private Limited and IOC LNG Private Ltd respectively.
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Property, Plant and Equipment

(Rupees in lakhs)

Grofs Gross Accumulated | Carrying
. carrying " Disposal/ carryin Accun?ul_a e Depreciation | Disposal/ | depreciation | Valueas
Particulars valueas | Additions | - ying depreciation as P P P
atApril 1, adjustments |  value as at at April 1, 2019 fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar31, [ atMar31,
Mar 31,2020 2020 2020
2019
Land 58994.47| 4961.61 0.00| 63,956.08 0 0.00 0.00 0.00| 63,956.08
Building, Sheds & Other | 1122541 1159.99| (60.80) 12,324.60 889.29 300.64 (2.53) 118740 11,137.20
Structures
Wharves & Boundaries | 64369.47 537.50| (421.07)| 64,485.90 5057.52 1532.79 (12.99) 6577.32| 57,908.58
Roads 8558.95 361.04 0.00 8,919.99 1437.06 550.95 0.00 1988.01 6,931.98
Railway Track & 7660.95 0.00 0.00 7,660.95 1765.42 493.64 0.00 2259.06| 5401.89
Signalling System
Docks, Seawalls, Piers & [  57581.56 56.30 0.00| 57,637.86 1114333 753.87 0.00 11897.20| 45,740.66
Break Water
Navigational Aids 381.67 0.00 0.00 381.67 283.77 6.61 0.00 290.38 91.29
Vehicles 111.63 72.84 0.00 184.47 28.19 13.91 0.00 42.10 14237
Electrical Installations 1716.76 145.26 0.00 1,862.02 925.07 13533 0.00 1060.40 801.62
Installation For Water, 306.19 0.00 0.00 306.19 141.08 8.69 0.00 149.77 156.42
Communication & Fire
Syst
Electrical Appliance 192.48 6.12 0.00 198.60 91.67 16.93 0.00 108.60 90.00
Office Equipment 177.98 11.05 0.00 189.03 129.99 14.80 0.00 144.79 4424
Furniture & Fittings 921.56 9.23 0.00 930.79 34545 7411 0.00 419.56 511.23
Computers 849.36 730 0.00 856.66 305.09 121.79 0.00 426.88 429.78
Port Basin & Entrance 7974349 5177.27 0.00| 8492076 4669.10 800.89 0.00 5469.99| 79,450.77
Channel
Plant & Machinery 1099.46 0.00 0.00 1,099.46 567.80 160.35 0.00 728.15 371.31
Security Asset 53.71 1138 0.00 65.09 46.07 6.14 0.00 52.21 12.88
Total | 293945.10| 12516.89| (481.87) 305980.12 2782591 4991.44 (15.52) 32801.82 | 273178.30
4 (a) Right of Use Assets
(Rupees in lakhs)
Gro§s . Gro_ss Accumulated - . Accumt'JIa.ted .
Particulars Q@rrying | o4 ikions D_|sposaI/ carrying depreciation as Depreciation leposaI/ depreciation | Carrying Value as
value as at adjustments | valueasat . fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar31, | atMar 31,2021
April 1, 2020 Mar31,2021 | 2tAPril1,2020 2021
Leased assets 2,002.42 23.16 - 2,025.58 427.20 88.53 - 515.73 1,509.85
of Registered
office
Total 2002.42 23.16 0.00 2025.58 427.20 88.53 0.00 515.73 1509.85
Notes to accounts for the year ended 31t March 2020
4 (a) Right of Use Assets
(Rupees in lakhs)
Gross Gross Accumulated
. . . Accumulated i . o .
Particulars Q@rying | ) dikons leposall carrying depreciation as Depreciation leposall depreciation | Carrying Value as
value as at adjustments | valueasat . fortheyear | adjustments | asatMar31, | atMar31,2020
April1,2019 Mar 31,2020 | 2t APril1,2019 2020
Leased assets 2,002.42 - 2,002.42 341.18 86.02 - 427.20 1,575.22
of Registered
office
Total 2002.42 0.00 0.00 2002.42 341.18 86.02 0.00 427.20 1,575.22
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5. Capital Work- In- Progress

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Balanceasat | Additions/ Adjustments ::rl::::z:l:s/ Balance as at

April 1, 2020 during the year during the year Mar, 31 2021
CWIP - Building, Sheds & Other Structures 1788.67 1410.04 -374.99 2823.73
CWIP - Wharves & Boundaries 6.90 24.15 0.00 31.05
CWIP - Roads 3689.01 1825.03 -3502.35 2011.70
CWIP - Railway Track & Signalling System 3906.05 6427.87 -944.33 9389.59
CWIP - Docks, Seawalls, Piers & Break Water 2415 102.45 -24.15 102.45
CWIP - Navigational Aids 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Vehicles 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Electrical Installations 62.97 0.00 -62.97 0.00
CWIP - Installation For Water, Communication & Fire sys 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Electrical Appliance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Office Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Computers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
CWIP - Port Basin & Entrance Channel 144.58 6029.96 -5907.98 266.56
CWIP - Plant & Machinery 1139.53 116.47 0.00 1256.00
CWIP - Computer software 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total 10761.86 15935.98 (10816.77) 15881.07
Previous Year 9894.56 7952.32 (7085.03) 10761.88

6. Intangible Assets - Software
(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars et
Mar 31, 2021

Gross carrying value as at April 1 1,077.73
Additions 15.23
Disposal/adjustments

Gross carrying value as at March 31 1,092.96
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1 468.86
For the Year 154.21
On Disposal/adjustments

Accumulated depreciation as at March, 31 623.06
Carrying Value as at March 31 469.90
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7. Investments

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Non-Current
Investment in Shares-Quoted
10000 shares in Dredging corporation of India 37.07 25.04
(Market value as at 315t March 2021 - Rs.37,07,500/-, Previ-
ous Year - Rs.14,54,200/-)
Investment in Shares - Unquoted
Equity Shares of Sethusamudram Corporation Ltd 3000.00 3000.00
Less: Provision for Dimunition in value of Investments -3000.00 -3000.00
Equity Shares of Chennai Ennore Port Road Company Ltd 3400.00 3400.00
Equity Shares of Indian Port Rail Corporation Limited 720.00 720.00
Equity Shares of Kanniyakumari Port Limited 2.00 2.00
Investments in Renewable Energy Certificate 1.00 1.00
Total 4160.07 4148.04
Current
Investments in Liquid Funds 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

#. As the dredging work is suspended from 14.09.2007 upon the direction of the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India and as there is no
further progress in the project since then, the Management has provided for dimunition towards the Investments in Equity shares of

Sethusamudram Corporation Limited.

8.Loans & Advances

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Long Term
Secured (considered good)
Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) 367.42 394.59
Advances to Employees (Vehicle Advance) 10.74 14.15
Total 378.16 408.74
Short Term
Secured (considered good)
Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) 42.43 44,98
Advances to Employees (Vehicle Advance) 4.48 5.56
Advances to Employees (Others) 7.05 2.40
Total 53.95 52.94

Advances to Employees (House Building Advance) include Rs.202.45 lakhs being advances extended to 16
employees for which Memo of Deposit is pending due to pandemic.
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9, Other Financial Assets

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Long Term
Deposits 392.87 360.59
Interest accrued on:
-Advances to Related Parties 0.00 0.00
Total 392.87 360.59
Short Term
Interest accrued on:
-Short Term Deposits 0.00 9.94
-Advances to Related Parties 0.00 0.00
Income Receivable 135.11 0.00
Total 135.11 9.94

Income receivable represents unbilled port services which was subsequently billed in April 2021.

10. Tax Expense
Tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Current income tax

In respect of current year 5200.38 7827.23
In respect of prior years 0.00 0.00
Sub Total (A) 5200.38 7827.23

Deferred tax expense
In respect of current year 1720.98 6300.85
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) [Net of MAT Credit] 2418.61 5767.82
In respect of Earlier Years - MAT Credit no longer available 4973.36 0.00
Sub Total (B) 9112.95 12068.67
Total (A+B) 14313.33 19895.90

Tax recognised in other comprehensive income

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020

Defined benefit plan acturial gains (losses) 9.02 12.19
Change in fairvalue of Equity instruments 1.28 0.00
Total 10.30 12.19

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Profit before tax for the Year 29558.19 44763.82
Income Tax expense calculated @34.944% 10328.81 15641.98
Add/(Less) - Adjustments for
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation (5,200.73) (6,715.53)
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining 793.46 810.54
taxable profit
Effect of previously unrecognised deductible temporary (211.48) -
differences now recognised as deferred tax assets(Net)
Effect of MAT Credit Adjustment in the Current Year relating 8,537.67 7,513.30
to MAT Credit recognised in earlier years
Others adjustments 65.61 2,645.60
Income Tax Expense recognised in Statement of P&L 14,313.34 19,895.90

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
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Movement in deferred tax balances during the year along with cateogry wise break up
(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in profit & Recognised As at
April 1, 2020 loss in OCI Mar 31, 2021

Property, plant and equipment (28,831.69) (1,879.14) (30,710.83)
Employee benefits 6.79 122.29 (9.02) 120.06
TDS Disallowance - -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 45418 454,18
MAT Credit Entitlement * 50,930.42 (7,391.97) 43,538.45
Others 237.12 (237.12) (0.00)
Dimunition in Investments 1,048.32 1,048.32
Upfront Development Charges - 272.98 272.98
Change in fair value of Equity - - (1.28) (1.28)
instruments

Total 23,845.14 (9,112.96) (10.30) 14,721.90

The Company is availing tax benefits under Sec.80 IA of the IT Act for ETTPL, CIBTPL & GCB and the same is expiring in
FY 2021-22. Hence the Company is liable to pay under MAT for these three enterprises. Considering the Business Plan,
the Company has drawn for next five years, the Revenue and Profits is liable for payment of Tax at normal rates from
FY 2022-23 and the Company is confident in availing the accumlated MAT Credit Entitlements.

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars Balance as at Recognised in Recognised As at
April 1,2019 profit & loss in OCI Mar 31, 2020
Property, plant and equipment (22,520.84) (6,310.85) (28,831.69)
Employee benefits (0.95) (4.45) 12.19 6.79
TDS Disallowance - - -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 449.81 437 45418
MAT Credit Entitlement * 56,698.24 (5,767.82) 50,930.42
Others 237.12 - 23712
Dimunition in Investments 1,038.24 10.08 1,048.32
Total 35,901.62 (12,068.66) 12.19 23,845.14
11. Other Assets
(Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Non-Current
Advance to Contractors 0.00 0.00
Advance for Capital Expenditure 7328.63 13134.55
Prepaid Lease Rental 0.00 0.00
Deferred Employee Cost 149.59 137.78
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Security Deposits 0.00 0.00
Advance against Arbitration Award 0.00 0.00
Balance with Government Authorities 0.00 453.49
Total 7478.22 13725.83
Current
Advance to Contractors 1058.22 971.86
Prepaid Lease Rental 0.00 0.00
Prepaid Expenses 29.73 96.30
GST Input Credit 725.82 761.92
Deferred Employee Cost 0.00 0.00
Other Assets 62.11 188.69
Total 1875.88 2018.77

Advance for Capital expenditure under Non-current includes Rs.4509.50 lakhs being excess payment to Project
contractors referred to High Court of Madras at the time of taken over the Assets and liabilities from Chennai Port Trust on

22.06.2001.
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12. Trade Receivables (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Trade receivables
Debtors outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the
date they become due for payment
- Unsecured - Considered good 3528.07 854.82
- Doubtful 1299.74 1299.74
Other debtors (Less than six months)
- Unsecured - Considered good 424237 3961.76
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts -1299.74 -1299.74
Total 7770.45 4816.59
13. Cash & Cash Equivalents (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Cash on hand 0.00 0.00
Cheques, Drafts on hand 0.00 0.00
Balances with Banks 3201.44 2920.80
Sub-total (A) 3201.44 2920.80
Other Bank Balances
- Term Deposit
- Less than 3 months 0.00 0.00
- More than 3 months but less than 12 months 0.00 7000.00
Sub-total (B) 0.00 7000.00
Total 3201.44 9920.80
14. Current Tax Assets (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source 71106.47 66006.00
Provision for Income Tax -70817.61 -65617.23
Total 288.86 388.77
15. Equity Share Capital (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Authorized
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
500,000,000 equity shares 50,000.00 50,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each
300,000,000 equity shares 30,000.00 30,000.00
30,000.00 30,000.00
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Reconciliation of Share Capital:

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021
No of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares 300000000 3000000000
Add: -No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed during the year 0 0
Closing balance 300000000 3000000000
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2020
No of Shares Amount
Opening Equity Shares 300000000 3000000000
Add: -No. of Shares, Share Capital issued/ subscribed during the year 0 0
Closing balance 300000000 3000000000
Shares in the Company held by shareholder holding more than 5 percent
Name of the Shareholder % As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Chennai Port Trust 100% 30,000 30,000

Government of India disinvested its entire Equity shares held in the Company to Chennai Port Trust through Share

Purchase Agreement entered on 25.03.2020.

16. Borrowings

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020

SECURED - LONG TERM

Term Loan

Chennai Port Trust 20506.25 22807.50

Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank 0.00 8868.90

Tax Free Bonds

(i) Series 2012-13 9429.68 9416.85

(ii) Series 2013-14 36441.08 36428.84
Total 66377.01 77522.09

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds

(i) Redeemable at par, 829334 Nos of 10 Year Bonds of Face
value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to Rs.82,93,34,000/-
are due on 25.03.2023 and 117156 Nos of 15 Year
bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to
Rs.11,71,56,000/- are due on 25.03.2028 with interest
rates @ 7.51% and 7.67% to Retail Investors and 7.01%
and 7.17% to others respectively, payable annually. The
bonds are secured against the assets of the Company
viz. Small Craft Jetty - 1, 2 and 3 and General Cargo Berth
pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed registered
on 25.03.2013.

(i) Redeemable at par, 794951 Nos of 10 Year
Bonds of Face value - Rs.1000/- each amounting to
Rs.79,49,51,000/- are due on 25.03.2024 and 1916630
Nos of 15 Year bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/- each
amounting to Rs.191,66,30,000/- are due on 25.03.2029
and 943142 Nos of 20 Year Bonds of Face Value - Rs.1000/-

each amount to Rs.94,31,42,000/- are due on 25.03.2034
with interest rates @ 8.61%, 9% and 9% respectively to
Retail Investors and 8.36%, 8.75% and 8.75% respectively
to others, payable annually. The bonds are secured
against the assets of the Company viz. North Break Water
pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed registered
on 19.03.2014.

Term loan from Chennai Port Trust

Term Loan due to Chennai Port Trust converted at the
time of taken over of assets & liabilities in the year 2001-
02 and is repayable in 60 Equated Quarterly instalments
commencing from 30.06.2012. The instalments are paid
up to date during this period. The above loan is secured
by hypothecation of specifically earmarked immovable
fixed assets of the Company. The Company has borrowed
an additional amount of Rs.70 crs and Rs 20 crs on
18.06.2018 and 29.09.2018 respectively on the same
terms and conditions of the original loan.
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Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank

Axis Bank has sanctioned Foreign Currency Loan (FCL)
100 USD Million on 30.03.2017 against Trade receivables
@ interest rate of 6M Libor Plus 195 BPS repayable within
Five Year including one year moratorium. The Company has
availed 47 USD Million and the Company during the year
2017-18. The Company also hedged the 6M Libor Rate in
excess of 250 basis points (bps) has been hedged in order to
protect Interest Rate Risk.

17. Other Financial Liabilities

Overdraft Facility from State Bank of India

State Bank of India sanctioned clean Overdraft facilities of
Rs.50 Crores towards Fund Based and Rs.10 Crores towards
Non-fund based limits @ One year MCLR Plus 0.15%. The
Company has entered loan agreement on 315 January, 2020.

However, no facilities were availed as on 31t March 2021.

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Long Term
Security Deposits 385.57 275.97
Retention Money Payable 11.43 290.18
Total 397.00 566.15
Short term
Current maturies of long term debt
- Chennai Port Trust 2301.25 2301.25
- Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Bank 8656.41 8935.25
Security Deposits 139.58 260.63
Retention Money Payable 382.09 350.98
Amount Payable to Employees 0.48 0.48
Other Liabilities 129.18 198.86
Total 11608.99 12047.45
18. Provisions (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Non- Current
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 0.00 0.00
Gratuity 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00
Current
FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Leave Encashment 51.80 7.65
Gratuity 15.24 11.79
Performance Related Pay 100.00 200.00
Sub Total (A) 167.04 219.44
OTHER
Expenses
- Revenue 1061.00 748.79
- Capital 329.86 65.27
Sub Total (B) 1390.86 814.06
Total(A+B) 1557.90 1033.50
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19. Other Liabilities

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020
Non-Current
Income Received in Advance 6449.43 6956.78
Advance Lease Charges 1710.27 781.21
Other Liabilities 0.00 0.00
Deferred Fair Valuation Gain - Security Deposits 570.40 588.85
Government Grant 0.00 8.14
Total 8730.10 8334.98
Current
Income Received in Advance 866.75 814.61
Other Statutory Payables 1865.91 1224.36
Advance Received from Customers 2714.79 1981.23
Advance Lease Charges 79.79 45.00
Other Liabilities 112.26 89.33
Total 5639.50 4154.53

Income received in advance of Rs.6449.43 lakhs under Non-Current includes an amount from Indian Oil LNG Private
Limited towards upfront licence fees for 30 years for 5,20,000 sq.m. Land allotted for the construction of LNG Terminal as

per the Licence Agreement dated 31t July 2015.
20. Trade Payables

(Rupees in lakhs)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2021 As at Mar 31, 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro and small scale Industrial Undertaking(s). 28.12 0.00

(Due over 30 days Rs.28.12 lakhs) *

Total outstanding dues of Medium scale Industrial Undertaking(s). (Due 0.00 0.00

over 30 days " Nil/-)

Others 4572.53 4255.05
Total 4600.65 4255.05

* Rs.13.82 lakhs disputed interest due thereon
21. Revenue From Operations (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020

Lease Income

Composite Tariff on Coal 16306.12 21361.49

Estate Income 3806.72 4473.35

Revenue Share 18440.33 19182.64

Marine Services

Vessel Related Income 14316.75 17616.88

Cargo Related Service

Wharfage 4236.70 6922.01

Royalty 909.87 622.36

Other Operating Revenues

Other Services 92.76 138.76
Total 58109.25 70317.50
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(Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31,2020
Interest from Banks 320.24 415.85
Interest on Staff Advances 34.75 4261
Interest - Others 107.42 164.68
Short Term Gain from Mutual Fund 9.37 148.83
Dividend received 0.00 51.01
Other non operating income
Sale of Tender Documents 0.00 0.08
Personnel & Vehicle Entry Pass 70.99 65.76
Liquidated Damages 0.00 1892.30
Other Income 89.70 269.37
Total 632.47 3050.49
23. Operating Cost (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Time Charter Crafts 3125.54 3293.86
Consultancy Services - Operations 175.54 364.85
Power & Water charges 214.60 215.90
Environment 295.91 473.75
Fuel Expense 664.88 769.46
Manning Services 609.32 646.55
Survey & Maintenance Dredging 118.02 102.70
Repairs and Maintenance 938.92 977.25
Incentive 685.16 1231.23
Insurance 280.37 244.96
Total 7108.26 8320.51
24, Employee Benefits (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Salaries and Wages 1406.66 1400.68
Contribution to Provident Fund 128.82 117.17
Staff Welfare expenses 38.81 21.98
Performance Related Pay 0.00 152.99
Employee Medical expenses 52.84 75.30
Terminal Benefits 266.02 290.71
Total 1893.15 2058.83
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25. Finance Cost

(Rupees in lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Interest Expense :
- From Banks 437.70 1038.42
- Tax Free Bonds - 2012-13 686.91 686.11
- Tax Free Bonds - 2013-14 3234.23 3225.18
- Others 2560.78 2780.64
Other Borrowing Costs :
- Tax Free Bond Expenses 8.77 9.32
Net loss / -Gain on Foreign currency transaction and translation to the -429.34 725.17
extent treated as Borrowing costs.
Total 6499.05 8464.84
26. Depreciation And Amortization Expenses (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Depreciation / Amortisation for the year
Tangible Assets 8256.71 4975.92
Right- of- Use Assets 88.53 86.02
Intagible Assets 154.21 151.10
Impairment Expenses 0.00 0.00
Total 8499.44 5213.04
27.Other Expenses (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
AMC - Software Expenses 71.57 65.52
Auditors' remuneration
- Statutory audit 6.00 3.00
- Tax Audit Fees 1.00 0.50
- Payment for other Services 0.45 0.50
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.60 0.30
Books and periodicals 243 2.75
Electricity & Water Charges 128.75 122.86
Legal & Professional Charges 190.24 165.46
Miscellaneous Expense 78.92 124.42
Printing and stationery 14.69 17.19
Rent, Rates & Taxes 73.94 55.38
Safety & security expenses 137233 1277.89
Seminars & conference expenses 2.20 15.64
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses* 2140.66 810.54
Subscription & Membership fees 152.01 119.58
Communication Expenses 55.47 62.22
Travelling and conveyance 8.29 44.71
Vehicle running expenses 275.15 294.73
Advertising and promotional expenses 26.92 47.59
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Loss 0.00 688.16
R & M Office 426.21 331.44
Donations & Contributions 130.00 0.00
Total 5157.83 4250.38

*CSR Expenses includes carried forward unspent amount of Rs.12.93 Crore of previous years.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

(@) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year : Rs.810.00 lakhs

(b) Amount spent during the year on :
(Rupees in lakhs)
S Particulars In Cash WOEOEEIE N Total
No cash
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) | on purposes other than (i) above 1857.29 283.38 2140.66
Total 1857.29 283.38 2140.66
28. Exceptional Items (Rupees in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Interest paid on Arbitration/ Service tax 0.00 144.27
Service Tax Deposit - Dispute settlement 0.00 117.42
Total 0.00 261.69
29, Earnings per Share
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1529819643 2492549819
Weighted average number of shares - Basic 300000000 300000000
Weighted average number of shares - Diluted 300000000 300000000
Earnings per Share - Basic 5.10 8.31
Earnings per Share - Diluted 5.10 8.31
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lll of the Companies Act, 2013
(Rupees in Lakhs)

1. Commitments:

3. Additional information pursuant to Schedule

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to A |Expenditure in Foreign
be executed on Capital Expenditure (net of currency on:
advances) and not provided for Rs.30879.80 i. Professional and ) )
lakhs (Previous Year. Rs.23175.21 lakhs) consultancy fee
2. Payment to the Statutory Auditors ii. Tours and Travels ) )
(Rupees in Lakhs) iii. !ntereS't on FCL' 437.70 | 1038.42
Particulars 2020-21 | 2019-20 including Hedging
Audit Fees 6.00 3.00 iv. Others - -
Tax Audit Fees 1.00 0.50 B |Earnings in Foreign - 15.15
Certification fees 045 0.50 Exchange
Reimbursements:
- Out of Pocket Expenses 0.60 0.30

4. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as at 31 March 2021:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Sl. Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
1 Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier:
a) Principal Amount 28.12 -
b) Interest due thereon 13.82 -
2 | Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount paid Nil Nil
to the supplier beyond the appointed day;
3 | Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;
4 | Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Nil Nil
5 | Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a Nil Nil
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Classification of Vendors into Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been made to the extent information
is available with the Company

Disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards

5.

Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

5.1 Financial Instruments by Categories
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows:
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(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2021)

Financial assets | Financial assets/ Total
. Amortized | / liabilities at fair | liabilities at fair . Total fair
Particulars carrying
cost value through | value through value
value
profit or loss (0]d]
Assets:
Non-current Investment (Ref Note No.7) - 12.03 4148.04 4160.07 4160.07
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Ref Note No.13) 3201.44 - 3201.44 3201.44
Trade Receivable (Ref Note No. 12) 7770.45 - 7770.45 7770.45
Loans and Advances (Ref Note No. 8) 432.12 - 432.12 432.12
Other Financial Assets (Ref Note No. 9) 527.99 527.99 527.99
Liabilities:
Term loan from Chennai Port Trust (Ref Note 22807.50 22807.50 | 22807.50
No.16 & 17)
Tax Free bonds (Ref Note No. 16) 45870.76 45870.76 | 45870.76
Loan from Axis Bank (Ref Note No.16 & 17) 8656.41 - 8656.41 8656.41
Trade Payables (Ref Note No. 20) 4600.65 - 4600.65 4600.65
Other Financial Liabilities (Ref Note No.17) 1048.32 - 1048.32 1048.32
(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2020)
Financial assets | Financial assets/ Total
. Amortized | / liabilities at fair | liabilities at fair . Total fair
Particulars carrying
cost value through | value through I value
profit or loss (o]d] value
Assets:
Non-current Investment (Ref Note No.7) - - 4148.04 4148.04 | 4148.04
Cash & Cash Equivalents (Ref Note No.13) 9920.80 - - 9920.80 | 9920.80
Trade Receivable (Ref Note No. 12) 4816.59 - - 4816.59 | 4816.59
Loans and Advances (Ref Note No. 8) 461.68 - - 461.68 461.68
Other Financial Assets (Ref Note No. 9) 370.54 - - 370.54 370.54
Liabilities:
Term loan from Chennai Port Trust 25108.75 - - 25108.75 | 25108.75
(Ref Note No. 16 & 17)
Tax Free bonds (Ref Note No. 16) 45845.69 - - 45845.69 | 45845.69
Loan from Axis Bank (Ref Note No.16 & 17) 17804.15 - - 17804.15 | 17804.15
Trade Payables (Ref Note No. 20) 1229.15 - - 1229.15| 1229.15
Other Financial Liabilities (Ref Note No.17) 1377.10 137710 1377.10

5.2. FairValue Hierarchy

e Level 1-Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
e Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
o Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following tables presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the year 31.03.2021 For the year 31.03.2020
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level1 | Level2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Investments in unquoted - - 4,123 4,123 - - 4,123 4,123
equity instruments
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5.3 Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposed to limited financial
risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability
of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future
cash flow of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market price.

The Company has interest rate risk as the Market
risk. The Company does not have price risk on its
financial instruments since Company does not have
any derivative financial asset.

Interest Rate Risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company has availed Foreign Currency Loan of
USD 47 Million out of sanctioned loan of USD 100
Million from Axis Bank in four tranches @ LIBOR plus
195 BPS during the year 2017-18. However, LIBOR
rate in excess of 250 basis points (bps) has been
hedged in order to protect Interest Rate Risk.

Further, the Company has interest rate risk on
the loans obtained from Chennai Port Trust as
the annual interest rate reset is pegged to the
movement in MCLR rate of State Bank of India.
As at the reporting date, the interest rate profile
of the Company’s interest-bearing financial
instruments are as follows

(Rupees in Lakhs)

31$t 31st

Particulars Mar 2021 | Mar 2020

Fixed Rate Instruments - -

Financial Asset

- Fixed Deposit with Bank 7000.00

- Employee Advance 425.06 459.27

Financial Liabilities

- Tax Free Bonds 45870.76 | 45845.69
Variable Rate Instruments

- Loan from Chennai Port Trust 22807.50| 25108.75
- Foreign Currency Loan 8656.41 17804.15

b) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation
by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. Since
the Company generally stipulates pre-payment with
respect to its income for major port services, there is
normally no credit offered to anyone. In such cases
there is no credit default risk. However, where the
Company is rendering certain ancillary / support services
the invoices are raised, as and when the services are
rendered and in cases of disagreement on user charges,
licence fee etc. on settlement of disputes and in these
cases, there could be an element of credit default risk.

Trade Receivables

The Company has outstanding trade receivables
amounting to Rs.7770.45 Lakhs and Rs.4816.59
lakhs as of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,
respectively. Trade receivables are typically
unsecured and are derived from revenue accrual
from customers. Since most of the port services
are rendered on pre recovery basis by collecting in
advance, Trade receivable constitutes the unpaid
Revenue dues mostly towards Estate rentals and
allied services. Provision for disputed debts are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and provided
for on a case to case basis.

Credit risk exposure

An age-wise analysis of trade receivables at each
reporting date is summarized below:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Particulars . .
Gross |Impairment| Gross [Impairment
Not past due 3595.45 -| 2791.23
Past due less than 297 - -
three months
Past due more than 643.95 -| 116647

three months but not
more than six months

Past due more than 128349 - 440
six months but not
more than one year

More than one year 3544.33 1299.74| 215457 1299.74

Total | 9070.19 1299.74 | 6116.67| 1299.74
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
on a case to case basis is made in the year when
recoverability is assessed as doubtful based on
the recovery analysis performed by the Company
or is based on likely outcome of disputes over
the interpretation of certain clauses in the
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concessionaire agreements.The Company considers
all other financial assets which are not impaired and
past due for each reporting dates under review are
of good credit quality.

Other financial assets

Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is
considered negligible because our counterparties are
banks. We consider the credit quality of term deposits
with banks which are subjected to the regulatory
oversight of the Reserve Bank of India to be good,
and we review these banking relationships on an
ongoing basis. Credit risk related to employee loans
are considered negligible since loan is secured either as
mortgage of the title deed of the property or by way of
hypothecation of the vehicle for which these loans have
been granted to the employees. Besides, the Company
has appropriation right over the terminal benefits due
to the employees. Therefore, there is no requirement
for impairment provision for these financial assets. We
consider all the above financial assets as at the reporting
dates to be of good credit quality.

c) Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of
monthly and yearly projections. The Company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash
equivalents, cash generated from operations,

We manage our liquidity needs by continuously
monitoring cash inflows and by maintaining
adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash
requirements are compared to available cash in
order to determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirement consists mainly
of resources required to settle trade payables,
expenses payable, employee dues, repayment of
current maturities of loans, etc., arising during the
normal course of business as of each reporting
date. We maintain sufficient balance in cash and
cash equivalents to meet our short term liquidity
requirements.

We assess long term liquidity requirements on
a periodical basis and manage them through
internal accruals. Our non-current liabilities include
borrowings from Chennai Port trust, Tax Free
Bonds, and Foreign Currency Loan from Axis Banks,
Retention money payable and Security deposits.

The table below provides details regarding the
contractual maturities of non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Company
can be required to pay. The table includes both
principal & interest cash flows.

(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2021)

. Less than 6 6 months More than 5
Particulars 1-3 years 3-5 years Total
months to 1 year years

Chennai Port Trust Loan 1150.62 1150.62 4602.48 4602.48 11301.31 22807.51

Loan from Axis bank 4328.25 4328.26 - - - 8656.41

Tax Free Bonds - - 8293.34 - 37577.42 45870.76

Retention money - 382.09 11.43 - - 393.52

Security Deposits 137.87 387.28 - - 525.15

Trade Payables 4600.65 - - 4600.65

Other Liabilities 129.66 - - 129.66

Total 5478.67 10728.95 13294.53 4602.48 48878.73 82983.36
(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2020)

Particulars SOSSUEIG | OMELT D 1-3 years 3-5 years LT Total
months 1 year 5 years

Chennai Port Trust Loan 1150.62 1150.62 4602.48 4602.48 13602.56 25108.76
Loan from Axis bank 4467.63 4467.63 8868.90 - - 17804.16
Tax Free Bonds - - - 8293.34 37552.35 45845.69
Retention money - 350.98 290.18 -1- 641.16
Security Deposits - 260.63 275.97 -]- 536.60
Trade Payables - 1229.15 -- - - 1229.15
Other Liabilities - 199.34 - - - 199.34
Total 5618.25 7658.35 14037.53 12895.82 51154.91 91364.86
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6. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-21 “The Effects of
changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”

The amount of exchange differences (net)
debited to the Statement of Profit & Loss Rs. Nil
(PY. Rs.688.16 Lakhs) under Other Expenses.

7. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-36 “Impairment of assets”

During the year, the Company has reviewed its
Fixed Assets for impairment of assets as per Ind AS-
36 and has observed no impairment of assets in the
current Financial year (Previous year — NIL).

8. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-20 “Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance”

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Grant received for 2020-21 2019-20
Government Grants Nil Nil
Total Grants Received Nil Nil

9. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-19 “Employee Benefits”

A. General description of various employee’s
benefit schemes are as under:

a) Provident Fund:

The Company’s Provident Fund is deposited with
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The
Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund
at pre-determined rate.

b) Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan.
Every employee who has rendered continuous
service of five years or more is entitled to get gratuity
@ 15 days salary (15/26 x last drawn basic pay plus
dearness allowance) for each completed year of
service on superannuation, resignation, termination,
anddisablementorondeath. Atrust has been formed
for this purpose. This scheme is being managed by
the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for which
the Company has taken a Master Policy.

The scheme is funded by the Company and the
contributions are paid to the insurer, i, the Life

Insurance Corporation of India as per the demand
made by them. The recognition of net obligation
for the defined benefit plan and the disclosure of
information as required under Ind AS-19 is made in
accordance with the actuarial valuation report.

¢) Superannuation Scheme:

The Company has implemented a non-contributory
Employee’s Group Superannuation Pension Scheme
which is also managed by LIC of India. Contributions
@ 12% of Basic Pay plus dearness allowance of the
enrolled employee is made to the Corporation.

The contribution to the scheme for the period
is grouped under Employee Cost on accrual
basis. In respect of employees on deputation,
pension contribution is calculated as per lending
organization/Govt. of India Rules and is accounted
for on accrual basis.

d) Leave:

The Company provides for Earned Leave benefits
and Half-Pay Leave to the employees of the
Company, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20
days respectively. The Earned Leave is encashable
once in a calendar year while in service for a period
of maximum 30 days as per eligibility and on
Superannuation, the maximum limited to 300 days.

The liability on Earned leave is recognized on the

basis of actuarial valuation.

B. The summarized position of various defined
benefits recognized in the Statement of Profit
& Loss, Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) and
Balance Sheet & other disclosures are as under:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Gratuity | Leave

Particulars (Funded) | (Funded)
Defined Benefit C.Y. 386.25 377.00
Obligation PY. 354.38 315.72

C.Y. 371.01 325.20
PY. 346.74 303.93

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Funded Status [Surplus/ | C.Y 15.24 51.80
(Deficit)] PY. 7.64 11.79
3y C.Y. 0 0

Effect of asset ceiling
PY. 0 0
Net Defined Benefit C.Y. 15.24 51.80
Assets/(Liabilities) PY. 7.64 11.79
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Movement in defined benefit obligation

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity | Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
] C.Y. 0 0
Settlement cost/(credit)
PY. 0 0
. C.Y. 32.88 44.20
Service Cost (A)
PY. 33.53 16.08
Net Interest on Net|C.Y. 0.52 0.80
Defined Benefit Liability/
Cost Recognized in P&L | C.Y. 33.40 45.00
(A+B) PY. 32.01 14.00

Sensitivity Analysis

(Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2021)

Assumption Change.in Gratuity Leave
Assumption | (Funded) | (Funded)
Discount rate +1.00% 354.28 361.43
-1.00% 423.30 394.06
Salary growth +1.00% 421.83 396.31
rate -1.00% 352.96 359.05
Withdrawal +1.00% 391.00 378.35
rate -1.00% 380.88 375.54

—_

Rupees in Lakhs as of March 31, 2020)

Particulars Gratuity | Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
Defined benefit C.Y. 354.38 315.72
obligation - Beginning of by 272.70 226.48
the year o
) C.Y. 32.88 44.20
Current service cost
PY. 33.53 16.07
C.Y. 23.92 21.31
Interest Cost
PY. 20.88 17.55
. C.Y. 0 0
Benefits Paid
PY. (6.61) 0
Re-measurements - CY. (24.94) (4.23)
actuarial loss/(gain) PY. 33.89 55.61
Defined benefit C.Y. 386.24 377.00
obligation - End of the by 35438 315.72
year -
Movement in plan asset
(Rupees in Lakhs)
. Gratuity | Leave
atidatliie (Funded) | (Funded)
Fairvalue of planassetsat | C.Y. | 34674 |  303.93
beginning of year PY. 25260 | 22127
) C.Y. 23.40 20.52
Interest income
PY. 22.39 19.63
o C.Y. 0 0
Employer contributions
PY. 79.34 64.04
) C.Y. 0 0
Benefits paid
PY. (6.61) 0
Re-measurements — c.y. 0.87 0.76
Return on plan assets PY. (0.99) (1.01)
Fair value of plan assetsat | C.Y. | 371.01 325.20
end of year PY. 346.74 | 303.93

Amount Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity | Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
) Cc.Y. 32.88 44.20
Current service cost

PY. 33.53 16.08
Past Service Cost - Plan | C.Y. 0 0
Amendment PY. 0 0
) ) C.Y. 0 0

Curtailment cost/(credit)
PY. 0 0

Assumption Change.in Gratuity Leave
Assumption | (Funded) | (Funded)
Discount rate +1.00% 325.58 303.25
-1.00% 387.92 329.40
Salary growth +1.00% 386.10 329.33
rate -1.00% 325.68 303.06
Withdrawal +1.00% 358.57 316.75
rate -1.00% 349.70 314.59
Actuarial Assumption
. Gratuit Leave
Particulars (Fundec)l,) (Funded)
Method used C.Y. PUC Puc
PY. PUC PUC
. C.Y. 6.82% 6.82%
Discount rate
PY. 6.75% 6.75%
Rate of salary C.Y. 5% 5%
increase PY. 5% 5%
Rate of returnof | C.Y. 6.82% 6.82%
plan Asset PY. 6.75% 6.75%
Withdrawal Rate CY. | T%to3% 1% to 3%
PY. 1% to 3% 1% to 3%
Retirement Age C.Y. 60 Years 60 Years
PY. 60 Years 60 Years
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Particulars Gratuity Leave
(Funded) | (Funded)
Average Future C.Y. 15.52 15.52
Service
PY. 16.05 16.05
C.Y. IALM IALM
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Mortality rate Table IALM | Table IALM
PY. | (2006-08) | (2006-08)
Table Table
s C.Y | Noexplicit | No explicit
Disability Rate By loading loading

Category of investment in Plan assets

% of fair value of plan
assets

100%

Category of Investment

Insurance Policies

10. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-108:“Operating Segments”

The Company primarily operates in one segment
- Port Services and there is no reportable
Geographical segment either.

The Company derives revenues from the following
customers which accounts for 10 per cent or more
of Company’s revenues. In respect of the other
customers, their individual share is less than 10% of
the Company'’s revenues

(Rupees in Lakhs)

12. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Parties Disclosures”

a. List of Related parties:
Key Managerial Persons:

Name

Designation

Shri Sunil Paliwal, IAS.,

Chairman-cum-Managing
Director

Shri P. Raveendran, IRTS.,

Nominee Director

Shri S. Balaji Arunkumar, IRTS,,

Nominee Director
(w.e.f 04.09.2020)

ShriV.M.V. Subba Rao, FCA,
DISA (ICA)

Independent Director

Capt. Anoop Kumar Sharma

Independent Director
(w.ef. 10.11.2020)

Smt. Sarla Balagopal, IRTS
(Retd.)

Independent Director
(w.e.f. 10.11.2020)

Shri M. Gunasekaran,

General Manager (Finance)
cum CFO

Smt. Jayalakshmi Srinivasan

Company Secretary

Other Entities:

= M/s.Kanniyakumari Port Limited

b. Transaction with Related Parties:

Compensation of key management personnel

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the For the
year ended | year ended

For the year

For the year

Customer ended ended
31 March 2021 | 31 March 2020
TANGEDCO 10880.62 14990.94
NTECL (JV of 7264.55 8338.10
Tangedco & NTPCL)
Ennore Coal 9348.27 12023.54

Terminal Private
Limited (Erstwhile
Chettinad
International Coal
Terminal Pvt Ltd)

11. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard 23 “Borrowing Costs”

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year is Rs. Nil
(Previous Year Rs. Nil ) in the respective carrying
amount of Property, Plant and Equipment / Capital
works in Progress (CWIP).

March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020

Remuneration and Short- 110.95 94.61
term benefits

Post-employment 18.01 8.61
benefits

Other long-term benefits - -
Share-based payments - -
Termination benefits - -
Sitting fee 2.20 -
Total 128.96 103.22

Recovery of Loans & - -
Advances during the year

Advances released during - -
the year

Closing Balance of Loans - -
& Advances
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(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
. ear ended | year ended
Particulars yMarch 31, yMart:h 31,
2021 2020

Interest Paid 2394.50 2758.93
Loan Repaid 2301.25 2301.25
Lease Rent Expenses 36.04 40.31
Project Management 192.21 47.75
Services
Security Deposit - Lease 1.97 193.76
Rent
Upfront Lease Premium 0.27 -
Dividend paid 18000.00 2500.00
CSR Expenses 100.00 -
Manpower 28.90 -
Others 9.13 49.11
Closing Balance of Term 22807.50 25108.75
Loan

13. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
standard (Ind AS) 116 “Leases”

a. Operating lease
i) As aLessee

e Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases excluding upfront

fee payments

(Rupees in Lakhs)

later than 5 years

For the For the
. year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
Not later than 1 year 4.84 15.48
Later than 1 year and not - 11.47

Later than 5 years

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
. year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020
Minimum lease payments 15.48 40.55

Leasing arrangement:

The Company has leased Motor Vehicles for the use
of officials. The lease has been taken for four years.
The Company has leased office premises for 30
years from Chennai Port Trust on upfront premium
lease payments.

ii. Asalessor

e Future minimum
non-cancellable operating lease

lease receivables under

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
. year ended | year ended
Particulars March 31, | March 31,
2021 2020

Not later than 1 year 3085.49 2421.13

Later than 1 year and not 17899.18 14047.20
later than 5 years

Later than 5 years 88239.65 56508.51

e Leasing arrangement:

As per the business model adopted by the
Company, the development, operation, marketing
and maintenance of cargo terminals are left with
the Captive / PPP BOT operators on 30 years Licence
/ Concession Agreement. The Company leased out
water front and land area for development of Berths
through BOT operators / Captive users as per the
Licence / Concession Agreement.

14. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-33“Earnings Per Share (EPS)”

a) BasicEPS

The earnings and weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS
is as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the
For the year ded
Particulars ended March | Y&2r ende
31,2021 March 31,
2020
Profit (loss) for the 15298.20 24925.50
year, attributable to
the owners of the
Company
Earnings used in 15298.20 24925.50
calculation of basic
earnings per share(A)
Weighted average 300000000 300000000
number of ordinary
shares for the purpose
of basic earnings per
share(B)
Basic EPS(A/B) - Rs. 5.10 8.31
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The earnings and weighted average number of

ordinary shares used in the calculation of Diluted

EPS is as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

For the For the
. yearended | year ended
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2021 2020

Profit (loss) for the year, 15298.20 24925.50
attributable to the owners
of the Company
Earnings used in 15298.20 24925.50
calculation of basic
earnings per share(A)
Weighted average number 300000000 [ 300000000
of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings
per share(B)
Basic EPS(A/B) 5.10 8.31

15. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS)-37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”

Contingent Liabilities

(i) Disputed Tax demand:

Disputed tax matters amounting to Rs.98.15 lakhs
(Previous year Rs.910.74 lakhs) are being contested
before Appellate authorities.

(ii) Contract/supply works:

Some of the contractors for construction / supply and
execution of works at our projects have made claims
on the Company aggregating to Rs.10705.37 lakhs
(PreviousYear:Rs.11308.00 lakhs) seeking enhancement
of the contract price, revision of work schedule with
price escalation, compensation for extended period of
work, idle charges etc. These claims are being contested
by the Company as being not admissible in terms of the
provision of the respective contracts. The Company is
pursuing various options under the dispute resolution
mechanism available in the contract for settlement of
these claims.

(iii) (a) Revenue Contracts with PPP

Concessionaires - M/s.AECTPL:
KPL entered into a Concession Agreement with
M/s.Adani Ennore Container Terminal Private Limited
under PPP DFBOT mode on 15.03.2014 for the
Development of Container Terminal for 30 years.

The commercial operation commenced during
October 2017 for Phase land Phase Il of the project is
under construction. Due to delay in commissioning
of Phase I, the Company levied liquidated damages
as per the terms of the Concession Agreement
amounting to Rs.29.60 Crores. The levy of damages
was disputed by the Concessionaire and consequent
to their appealing against the arbitration award
in favour of the Company, the High Court finally
ordered to pay damages to the tune of Rs.10 crores
and the same was deposited by the concessionaire.

Subsequently, the concessionaire had raised
certain disputes and invoked Arbitration clause and
issued the Arbitration notice to the Company. Post
constitution of Arbitration Tribunal on 1% August
2020, claims and counter claims were filed before
the Arbitration Tribunal by both the concessionaire
and the Company.

The nature of disputes and claims by the
concessionaire relate to “Delay in completion of
Phase | and Il alleged to have been attributable to
KPL, questioning the Levy of Liquidated damages,
calling for Refund of 10 cr deposited with KPL,
Non achievement of Minimum Guaranteed Cargo
due to issuance of consultation by KPL’, Change in
Law and consequences of Covid- 19, Rejection of
Financing document by KPL, and non-approval of
Revised project cost, and consequent Interest etc.,
amounting to Rs.1180.12 Crores.

The Company has denied the claims by the
concessionaire in its entirety and has preferred a
counter claims amounting to Rs.167.81 Cores.

The arbitration is in progress as at the year end.

(b) Revenue Contracts with PPP Concessionaires -
M/s.SIOTL:

Kamarajar Port Limited entered into a License
Agreement with M/s.SICAL Iron Ore terminal
Agreement (SIOTL) on 11.7.2016 for “Modification
of existing Iron Ore Terminal to also handle Coal”
under PPP - DBFOT basis. The 27 year concession
period commenced from 20.7.2018. However
due to various problems and difficulties faced by
the SIOTL, the Project could not be completed
and commissioned on the scheduled date. In the
meantime, the Lenders have issued ‘Notice of
Financial Default’ by the SIOTL and requested KPL
to issue Termination Notice by exercising their
rights available under the License Agreement. KPL
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has commenced the Termination process by issuing
a Termination Notice on 22.3.2021 under relevant
provisions of the License Agreement. Since the
Termination of the Agreement is initiated due to the
default of the Licensee (SIOTL), KPL will take over
the project assets on payment of compensation to
the Licensee as specified in Sections 25.3, 4.5V(c),
18.2.3 and 25.6.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities:
(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 | 2019-20

Disputed Tax Demand but not

acknowledged as debt 6021.35 1074

Claims against the Company

?Ic\)ltG?rcknowledged as debt 400.00 834.60

- Contract / supply works 10705.37 | 11308.00
Total | 11105.37 | 12142.60

Claims against Revenue contract | 118012.00 -

with PPP Concessionaires

16. Confirmation of balances:

Trade Receivables/Payables, Term Loans and
Advances, GST input credit/GST and Deposits are
subject to confirmation and Reconciliation.

17. Capital Management:
The Company’s capital comprises equity share
capital, retained earnings and other equity
attributable to equity holders.The primary objective
of Company’s capital management is to maximize
shareholders value. The Company manages its
capital and makes adjustment to it in the light of
the changes in economic and market conditions.
The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. Net debt comprises of long term and short
term borrowings less cash and bank balances.
Equity includes equity share capital and reserves
that are managed as capital. The gearing at the end
of the reporting period was as follows:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Asat31st | Asat31
Particulars March, March,
2021 2020

Total Debt 7733468 | 88758.58
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 3201.44 9920.80
Net Debt 7413324 | 78837.78
Total Equity 235204.86 | 237906.66
Net debt to equity ratio 31.52% 33.14%

18. Note on COVID 19

The World Health Organisation (WHO) has declared
the outbreak of COVID 19 a pandemic, which has led
toinvoke the provisions and powers conferred under the
Disaster Management Act, 2005 by the National Disaster
Management Authority (NDMA) who has issued series
of guidelines including complete lockdown, partial
lockdown, etc., to take effective measures to prevent
the spread of COVID 19 in the country.

However since the Ministry of Ports, Shipping &

Waterways (MoPS&W), Govt. of India, has declared

Port related activities, as essential service for

maintaining supply chain link, the following reliefs

were extended to trade during the period 22" March,

2020 to 3 May, 2020 (lockdown period) as there

was an inevitable impact in the form of delays in

evacuation of cargo, inability to fulfil obligations by
various parties /stakeholders due to the effect on the
downstream services and in order to support the Port

Operators, Port Users and end users:

i) Shipping lines were advised not to impose any
container detention charges (including any
new or additional charge) on import and export
shipments for the period from 22" March 2020 to
14t April, 2020 by DG (Shipping).

i) Force Majeure: The COVID 19 pandemic was
considered as a natural calamity which entitled
the invocation of Force Majeure provisions in
meeting the obligations under various contracts.
The period of completion of any Project under
implementation in PPP mode or otherwise,
was extended including waiver of all penal
consequences with deferment of performance
obligations as per the relevant provisions of
Concession Agreement.

iii) Remission of charges to Port Users:

a) Ports allowed free storage time during the
lockdown period.

b) Ports allowed deferment of April, May & June
2020 months lease rentals/license fees.

¢) No penal charges, demurrage, detention
charges, dwell time charges, anchorage
charges, penal berth hire charges, performance
related penalties, etc were levied during the
lockdown period plus 30 days recovery period.

d) No charges/rentals for allotment of additional
land for temporary storage.
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iv) Remission of charges to PPP Concessionaires:

a) Deferment of April, May & June 2020 months
revenue share/royalty without any interest for
three months or six monthly EMIs at interest
rate equal to RBI 91 days T-Bill.

b) Waiver of lease rentals/license fees for three
months (April, May &June 2020), to the extent the
volume of cargo dropped compared to monthly
average cargo volume of last calendar year, i.e
1%t January 2019 to 31 December, 2019.

¢) No MGT (Minimum Guaranteed Throughput)
obligations during the lockdown period.

d) No penalty for any shortfall in performance
standards during the lockdown period.

e) Allotment of additional storage on temporary
basis without any charge/rental/fees.

For KAMARAJAR PORT LIMITED

v) Vessel Related charges (VRC) from Shipping
Lines: Interest free 60 days deferment of VRC
against submission of Bank Guarantee to Indian
coastal vessels.

Since the pandemic and consequent lockdown have
disturbed the economic activities and the Company
has handled cargo 18% lower than the previous year
and corresponding Operating income has reduced
during the year.

19. Previous year’s figures have been
regrouped wherever necessary.

20. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board
of directors and authorised for issue on 25" June, 2021.

For B. THIAGARAJAN & CO.,

Sd/- sd/-
SUNIL PALIWAL, L.A.S., P. RAVEENDRAN, L.R.T.S., Chartered Accountants,
Chairman cum Managing Director Director FRN . 0043715

DIN: 01310101

Sd/-
M. GUNASEKARAN

Chief Financial Officer & Compliance Officer

DIN : 07640613

Sd/-
JAYALAKSHMI SRINIVASAN
Company Secretary

Sd/-
RAM SRINIVASAN
Partner, M.No. 220112
UDIN: 21220112AAAABO8554

Place : Chennai
Date : 25" June 2021
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Taferd $ATE (SITe] ShaT)
(@) forefrar erard
(i) SATIR FFaTE 20 4600.65 4255.05
(ii) 1= SATIR TG 17 11608.99 12047.45
(& yarfora =Rt raTd 14 - R
(&) 3= rEferd T 19 5639.50 4154.53
[CURIEEIES 18 1557.90 1033.50
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() SHERT TR AT % 9Td TRE A & Wid Foem
fopam ST safara &y,

(ST) T AT ST % 9Td FH § FH a1E 7 & o
AT T R ST T FereTie SRR T 8

317 wft SFATE STTIferd % ®9 H SffeRd et 2

giEferd <k TEERT & fodr sTitaal & Sursiq ud TRt 9
ToReT T H ST ITET o HeA T G Bl 8| hoet B
I qREfeTd <15k 12 W8 8T 2l

3.21. TR h ATHTIT ferawor:

frewren Hed grT wEaTfad amier ot forfi farawor & 99 a=
o ST 2, et aTfiien WL €T & STRTeRehi ST SAAIST
o fear ST R

3.22. gded 99

T 7 W TS o JduT Y H gereh foRm ST 8 o7 sret
7 T £.20,000 & AT BT €, Fea fhAT ST 2

3.23. QOee o forar erfergresh

SRUTT AT 3o Torell 9T o qOrater o ford tfergress S| ad o
for TmTa o T & Treran € St 2, e et e a2

3.24. ufifuifia erferafd

afeFrertfea eafofd srermr st o T 81 dSfrafeisHret
o HeieT , 38 AT ohY AT O 51T fam S 37T 1= Jehtont
o 38 3= I o ® H {11 & STy Bl

3.25. kel UaTE

TR YaITE T e STTE fafer o ST & fopam s 2
Tehe! TATE ER0T o IR ©, AHAT 9 TRl THITAT W
T e, et 8 Tt Tt qun i W g e stfufaed @
BIgHL sehl o a1Y Tt Fguaftafer € qom 3 st it Tehdt
e JUTTeAT ST ST AT ST 2




4. TUt, HIT T TR0

FerchIEell AT TfdaaT 2020-21

(FF AT H)
T THE AV | T e g it 7 T | ania 9o
S fruzm ° v & Cerac : :
T T e, | ufEE i | 79T 1 e, > . TUT31 W, | FoT 31 W,
2020 %1 M, 200 F | 2020t T 2021 & 2021 Ht
Cikl 63,956.08 -344| 6395264 63,952.64
o, AT G AT | 12,32460| 37499 12,699.59 1,187.39 32077 150816 11,191.42
e} 3 et 64,485.91 64,485.91 657731 153635 8,113.66| 56372.25
LR 8919.99| 350235 12422.34 1,988.01 605.21 2593.22| 9,829.12
o ¢ F el et | 7,66095| 94433 8,605.28 2,259.06 555.19 281424|  5791.04
S, 1Y, qead 9 57,637.86 57,637.86 11,897.20 754.74 12,651.94| 44,985.92
T
T SureH 38167 38167 29039 6.61 297.00 84.67
A 184.47 2378 208.25 42.10 2185 63.95 14430
forega e 1,862.03 50.58 191261 1,060.40 137.49 1,197.89 71472
I, T 9 31 et 306.19 306.19 149.76 8.69 15845 147.74
A INE]

oy 3k 198.60 3233 23093 108.60 1992 128.52 10241
T ST 189.03 283 191.86 144.79 15.14 159.93 3193
effer 7 ffe 930.80 15.63 946.43 419557 7457 494.14 452.29
FI 856.65 1099 867.64 426.84 120.90 547.74 31991
T W I W E | 8492076| 5,907.98 90,828.74 546999|  3,916.52 9,386.51| 81,442.23
g et 1,099.46 1424 1,113.69 728.15 160.48 888.63 225.06
T A 65.09 - 65.09 5221 2.29 5451 10.59
7| 3,05,980.15| 10,880.03|  -3.44| 3,16,856.73 32,801.77|  8,256.71 000  41,058.48 | 2,75,798.26
Q) e o T g R, s, e @ T for, arfore weTer & 3wt 2802.49 TR AT 1 i o T 2, o & 2787.27 TR s e St A € S 15.22

kU

S 1 T Al SATRHR STH R ST 2, i 3 e o5 el 21 feriat 15.22 Wb s Bt et el aoar o ft o, St gy i e o fore # < feg AR geeg o,
€. 26041/2001 F 26042/2001 STett T off| AT T 3= AraTerd o (3R Tt 19.11.2019 1 g FHo) et o o aterpreratent 1 sifi 01 w4 o, i sHferren st
HTVTEET /. 4(1) T HOT 3/, 6 T e 2 T =2ATeTere F I SATeren SHfertor ot SHTereferat 4/, 4(1) ot 3 o o ooy SHTerreot et T 2 67 STt fm 2)

T e aerepretl Socg, . 9. 26041/2001 3 26042/2001 3 AT HETH e =TT o 072 FeTieh 19.11.2019 o ot et T sttt ot fofm 1 e o o, St o1 6.82
T o ford 2.86 AT Tl ot TR T Aol O, o o 1,38 TS i 3 ford 0,58 e W 2B R el i o & B1 < off 7o 37 TR i e e 6 T 9 e
T TR 7 3,44 T T 1 el e TS o ST G T

Tt TSI & 950 T v 3ot =, o € 297.98 TS W bt o T o ol 1 & W o 1 S 3 W i RO b sk =l e 2l

T SFoTEHT (SUTASITSSTEaAT)  1092.20 TS it Sl 2, e § 995,05 Uehg {1 bl o 1 o6 Gofie &1 15 ST 1 S 2Bl Sl o 779 SSfieha e o1 156 et Tl ¢l
ST TR T W 712,42 g S ISt 61, TR 9 682.66 T HfH shortt o 19 o Uit 21 1S ST 919 fH 1 sl o A1 el SO bl e <t i @)

AT TS WA 32.65 TS it SAreot foat it st wgr shoeft & A1 o ferat o

134600, 542524, 472460, 384780 (T [ &I1), 171611, 520000 T HieT AH( Fel AY 550.05 THS) 1 YW FAHAIL! HelTereh Hedl TR 0o el g feifiee, Hed <iigars
ST Shic S WIgae fiee U el THaATSeiuet ST 3 <fie faftiee, e oterft shemt Wiz fetfircre, we afiere oo 2fifet fetfiiee 7 Seiie wemsit Trgae fafiee
! mafed fra T




HOT, ST T STHRIOT
(e92 @ H)
VI A TR A | o A g i e B | Smita ae
S iz e waf | fuew : :
feremmn T e, | uftEdR miw | T 7o | 3137, et | TUT31 T, | ToT 31 W7,
2019 MR, 00H | 2019F 8 2020 2020 !
o 5899447| 496161|  000| 63,956.08 0 0.00 0.00 000| 63956.08
LEERISIEE T 1122541 115999| (60.80)|  12,324.60 889.29 300.64 (2.53) 118740| 11,137.20
UCERCEIC] 6436947|  537.50| (421.07)|  64485.90 505752| 153279 (12.99) 6577.32| 57,908.58
W 855895| 36104 000 891999 1437.06 550.95 0.00 198801| 6,931.98
i ¢k 3 fited o 7660.95 000 000 766095 176542 49364 0.00 225006  5401.89
o, a1, T A TS | 5758156 5630|  0.00| 57,637.86 1114333 753.87 000| 11897.20| 45740.66
Afered e 381.67 000| 000 381.67 283.77 6.61 0.00 290.38 91.29
El 111.63 7284 000 184.47 28.19 1391 0.00 4210 14237
ferega e 171676 14526  000|  1,862.02 925.07 13533 0.00 106040| 80162
e, HeIT A A ot 306.19 000| 000 306.19 141.08 8.69 0.00 149.77 156.42
eI
ferega 3R 192.48 612 000 198.60 9167 1693 0.00 108.60 90.00
FAer ST 177.98 11.05] 000 189.03 129.99 14.80 0.00 14479 4424
e ffe 921.56 93| 000 930.79 34545 7411 0.00 41956  511.23
FR 849.36 730 0.00 856.66 305.09 121.79 0.00 42688| 42978
T T S 7974349| 517727|  000|  84,920.76 4669.10 800.89 000  546999| 7945077
W TR 1099.46 000  000| 109946 567.80 160.35 0.00 728.15 37131
T s 53.71 11.38] 000 65.09 46.07 6.14 0.00 5221 12.88
T0| 20394510 12516.89| (481.87)| 30598012 2782591| 499144 (1552)|  32801.82| 27317830
4 (T) T3 ATH
(e wTE H)
e Sl Il UL [N EC N R R ) [P
R O B e B B TAGE | HAEN TR 3o 001 71
AT, 2020 U202 | 2020 e T, 2021 ! ’
Ui T 200242 2316 - 202558 427.20 88.53 - 515.73 1,509.85
1 vErER st
T 200242 23.16 0.00| 2025.58 427.20 88.53 0.00 515.73 1509.85
31 |TH, 2020 <kt THTH o 13 Samen w da
4 (Q) T3 TH I enfiaat
(et T H)
e i e U T T i re—
frem Tl | o | w15, TARE | HAEN TR 3o 09
A, 2019 Y T, 2020 2019 5 T, 2020 A ’
TS Fter 2,002.42 - 200242 341.18 86.02 - 427.20 1,575.22
EIRFETE e
T 2002.42 0.00 0.00|  2002.42 34118 86.02 0.00 427.20 1,575.22
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5. FmTomef sterer TR W) WTRE e (Hiesederg)

(v72 @ 4)
- WO | e, | AR Eu A uREd | aeRtomid | Wwaur 3| A,
2020 % LUlRIEE] PRlETELIRIcE] 2021 %
HSsTATE — W Tl 1788.67 1410.04 -374.99 2823.73
HigecgaTsd! - Miedt  JeRE ATt 6.90 24.15 0.00 31.05
Higsegamdt - w 3689.01 1825.03 -3502.35 2011.70
Heeg TS — (el T () & Tt srorredt 3906.05 6427.87 -944.33 9389.59
HresegaTsd - ST, afe, qeee 3 R 24.15 10245 -24.15 102.45
Hieecg3ed! - ATaiEe UM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
gl — T 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
s - fored weom 62.97 0.00 -62.97 0.00
eSS - S, Ha & 7 JuTet Heem 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hrgecg s - forrd Iuehtr 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Hieecg St — AT ST 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
gy aTs - A 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Heec 3T - T WIS & SR W 144.58 6029.96 -5907.98 266.56
Hrgecgasd! - & o 47 (WRfi) 1139.53 116.47 0.00 1256.00
HreseATTt - FHRIE Ui 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
aRT|  10761.86 1593598 |  (10816.77) 15881.07
TAAT | 9894.56 7952.32|  (7085.03) 10761.88
6. ST ATRAAT - ATFCAT
(& Tt )
foreroT AT 31 W, 2021 T
TR VT Hod AT 1 A Bt 1,077.73
i 15.23
[ERCiEEIRIEE]
The! AUITaHed T9T 31 WL i 1,092.96
wifera e gra e 1 78 @t 468.86
Ty & forr 154.21
[ERCIEREIRIEE RN
ifera Hear gra T 31 A= & 623.06
AUV o TAT 31 WL 6 469.90




7. e
(F72 @mET )
feramor JAT 31 |, 2021 T | AT 31 HTE, 2020 hi
hrdentaic)
I H FEvsga
syt fremdor ferr 10000 917 37.07 25.04
FT 31 A7, 2021 1 AR A - 37,07,500/- FHR, TG 9 -
14,54,200/- T9)
v I Favr-aega
aqesH i fafres W ghael R 3000.00 3000.00
TR ot o qed | BT o forl JTaem -3000.00 -3000.00
I~ TR 91 U fatiee 1 sferdt s 3400.00 3400.00
TR 91¢ 1o o fafiee 1 sferdt s 720.00 720.00
FATHAN I feAfiree gl 2.00 2.00
Fefteruitar Stt SaTOT 8 e 1.00 1.00
JuT 4160.07 4148.04
TAHTT
T ffr o e 0.00 0.00
Ein) 0.00 0.00

#. =ifoh AT SoeH =ATTer % AR 14.09.2007 & Feor st ifira @ 37 qar 3 ai st # 1 3701 1 i el &, Fete § Sqamsn Frm fafies

& gfoard e A FAae W g & o yraem fam R

8. /UT T AW
(o Tt H)
Terawor JT 31 |, 2021 ST | TAT 31 =, 2020 Y
e arater
YIdsd (3TH 7T 741)
AT st A1 (T fmfor s1fim) 367.42 394.59
AT o 10m (areT 1fim) 10.74 14.15
IRT 378.16 408.74
REEIE]
Yidsd (STH A1 741)
SHH=TRET bt 71 (e fmtor srfim) 42.43 44.98
FHeTiET % M (are fin) 4.48 5.56
=TT o 1fm (317) 7.05 2.40
IhT 53.95 52.94

=it st 1w (T8 fmior $1fim) & 16 it s fea ma 202.45 7R S 5 a7 A aftaferd €, e fa o s 6 s s )




FerchIEell AT TfdaaT 2020-21

9. 1= farfiar arrfeaat
(F72 @mEr §)
feramor JAT 31 |, 2021 | AT 31 HTE, 2020 i
et aratar
e (arerfa smm) 392.87 360.59
Iufad I
- Heifere vt it 1M T 0.00 0.00
T 392.87 360.59
g AT
Iufad s
- o Tty e T 0.00 9.94
- Heiferg vt 6t 1fm i w 0.00 0.00
T ST 135.11 0.00
T 135.11 9.94
AT T 37 SA-GEIehd WIS AT 1 FHEuor 2 &, TSt adae a1ifer, 2021 H stk &1
10. T =TT
T I BT o Teraor W Wiegat ITe oY (e Tt H)
feramor JAT 31 |, 2021 HT|  TAT 31 |, 2020 hY
TRIfeAd 3T oY
SaIferd oS o weier i 5200.38 7827.23
o o 35 ity 0.00 0.00
39T (T) 5200.38 7827.23
STEAT L =5
PEIRGELERELRS 1720.98 6300.85
IFTH FHIT L (TITL) [ T shfee] 2418.61 5767.82
& o a1 o Herg  — THULY Shfse 31l 3ueTed el 2 497336 0.00
39 AT () 9112.95 12068.67
I (T 14313.33 19895.90
=T STk 3T | {T=IAT UTH
(e72 rET )
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 Y|  TAT 31 W=, 2020 hi
QAT TGS ST sHifehe @Y (ST 9.02 12.19
et forara o Sfaa 7o & aftads 1.28 0.00
AT 10.30 12.19
TG o o7 ST ST Tl TT@Tehe ATH H e FTeTieha fora ST wemat 2
(=93 @@y H)
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 Y|  TAT 31 W=, 2020 i
ELEAREEIE CRTI) 29558.19 44763.82
ST T hieTd@34.944% 10328.81 15641.98
Srg/(TeT) - AHTA 3
3G AT T T, ST HTIH 8 Th & (5,200.73) (6,715.53)
I oY T TS, S R e Ferieor § 9 el a2 793.46 810.54
& ST-HT=IAT ITH 3 3TEATS ST T THTE S 37 HATEAT L AT (211.48) -
(Frerer) o & 3 Ferfeger bt e
FAHH Y H W THUST A TSI ShT ST ST o 91 5 A= &1 1§ 8,537.67 7,513.30
TS W U R §
T FHRS 65.61 2,645.60
T o BT & TUT § WT-IdT (23 T AT o o9 14,313.34 19,895.90
eI Y eMTiadt & <ot




VMR AR o AT TY <hT TTTer T ATEATI HT IS | e

(572 < 1)
v T AT 1 3T, PN NHTATS H | T9T 31 |, 2021
2020kt HT=IaT ITH &t

U, G451 o T (28,831.69) (1,879.14) (30,710.83)
FHET it 6.79 122.29 (9.02) 120.06
HeGRYE RN o ford e 454.18 454.18
THUS | YT * 50,930.42 (7,391.97) 43,538.45
I 237.12 (237.12) (0.00)
[ECRIEE RO 1,048.32 1,048.32
A o Tam - 272.98 272.98
3ferardt foraat o 3fera go o ufadq - - (1.28) (1.28)
T 23,845.14 (9,112.96) (10.30) 14,721.90

T A, HeTSserdiueT o Sfeffst o forr STTset stferfem st amr 80 HATST o AT L ATHI 1 of T & IR T8 AT forct
¥ 2021-22 T EHTH 2 T&T 3 gafcrd ot 379 i Semt o fordr waedt & tarta (e Y Saeardt 21 st 3 ShTe wie At o for
ST SATIR TSI SR 838 0 forem st g, forctar o 2022-23 § TS o ST HHTT &0 0 3 oh YT o fordl 2 gt A1 shoeft
Gfrd THUS GrE qTAdTe ot o1 Sa | 3T 2l

(572 < 1)
v T AT 1 A, PN S W | Treum 31 W=, 2020
2019kt Hr=rdT aTe &t
TUR, GIF o IUHT (22,520.84) (6,310.85) (28,831.69)
T iy (0.95) (4.45) 12.19 6.79
HETETE RN o ot Trae 449.81 437 454.18
TS HRG g 56,698.24 (5,767.82) 50,930.42
3 237.12 - 237.12
farsT o e 1,038.24 10.08 1,048.32
B 35,901.62 (12,068.66) 12.19 23,845.14
11. 3= Teaat
(773 @ H)
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 ST | TAT 31 W=, 2020 hY
A=
HfaeTeht ot 31w 0.00 0.00
ISft 5y o ford i 7328.63 13134.55
ECERRERIS 0.00 0.00
Sreafira =l dTd 149.59 137.78
eI Sferd gerieT ey -wfasfa e 0.00 0.00
e STl O s 0.00 0.00
G TR o @Te 3 0.00 453.49
T 7478.22 13725.83
TeIfera
Hferererrl =t W 1058.22 971.86
qEa gt WIS 0.00 0.00
qelad 5 29.73 96.30
Segdt :1mTa 9@ 725.82 761.92
AT SHHER] AT 0.00 0.00
= it 62.11 188.69
T 1875.88 2018.77

HASfAd o Sferta gt =22 o ford 313w # 918 4509.50 TE &9 iFferd @ ST aiisHT wisrerehil i i sifers 9rdH € 3t
18 22.06.2001 =T A= UIE 282 | TR I TIATT T TSV A F THT TZTE oo AR bl Fag e fowam mam om




FerchIEell AT TfdaaT 2020-21

12 SITIR IT=T (¥ e )
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 | TAT 31 W=, 2020 hT
SR 9T '
T o forar e fafar & o7 wme srferes 21 @ srarfar o o swforat
T A I
- SAIFerId- ST HHT 7T 3528.07 854.82
- HegTEg 1299.74 1299.74
1 /UM (BT °UTH W &)
- STV~ ST HIAT T 424237 3961.76
TR HORTEaE ST % o1 e -1299.74 -1299.74
7770.45 4816.59
13. TRt o Teha! AHA (TN GREIE)
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 | TAT 31 W=, 2020 HT
BT R ' 0.00 0.00
0, gree T A 0.00 0.00
Sehi o I T 3201.44 2920.80
IU-TIT (T) 3201.44 2920.80
T Seh I T
- T ST
-3 UM HFH 0.00 0.00
- 3 T o 3ferep, fohg 12 W 8 A 0.00 7000.00
3= (=) 0.00 7000.00
3201.44 9920.80
14. TfeAa s ATt (e wray )
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 | TAT 31 W=, 2020 hT
AT T TS HIq I T =T H 71106.47 66006.00
AR o fod TTae -70817.61 -65617.23
288.86 388.77
15. gferret vrem ot (e vt )
Teramor AT 31 WL, 2021 Y| JAT 31 AT, 2020 HT
Tferehd
3ioardl IR 10 ®=- Ifq
500,000,000 3fFreT IR 50,000.00 50,000.00
feifera, Afvea 3 qoia: Y
Fioard TR 10 93- I
300,000,000 3t 3T 30,000.00 30,000.00
30,000.00 30,000.00




IR Ut T HHTT:
F— AT 31 HT, 2021 T
PIERT <kl Tt T
TR 3ferdt IRR 300000000 3000000000
SITE: - S 3t T, i i rafy § fifia st S osh 0 0
U 99 300000000 3000000000
AT 31 AT, 2020 T
IERT <hT WEAT ST

TRITeR ferret I 300000000 3000000000
ST SRR Y we, it orafer # ftfira/sifire S ush 0 0
U 99 300000000 3000000000
5 TferoTa T 27Tereh SATLRUT Y T STITEIh FRT hu-1 H LTHRA I

STITIR T AT % JAT 31 WIS, 2021 S| AT 31 AT, 2020 Y
I U T 100% 30,000 30,000
TR TR A 25.03.2020 T T I 5T AHFN o HTEH § 3hat 7 eTid 3T Sl 3orarel R oh fofiomT =i uid g2 # i fem)
16. SuTiET (3 T )

feraron JAT 31 WI=T, 2021 ST | TAT 31 |, 2020 HY
afaya - S arafer
rafer swor
I U T 20506.25 22807.50
ufereh ofsh | foraeft g1 Hor 0.00 8868.90
HIh ST
(i) H@r 2012-13 9429.68 9416.85
(ii) JEAT 2013-14 36441.08 36428.84
T 66377.01 77522.09

gferea AreH T A-aied- g saas ATt 20 AT 943142 ST 25.03.2034 H U FHawrHi F

(i) T T =T, 82,93,34,000/- F9 3 TR 1000/-
& W Hfehd 7o et 10 v 829334 ST 25.03.2023
&I I € 3T 11,71,56,000/- 1 & TRT F1000/ FI3-
sifer iferd 7o aTet 15 9T 117156 soosy e ot o
1= ATl o ford ShOsT: @7.51% 9 7.67% TS & o 91d,
SR ST Y, 25.03.2028 i 331 1 3 sl 25.03.2013
! USfishd s =T foei o STgerel o SITER ST Al
SATTERIT 37oIT &9 i |- 1, 2 9 3 T WA= Shiili Ml )
i &

(if) T THTE, 79,49,51,000/- F9I 26T TMRT % 1000/-
w0 W 3R qeo ATt 10 W 79495 1549 25.03.2024
T =1 € 31 191,66,30,000/- €93 6t TRT H1000/ TI-
St ifeh Hewr ATt 15 a 1916630 ST 25.03.2029
T& 94,31,42,000/- T 3h1 TR 361000/ TG- ST SAohd 7o

o1 shaeT: @8.61%, 9% T 9% AT & T AT 3T o o
FHRN:8.36%, 8.75% F 8.75% AT &L o §T, TMeh YT
o, Frra 1 3 SuT 19.03.2014 3 USfisha steras = faora
o TS o STFAR HoT hT SR Sreia I TR T
i 8

o UTE T W [T KT

=41 1S 6 T T ford ST =t era < wraifer smor & 2001-
02 H AR o ST oh TV hid oh {H ST g1 A
30.06.2012 ¥ SR B 60 SIR-SRTER el foreatt o <21 21 390
At ¥ Ter fifer 7ok foRedt T STAHTeRaT ST Seh! 81 ST
0T ShOeT shT [RTE: Sfew Sreet TRl o givster grr iavd
1 SOt < FeT 30T o € e o Tl 18.06.2018 729.09.2018
T FRHRT. 70 TS T T 20 TS T T STk TRT IR AT 2l
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ufor e o fareet ger

TfeRTE seh 3 30.03.201 7 3T 6UH TASTTSS ISR Wi 195 sidfiud
T SIS S T AR YT I ek 9 o AR died i ont
o ViAo A 100 JuaSt fferr et FaT ST (Teiee)
Efierd foram 21 S 4 2017-18 i &t 7 47 Juaet ffor

AR €T ek | Srfartorend giaren

A T ook 3 T 99 THETASTR & 0.15%. & T [fer
TN diret o 50 e Ue SA-Hfer ST st d 10 Wi
T ot Tl srferforerd glerem @hepd foram st = 31 ST,
2020 T 30T GHET fofT 8 AT 31 A<l 2021 T el glerem

IBRAT & ST GRT <A1 & SHTaH | Tl o forl 250 SR fofg EISICECIESIRIE
(Sffiem) o SR T 6 T UeASATSs T IeT &t srend +ft foham )
17. 3r= fa=fr g (F T )
feramor JAT 31 |, 2021 | TAT 31 W=, 2020 hT
e arafer
wfavfa e 385.57 275.97
gfermor o 3 11.43 290.18
I 397.00 566.15
oY Frater
el 3rafer sror iyt gitgerRaTe
S-S URE T 2301.25 2301.25
- Uforere o § foraeft g 807 8656.41 8935.25
sfovfr e 139.58 260.63
JTTerRoT & < 382.09 350.98
ST ol oF TRT 0.48 0.48
= Y 129.18 198.86
T 11608.99 12047.45
18. T (¥ ATl H)
Teramor AT 31 WIS, 2021 ShT| TAT 31 A=, 2020 <hi
HA-T=Ifera
HIE aieTt o forer
S ECANECTHEI] 0.00 0.00
HIAN 0.00 0.00
T 0.00 0.00
TeIferd
HIE aiteTst & forr
ITARTIT AhGTRTT 51.80 7.65
A 15.24 11.79
TERH Heiferd A 100.00 200.00
37 1T (T) 167.04 219.44
T
Ep)
- T 1061.00 748.79
- Gsft 329.86 65.27
I I () 1390.86 814.06
JAT(T+aT) 1557.90 1033.50




19. 31 SIard (% @ )
feramor JAT 31 AT, 2021 | TAT 31 W=, 2020 HT
A-T=feAd
AT\ 9 ITH A 6449.43 6956.78
AT UgT T9R 1710.27 781.21
T IFATC 0.00 0.00
AT Sfer e A - wffa e 570.40 588.85
TN S 0.00 8.14
T 8730.10 8334.98
Tt
AT\ 9 I A 866.75 814.61
A= Hiferferes < Tl 1865.91 1224.36
TRt § ITH 31 2714.79 1981.23
AT UgT TR 79.79 45.00
31 I 112.26 89.33
T 5639.50 4154.53

S-SRI o ST 3T 6449.43 TG T o HUH H Zie7 SRt Terurrsit urgale frfes & farish 31 [T 2015 1 g I H
HUEI o AR TAUAst et o fmior & forr arraifed 5,20,000 3 Hiet v & forr 30 o &g 310 133fe 3o & &9 7 TW

iy witaferd 21
20. SATAR T (6 T i)
Teramor AT 31 WL, 2021 Y| JAT 31 AT, 2020 T
TEW F Y T S Ik (IushH) 3 et STARTE 9F TRT (30 ot & 28.12 0.00
fersh aur @ wiferd 28.12 TG ) *
HearH T ST SUSRH (SUSHHT) shl ot STATRTE o7 TRT| (30 T & Ak 0.00 0.00
T ¥ Sferd F TEN/-)
e 4572.53 4255.05
oI 4600.65 4255.05
* 3EH13.82 TG &9 feanfd sarst gfyr
21. IfETET 9 =TT (& S )
31 9T, 2021 ST |31 W=, 2020 ht THTH
ferereon oATH a9 & o a9 & forar
CEE )
HIFAT T HFH Ieh 16306.12 21361.49
HYST A 3806.72 4473.35
T T 18440.33 19182.64
T AaTe
EREIGRECIRCIR) 14316.75 17616.88
HET Aeeft AT
T Y[e 4236.70 6922.01
AU 909.87 622.36
T U ST
=T gaTd 92.76 138.76
Ein 58109.25 70317.50
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22,3777 3T (¥ T )
31 WT=N, 2021 i THTH | 31 |, 2020 Y THTH
o o forar a9 & forar
SR T =TS 320.24 415.85
ERERICIDEIR IS 34.75 4261
AE- T 107.42 164.68
A S W A A A 937 148.83
AT T 0.00 51.01
T 3T IR AT
FrfereT woat i forsht 0.00 0.08
FH1ftieh o ATE T I 70.99 65.76
froffe exfadfa 0.00 1892.30
I A 89.70 269.37
632.47 3050.49
23, U= AT (¥ STl H)
31 WT=L, 2021 h THTH | 31 AT, 2020 HT THTH
o9 % forar 9 & forar
U 1T ke 3125.54 3293.86
w3t e — gfETeT 175.54 364.85
[EECEE KR LI 214.60 215.90
TfeTor 295.91 473.75
YT oI 664.88 769.46
STtk SATaTIHAT AL 609.32 646.55
e o ST feheor 118.02 102.70
STl o S7geeror 938.92 977.25
TreaTed 685.16 1231.23
ElLi 280.37 244.96
7108.26 8320.51
24, HHART TS (T A )
31 W=, 2021 hT THTH | 31 W=, 2020 T THTH
T o forar a9 o forar
I 9 T 1406.66 1400.68
wfersy ffer o avre 128.82 117.17
FHAR FHeToT = 38.81 21.98
FENEREIPLE D) 0.00 152.99
R fafehe == 52.84 75.30
Tarfa gieTT 266.02 290.71
1893.15 2058.83




25, o @ (F T )
frercor 31 |1, 2021 St GHTH | 31 A=, 2020 T THTE
ELEACE] ELEACE]
NS Y :
B-Cok:) 437.70 1038.42
- S ST - 2012-13 686.91 686.11
- U YA - 2013-14 3234.23 3225.18
e 2560.78 2780.64
A= IUTH AT
- SHUH ST 8.77 9.32
[ BT/~ AT fofeaft 1 Hederen o 37K S8 HiT deh Hedaer W S foh 5 -429.34 72517
YT AT o &9 | o= Se
T 6499.05 8464.84
26. U BT & TR =04 (e e )
31 9T, 2021 St GHTH | 31 A=, 2020 Y THTH
Fererem a8 & forr a8 forr
Y o 7T o BTE/qHEIe
LRSI 8256.71 4975.92
Tge-SATH-I ATt 88.53 86.02
3 STt 154.21 151.10
SATHH T 0.00 0.00
Ein) 8499.44 5213.04
27. AT AT EPASECIR:))
- 31 WT=L, 2021 h THTH | 31 AT, 2020 H THTH
a9 & forar a9 & forar
TUHH!- THAI T 71.57 65.52
odterss aTieafires
- mifaferes Gudter 6.00 3.00
- ST T o 1.00 0.50
- 3 it o o WA 045 0.50
- Y I oY 0.60 0.30
NISERCRERIEEIWY 2.43 2.75
[EECEECREIK 12875 122.86
forferer o saTeETRIeh IR 190.24 165.46
fafaear =g 78.92 124.42
50T 9 TR At 14.69 17.19
qTET, 3L o T 73.94 55.38
LT F |1 137233 1277.89
YR F ke = 2.20 15.64
U TSR ST 3 2140.66 810.54
HIVEH o HEEIaT [T 152.01 119.58
AR T 55.47 62.22
ITEAT I FART 8.29 4471
e AT o399 275.15 294.73
RRUENCEISERE R 26.92 47.59
foraeft qe1 SAR-=rgT BT 0.00 688.16
3R Ug 3AThE 426.21 331.44
TE F AN 130.00 0.00
I 5157.83 4250.38

* HITHAT 7 B 1T I 1 12.93 FUS T Y AU FTRId TRT Giedtord 2l
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HYHT AT ST 599
) Y it Taftr O ot g o3 <A o & T sufara ufyr - 810.00 @ w
@ e drsEfrasm R aiT:

(¥ Tl H)
™ . 37T qh Tohel H
LIED il Sk AT fharT ST A .
() | Terelt st o fmtoy/sus= 0.00 0.00 0.00
(i) | SHIE (i) & Afaies freft s e @ 1857.29 283.38 2140.66
JRT 1857.29 283.38 2140.66
28 .3 AE (e Tt )
- 31 WT=L, 2021 h THTH | 31 AT, 2020 HT THTH
oY % forar a9 & forr
TEEAT/AET T W Jed SATST 0.00 144.27
T L fe- e wmrem 0.00 117.42
TRT 0.00 261.69
29, Ifd IR =TT
P 31 |T=L, 2021 T THTH | 31 HT=L, 2020 SH THTH
oY o forar oY o forar
v % foRl et =TT 3T 1529819643 2492549819
IR AT ATE 3fed Hea - 3 300000000 300000000
ST <Y AT ST ST - AT 300000000 300000000
T R IS - A 5.10 8.31

i TR 3T - STt 5.10 8.31




i1 2 T A 3. oAt arfarfam, 2013 T SITEE 1 % ATER Afaiw
1. Tfdegars: kS .
i ;. (& AT o)
TSl <2 (A2 ST UeaTteret) o et foper S bt 9 m faramor 2020-21 | 2019-20
GfaeTatt sl Urerehferd TRTEAYE 30879.80 TR €9 z = Ep—
(foset 9 23175.2 19T@ &) R e
2. e A i. THW
(e ST ) i, WO AT
fereor 2020-21 | 2019-20
SR 500 | 300 “";f";m“%“m ST 437.70 | 103842
T HULIET S[eeh 1.00 0.50
IO Yo 045 | 050 AT B -
p—— ot | el geT @ ema 1515
- ST T Y fora T o 0.60 0.30
4. 31T 2021 T G&H, TG AR TEIH ITAT o6 el § A
(393 AT o)
Ecy Teramor 2020-21 2019-20
forelt AT fieRalt sh 31 37a TRT:
T) T M7 28.12
o) WA 13.82
freret fom & STy strgfeismat sht T ol 7T R o @rer & weH, oY o weaw gE o - S
AT, 2006 3T AT 16 % T H WA hT T3 AT hT TRT; ° ©
A A H STaieren foreiar o fore o o o iRt (31t syorer foberm i €, <ifeft o o e
fo & o T forarm T ®), o e, o STk e Suw Tk stferfRm, 2006 % | Fw TR FS Tl
siaiia fAfds sarst &1 s fom:
IUTRSId T Y SE AR FS Tl FS T
Taw, T TR e 3w foehrg AR, 2006 T GRT 23% SfaTid Ferd AT =T &
T H AT I o o1, AT A ATt 1Sl 6T oF 19 U ST i § i Sa afdy, | %o el % TRl
3 Tt e STaT 7ok Foh ST AT 3 ATeiel | T e hi ST e 3t foaT ST 8

HEH, T HeAH IeT H FeIoha AT (F8tT) 3 ATeraor St o UTe Sucisd FeT sl |HT qeh o3 T &)

5.

ATUTET UTH 107 TSES ok Harel H TeheTatur- foftar forerd

5.1 iR foxfa foraa
forefiar forart 1 3Trofia g & 3 wewr St T o
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(31 BT, 2021 =1 T ARG )
TV ATE S | AEHSTE ok wreaw
- U GH hl | AR Ao AeT | AICMACAW | et vl | et sfera
SIuGH w forefts ety | R sty Tl T
ST JEand
T
AYaferd A (E@ed d . 7) - 12,03 414804 | 416007 |  4160.07
Tl o T AT (e 2T E. 13) 3201.44 320144 | 320144
SR T (T AT . 12) 777045 777045 | 777045
T 9 AT (G AT G, 8) 432.12 432,12 432.12
37 forit T gewt AT E, 13 (W v g, 9) 527.99 527.99 527.99
3gT:
I 1 3% § ITH AT (Fed AU H, 169 17) 22807.50 22807.50 | 22807.50
U S (Ha AT . 16) 45870.76 45870.76 | 4587076
T o 9 B (Fe AU, 169 17) 8656.41 865641 |  8656.41
IR 7 (Tey A9 F. 20) 4600.65 4600.65 |  4600.65
31 ferefir <arard (e AW . 17) 1048.32 104832 |  1048.32
(31 =T, 2020 =T TR ARG )
RGN i Ll J—
- FNIEE | meEm sty | asfmgEw | oo | Fesha
Framm | wfda anfeaai | faefa st - T
AT Jgard S

Tt
SAyferd fawT (Hef v g, 7) - - 414804 | 4148.04| 414804
Tehdl J Thal e (H’q’ﬁat{q 13) 9920.80 - - 9920.80 | 9920.80
IR T (T AT E. 12) 4816.59 - 4816.59 | 4816.59
7 9 A0 (G A G, 8) 461.68 - 46168 | 461.68
1= fereffer amfiat weed Sad. 13 (Hef A . 9) 370.54 - 37054 | 370.54
TATT:
I U 2 B 9 A (T AT H. 169 17) 25108.75 - 25108.75 | 25108.75
A S0 (§ed AT H. 16) 45845.69 - 45845.69 | 45845.69
Ul S O W (Fed AT . 167 17) 17804.15 - 17804.15 | 17804.15
IR < (Fey A9 F. 20) 1229.15 - 1229.15 | 1229.15
311 fereftr <orae (Hed 2w . 17) 1377.10 1377.10| 1377.10

5.2. 3fora vea aaTTR

RIECGIEARICERIEE RIRE

T 1 - GHH ST 37701 STt o oI wfohar SIS H g Hed (Femmi)|
T 2 - T 10 WOATT 350 Heai o i 31w faffeat S fo st A a7 &9 9 (374fa qei & & H) (37fd qeal 8 o) AT

[N a N e

T 3 - 3 AT ST AT o o1 STRT, ST STk 1 ST ST (3TeTe ST T AT T &)

frfetfaa |l St gear e ard 75 ST o Saaret 1 3fod qoo TeTH TEd i o
(X9 AT H)
T 31.03.2021 < o T 31.03.2020 < o
TorauT w1 w2 w3 TR o 1 R 2 w3 TR
forcfter et
3G gloare] forerdi H e 4123 | 4123 4123 | 4,123




5.3 forfta sifaw waem

ot iiaw wrRen

st S faferfert g forfier et e shftew, o sifias
F AT SHRGH o 3Tef 2| ot o srerfiyehs e foriter T <6t
STRERAT T eI AT Wef 310 foreitar srawi= ot gereh aivtfer
STfciepet STTalt R o o TR

T) IR ARaw

SIS ST g SReH BielT & foh SISt 7 # ierei o shreor
forfter foradl o wrelt Jeal STe o Sferd 9ed H SAR-=gm
G

U o I SIS SIRGH o &9 § o475 & SIRaH 81 ot o
forefer foreat @ qea Siflaw = 2, Fifeh ot & T 1
et et afea 7 2

TS W ARG

TS & SHRGH g SHREH Bl & fob TSR ohl =31t <X H ferc
o 0T fortr forad o Sfd oot o Wl Fhdt Sae 7 3ar-
TTE T STSTR ST QX1 H e o STRaH T Tl 78 &9
Y I ST & o Wy efpereh ST Al & S[eT & 2

AT Y 2017-18 3T ST H T oich T TSR
T 195 g i 5t wwa 100 fferm st ger &
HTH G 47 Tafcrm st Ster w1 faraett wa o fora 21
T ST & ST & s o fI 250 3TTem 3ieht (sfidfiee)
F TR T AT ISR X wfefera i 71E R

3% AfAh Ho % T S 9 g ¥ AW KT 9 &
STifeH 2, Fifeh e AT I YA HRATT T2 o
THEHIUATR & § SqR-TgTa ¥ =it 21
FTATRA fafer 0, ol o sarsl-saeH1a foxfiar foreat st
ST o TS et fiad

(F ATEY )

31 9Tt 31 91t
2021 2020

feramor

grafer < fer@d

IESIREGLESRI

- et 7 wrafer frar (smm) 7000.00

- YT T 9e= T 425.06 45927

T 2

- S EEEE 45870.76 | 45845.69

iR e e

- I U1E I T 0T 22807.50| 25108.75

8656.41 17804.15

- foreet w37 =80T

oty | Sikaw

ST ST 21 T et SR 37 ATt 3 fershm 3 Sifaw
4 2, foreeh ftorrresrey forfiar a1 gt 21 =ifef shuet =
O HaTST o FTg STt 3T o Hefer | qE Wi b i
T €, FHIA A= forelt 1 +ft ig T 72 foa s 2
T TR 3 IS T SAfashe Sa et 21 ey, et st
TS FERIh/Aeis HaTd & T @ el S SIS G & SAreft
& ofisTeh 1 ST & T TR Yoo, ST Y[oeh Y |
ST o JeROTl HfaTal o e W drg SAfasd Siiaw
1 cel &1 Hehall 2

ST aTe

Ut o T 31 W, 2021 3R 31 °E, 2020 T I STIR
T TR SHAST: 7770.45 AT &9 o 4816.59 ARG €9 2
ST ST HHT-IeT: SR B & A ATEehi & 916 Tsieal §
firerar 21 =ffer Aferepter oo daT v AN SATER W Sl
G Lok & STt 8, 37: SATIT YTei | STTRIShiSTe: Huer et
T T, STt % oI e 7 Y T e 3 i At 2
foranfera swott o for sererT <6t wrefter wedsh g o et fafyr
T T ST R T Ush-Ueh TehTUT o SATET YT STEAT shl STl 2

SRUT FATRIH TATS0T

ST FEHTeR fafdr o ST STt 1 Srafir-am oo i
EEAERIKCIES

CEPASICIR:)
31 W, 2021 31 9T, 2020
s gk | FH | WA | @
T T TR A 359545 -| 279123
T A FA IR | 297 - -
T AT
o T § afer 643.95 -| 116647
e g e T
TE WG Ao T 128349 - 440
ot e, frg
T § 31feren e
T 98 4 S 354433 129974| 215457| 129974
T| 9070.19| 129974 | 6116.67| 1299.74

Teh-Ueh T ST W SATIR JTIHRIT shl 8T o JTae 36
9§ T q ferarT ST 8, ST shut g TR e STt fesgor o6
TR T HIETEE o T H TfeTsrdT 3T 3Tehet s fotdT ST
3o FRIERR FHEial § 9 Uiesal i e ) et
% GTfere qioTy IR SATenfid g 21 et o= aeft foie
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farforart  atefta <At Sear TR &, 7=t | oreT i et €
ot fotar erifeaat

TR F TR TG HSiTer R SHEH shi 0 HHT S &,
Fifeh BAN TTET sieh &1 B 37 Siehi o ATy Frafer (e i arg
ToTer W foreIR 3 €, St st s o e T &
el €, 3T T AR TR W ST Sk Taielt sht Tt it 2|
ST SROT § HeifRrd ST SITREH ol 108 HIHT ST 2, 1ok & A0
3 Eel o e foloiia oh siefeh o §9 H ST 36 alTeH] oh SUSTRR
o W | e 2 €, Forereh forl swor shefentiai =6 fod 1wl €
36 3Afafih, Ut 3 T e i < FEfer iy o fafE
1 AR 21 3aler, 37 fordir st o fore =1l wmarere <hr
TR e ) T Ik T oy Tt shi egertiop fafort
T 3! B TV et 7

HT) aerar SR

TR AT hl SATAIHATHAT HT AT o M AT
TR W Hefleror feram ST 81 3ot o erdl * qed |q
TeRa! I TohE! T, TIETe 8 3ea Ahele

T Jord] YaTE sl R Gefier ek Ud gty kel o Jehdl

HHJH o1 end YT AT ST AT T JeeH Tl

&) foreft +ft sheft =t Frefea o o Tt ST et sTTaaraRaTatt
6T T SIS Tehal | S ST 2l

T ST T T T ST H e & § ol T T
&, S e FeTeR ffdr o STam e freare % wmr s
T 3ca=T B el SATIR TG, S <2, ShH=T ahl oF T,
T T FAHH TG o PIAM S Bl ST F
o STTarvare Bid 2| B 3T BT T STTaTasharat! b g
T o foT Fohel 3 TRt Fededl § TATH e ST T B
T AR AR W efehifcreh qetar STTaveharatl T
TR hLd & TR Afafer Afafg o AT & e Jefeq
A B TART AT SFAT3TT H == 1S 252 o foram T =R,
U SO, e feerd o o foraeft 11 sRor, Sfaemer o7 o
3w a3 &)

frer & T aifereRT -egea ot STl % dfeereren
aftaereraratt & fower & foawor e et 21 arfetent i foxfar
AT o H-TZITA Thal JaTE o STUR I 39 Jemeier fafer
T AR fofaT TR €, TST| o i ohl YT o ol STTarghall
TS Tehd! 2| AR § e o AT Tohdl JaTE 1 |fewferd &

(31 W, 2021 = AT | THE)

faremor 6 T & 6“@?“ 1-3 o 3598 |5add et arr
I U T R/ 1150.62 1150.62 4602.48 4602.48 1130131 | 22807.51
T sk ¥ /0T 4328.25 4328.26 - - 8656.41
FHTTH ST - 8293.34 3757742 | 45870.76
Tfermer e 382.09 11.43 393.52
st e 137.87 387.28 525.15
TR 9T 4600.65 4600.65
3T 3FATT 129.66 - - 129.66
5478.67 | 10728.95 | 13294.53 4602.48 48878.73 | 82983.36
(31 =T, 2020 = TG § TAT)
foraron 6251'!;!?[ 6”“;?@ 13 3-59d 5£§ 3
T IS IE H/T 1150.62 1150.62 4602.48 4602.48 13602.56| 25108.76
T sk ¥ /0T 4467.63 4467.63 8868.90 - - 17804.16
HTTH SIT 8293.34 3755235  45845.69
TfermeT e 350.98 290.18 - 641.16
wfrfa e 260.63 275.97 536.60
TR I 1229.15 - 1229.15
3T 3FATT 199.34 - - - 199.34
5618.25 7658.35| 14037.53| 12895.82 51154.91 91364.86




6. VAT iGT U (33 UTH)- 21 o Herel § Tehe TehiuT
“Torgelt 2T aU  aierd ot T

AT T B o Taawer 7 gt T Tt siaw i ufsr (e
FS el (f.3TE. 688.16 ARG TI) 31=1 AT & Tl

7. WA AET AT (38 TTH)-36 o Haiel | Tehd [ehTuT
“qrfeaat ht erfameaar”

St Safr |, FOT 7§ TE-36 % STER U A

ik s effauredar it arfterm Y } i adam fom af

(foreet - ) o amfcat shr shid afrarear e et arft

2

8. WRAT 1T ATk (3T UUH)-20 o Heier § Tehd [ehTuT
“HTHT ATTH o fTT orErierT 3R TRl Tt
T Tehe [ehTuT”

(¥ @l H)
SREIERIE] 2020-21 2019-20
T AT L

9. WRAT SIET AT (3T UTH)-20 o Heier § Tehd [ehTuT
“THHAT THEATH”

U, ot wdem e SeETent @t s faeRur
frefafaas:

%) wiersy e

st sht wiferey ffer iRr &nftar sifoer ffer s1rreh % are s
T STt 1 et el Feifea et o sifers it o ffera e
BRG]

o) 3Uq:

ST o T Teh TN AT SUSH ANSHT 8| Tedsh iy,
fSre wier o 2 3ud 3ifies Y i o yem i 2, faf,
AT, ST FHTTH, T fohetiTTaT sTeraT 4 T 8alT & T
ol o o forr 15 faem =t 9 (15/26x 3ifm s omH qe
AT o TS W) U ST AT BT 21 36 32T o ford
Tk T8 3T TS TR TTIT 81 318 ST e Sfte sfay Ay
(TATEHT) FRT Jeiferd it 511 & 2, ok ford ot 3
HTEeT diferdt ot 21

39 IISHT 7 forr dior st g R ST @ SR Avem
sfATeRat, STt fo e Sfiar sftar A 8, st 3eh g ot 78 |im
o FTAR A ToRAT ST 8 i @msT e % o 1=

2RI 2T =T S 8 UTH -19 o 3feria 7o 37ty gt <
TSI ol S HIohd Heaie STea o STTHR ST ST 2

) Frafr FeT:

A A T A-HAREE FHAR wE e SR e dng
1 2, o vt e sftn e grar oft wrsifera form st 21

dSfiehd SHHAT o 7t 9 o 12% 1 & § Fem 1 Feee
[ERUEIGIN

e 3 fTT 36 ST 8 FTe i HH= AT o ST 0
affepa fopam e 21 wfafafe o et % e §, g
ARG shT TTOMT HA T3/ R TR o (i o AR ol
STt 2 ST U= TR W AGT-SHET T ST 21

) HIhIIAM:

S, ST o SRS shT AT TR ATH e AT
TR YEH LT 7, S HAT: 30 f& 31 20 f&T W anfien
ST BT 21 SAId STeehreT Bt e ety § aEarEr heiet
T & Ue aR Aferwad 30 fet i stafyr ve fgfy w stfereran
300 e qeh 3 for3 Fereientor I Brar 21

AN SFTHRT T AT SR TATHA F HATER T A
=t 21

. T T T % o, o e AT (FTETTS)
Ta TEUA T 31T Tk TeRtuT | Ar=ran foar wr fafvrer

g uftersich arva RufafrafaRe 2:
CEPASICEIR:)
& IUSH | AT
(Fferem) | (Fferen)

r.ars. | 38625| 377.00
giTiere it etiRea

.9, | 35438| 31572

e s SR | A 98, | 37101 325.20

kSl damE. | 34674 30393
ffores Reerf (s LA, | 1524 51.80
()] o, &, 764| 1179
R s dm | S 1. 0 0
ERIE] . 7. 0 0
71wt @ LA, | 1524 51.80

T/ (GaaT) . 9T, 764 1179
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it Tt STiRea o @ere=
(X9 ATET H)
& IUeE | srEeRtor
(Fferem) | (Fiferen)
i aemy e, | T | 35438 | 31572
e 1 S dr.as. | 27270| 22648
HaE. | 3288 44.20
FAH HT AT
ot oTE. 33.53 16.07
#waE., | 2392 21.31
TS AT
CilcIES 20.88 17.55
T, aTs. 0 0
iy Jeq
ot a1s. (6.61) 0
o I - it wy LA, | (24.94) (4.23)
(™) . a8, 33.89 55.61
it aftemy afreg. | O 918, | 38624 |  377.00
Y 1 FET . ams. | 354.38| 31572
ST 3T | Herer
(BT @Y H)
o IUSH | 3TeehRTI
(Fferem) | (Ffees)
as ¥ yRy W A | HWLAT8 | 34674 |  303.93
Staa w St aed |t a | 25260| 22127
. arg 23.40 20.52
TS AT
bt 98, 22.39 19.63
.
S arg 0 0
o, 8. 79.34 64.04
.
N arg 0 0
bt o8, 6.61) 0
T HTT — ST AT Y. g 0.87 0.76
KIS o, (0.99) (1.01)
a9 ¥ 37q 8 ey onif | HL A | 371.01 325.20
1 3fea 7o fl.as. | 346.74| 303.93

T o g1 3 Feraor ® wrerar & wE wfyr
CEPASECIR:))
IS | FATHIT
foramor
(Ffeem) | (o)
. 32.88 44.20
AT YT ANTT i
ot 9. 33.53 16.08
e Qe nTa- A | ©1LATE 0 0
BNIEE] ot ars. 0 0
. arg 0 0
Fldt AT/
(5FeD) bt . 0 0
. 0 0
Fruem amTa/@mE) T
bt . 0 0
. 32.88 44.20
[T @RI (U) il
o, . 33.53 16.08
e oo @ Y. arg 0.52 0.80
arfed/(siaan) &) | o, . (1.52) (2.08)
ot U Ue (ua) e | SN | 3340 45.00
Ttz ot s, 3201 14.00
gufar faspwor
(31 T, 2021 =T T ARG H)
. IuEH STAHTIT
= A | giEdT
Fftem) | (Ffem)
EFIGS +1.00% 354.28 361.43
-1.00% 423.30 394.06
EREEIF +1.00% 421.83 396.31
-1.00% 352.96 359.05
et =X +1.00% 391.00 378.35
-1.00% 380.88 375.54
(31 BT, 2020 =T TFT ARG )
. IuEH TIAHTIT
= A H aiEdaT
o) | (i)
TSR +1.00% 325.58 303.25
-1.00% 387.92 329.40
I g T +1.00% 386.10 32933
-1.00% 325.68 303.06
TerTeft =X +1.00% 358.57 316.75
-1.00% 349.70 314.59




SHifRes a =
3IuE STIRTIT
fereror
\GIBED) (Fferen)
@t | f |
T gk | e |
_— . are 6.82% 6.82%
ot aTe. 6.75% 6.75%
ot are 5% 5%
AT Ifg
¢ ot o, 5% 5%
AeremRas | @A | 6.82% 6.82%
e R R | TR | 6.75% 6.75%
- HLAE | 1%t03% | 1%to3%
f.9E. | 1%to3% | 1%to3%
. . El'l':?; 60 Years 60 Years
s ilCIES 60 Years 60 Years
9o wfrsT . are 15.52 15.52
e ot =g, 16.05 16.05
. ard | srsuTeH | eTsunen
(2012-14) | (2012-14)
KISED LISEA
qg &t
< ot ars. | HATSUCATH | SATSUUATH
(2006-08) | (2006-08)
arfeteht qTfeteht
.
ot aE, | W Rl BN
FIAAT STTeaat o 9T hr Sroft
TISTHT AT % 3I=a
3T <t goft ceea
oftay gifarfe 100%

10. FRAT TGN A (32)-108 o Ter H Tehd eI
‘g Eg”

O T Y Y U WS- T HaTSl § HH F @ 3B

TR AT T e off 7 21

ot ffeRad Tmesht & T I T 8, ST Tk ot &

ST T 10% AT 399 380k B T UTeehi o Haiel H, ITHhT

SR ARTET huT o T o 10% o A 2

(773 T )
31 9T, 2021 | 319, 2020
TEH I TAHTH IY & | ! THIH 9 6
forar forar

ECE el 10880.62 14990.94
LSCIECilUS] 7264.55 8338.10
FERECO
THHTH TS 1 EIh
3USHH)
TR hie e 9348.27 12023.54
wrgae fafiee
GREIRCIERISE
FECNEC I
CALE SR IECT
ffiee)

11. WA ST ATk 23 o Harel § Tehe [ehiuT “ILURT

“a”

¥ it Tty o g, @a= & Sy fmtomef e ol
T AR AT (HieseaTgdT) T swofla TR & Heiwr #
ISfierd U AT X[ ST (7T Y X[ E4T) 2

12. WA @ W 24 h Hearel § Tehe [eh{uT “He fera

&Y Teheteniur”
T) Wit et Y T
g@uaasﬁwaaﬁs:
aw ag
off G TTefiae, SSuTE., | STere-we-NeY v
oft ot wifem, smeeaReium,, | AmifeRa Fawrh
i T STCATT SR, TifeRd faereh
AT, (STt 04.09.2020)
off .o, g T, THETY, | T feRrh
HEHCEIEEI)
FT T FH I (S RERECHED
(S¥Telt 10.11.2020)
sfereft T sTerTITa, i e
R, (9.5 (st 10.11.2020)
ot T, TR, T (o) W% Hiewatt
sfet STercteHt sftframe et afere
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3T TS
o UHE HATHART U1 ferfues
ft) waifere vert o orer HeaaeR:
TG TS TrHat st Stadfd
(39 AT )
31T, 31 9T, 2020
- R | oy et
[qUTH I9 R
o=
qTieefeR Td oSty 110.95 94.61
gieTy
ERISERE IR TR 18.01 8.61
=T -3t i
HAT-ATUTRA YT
T GUTY iy
EES RIS 2.20
IRT 128.96 103.22
a9 o K0T Y S o A
Tf3r
Y 1 ST Afm Tl
ERUIC R DU RN AR TR L)
I U T
(F9 ARG )
31 |, 2021 | 31 @=L, 2020
\CER) HT TATH W | Rl THTH 99
o forr o forar
FEEEDIE 2394.50 2758.93
T A 2301.25 2301.25
TET ST = 36.04 40.31
TREISHT JeieH TaTd 192.21 47.75
wfafar fer- aer et 1.97 193.76
STUThE VST fohya 0.27
e TRt 18000.00 2500.00
HTHHAR =TI 100.00
P LRI 28.90
= 9.13 49.11
TS 0T 7 3fd I 22807.50 25108.75

13. WRATT TIET ATk (3 TUH) 116 “UgT” & @& o

TeheTehTuT
T, gfaret agt
i) UTTER FETH
o MU [T i BIgHL - TaH qiETer ugi o Haiid
el =AAH T YA
CEPASIEIR:)
;;;:;r 31 |, 2020
feramor T FHTH I§
HHTH 99 %
PO & forx
IELREIGER] 4.84 15.48
1 39 g, fohg 5 a9 9ema 11.47
B
5 a9 g
CEPASIEIR:)
;;::;r 31 9T, 2020
feramor ! THIH I9
THTH 99 &
oy & forx
R T A 15.48 40.55
UZTeRIUT THEATAT:

ST T AR % SuET 3 ford Tiet e ug W forar 21 7
Ut =R Y o ford foram mam R) st 3 9= 9 o @ yifies
forea gt A W 30 a9 o fordr shmrter aiver fomm 2

ii. TZTRR & T H
o F-frrarTa ufaTer gl o Sfavia Areft =as g g
CEPASICIR:)

31 9, 31 9T,

& 2021 Rt 2020 Y
HHTH 99 & | THTH 99

for=r o=
IELREIGER] 3085.49 2421.13
1 o gz, fohg S av wsmd | 17899.18 | 14047.20
EH

598 agTd 88239.65 | 56508.51




o UZTHIUT STTEATY:

T SR ST TR SEET SATER o STEW, FAT il
forehrer, T, famu ud veare w1 R 30 99 o AT/
uftish augiid & a1 reg /At sftenedt deree | s
feam e 21 st o SArerg/afTh qwEid o STTER e
HETTeh!/3ATe G, STANThATel o AT ¥ Ml & fod &
TCRITRT &0 o Sffir &= a1 g 7 e

14. YR @@ UHh (38 UTH)-33 & Hael T Tehiehtun
“-gﬁ-wm(é-qﬁw)”

T) Her gdeE
ST ST HY TOHT | ST fohd ST aTed |TeoT SRl &
AT 31T 7 I it de T 2:
(F93 ARET )
31 |T=r, 2021 |31 AT, 2020
feraor HIGATH TY | I THIH TN
= forx = forr
ay & fote ot (=1), 15298.20 24925.50
T 3 T 9T
ST
T AT T TUATH 15298.20 | 24925.50
I A (T)
el I TR 3T & 300000000 | 300000000
I U IO I Y
it Sfted e (s
YR Ttuw  (u/a)- 5.10 8.31
frpy
oY) srafufsm oo
SFafHTSA SHTE shY TOMT H STh ATEROT R sht HAfSiq 3T
amﬁasﬁwﬁwﬁm@w%
(7 e )
31 |T, 2021 31141:;{
foramor T THTH I9 &6 2020
frx [T a9 &
forar
9 o fore ey (grfr), ot 15298.20 24925.50
& TTTHET IT A
T AT hY TUET § TTH 15298.20 |  24925.50
I ()
Tf TR TR 37l o 32 300000000 | 300000000
T T SR T i Tt
e (3
AU FUTTE (U/af) 5.10 8.31

15. 9T @1 7EE (3T TOH) -37 %k HEd W
TR TeRTUT “YTTET, HTeh (EHh SAATU o TR EHR
TR

AT Ak FaTd

(i) ToraTemE wam:

98.15 @@ &9 I ART (1@ a9 910.74 AT FI) &

foreTared o TehtuT oh! STt TTTRIshTuTT <1< ST %&T 2l

(i) =fey/emafd w:

T afesrrsAl @ FHioyfd STt R o e 7w

HforRTehI  Ho TFHe 10705.37 ARG F (T 3 11308.00

ARG T T 31T L g HoaT 7903 | dfg, e I o a1

TR IS T e, el et et stafer o fordt aferafd, frferr

THI SAT(S T T T R 8| o1 g0 39 216t 0 el ST & e,

FRiToh He{ferd SfraTal o T o STTer 3 I Wi et

Bl Y 37 2Tell o THTEH o ford TfereT o Suersy faare e

T o i S farshedl 0 I T R

(iii) (@) Y HIAIR F T T Wi - vEd

Q‘éﬁﬁ"ﬁﬂﬁ:

FTuet 3 s 2 fiier o fererrar o ford 15.03.2014 Tod erert

TR he 2T Tigae fafids & arer fididt Suwsiendt

fafer 3 ofarta 30 o o for2 wwwsiar fam em

=ROT [ o Tt aTforfsares TRt ST 2017 H T 311 AR
<07 11 3T o7 <t T&T 81 =/ 11 3 Yard= o foeisr 3 s,
At A afiTsR HEIG % STTEY % STTER 29.60 HIS TR
o1 aftfutia afasmmel smifta o feam R1 shoemar gretfa
SRR foare S foram T 3t 39kt Srefier oe gas |
AT ahu1 o g1 | feramerm saferfaoter 8 S W, 3= =
10 S T 7o hT & ITTRT TRT T HT AT foam AR
SHIERIT G FE T ST T &Y 17|

TG H, FRIERR A F® foaTe 381 SR faar=r g &1 e
form qem st sy foamem Aifew feam 1 ewmE. 2020 #r
foramer d=ie % e 3 9YTd, HYEIIT o ST G141 g A
LERINHERICEAEDRIDY

G G T2 T forame 3 ar ot ehfd “=RoT 1 o 11 3% 90
e § faci, free Saer Sfiua % 819 &1 AT T
T 2, "eFfr I TR A T T IS T AT o IH
ST Y 7T 10 SR ShY ot i wi, heftuet g et i
o6 ShIOT ATH




FerchIEell AT TfdaaT 2020-21

ATV ShTTT ok e 7 &1 arT, farfer o ufter, #ifars-19 %
o, SheTUe g forefier et shi Sreafiehr e, Heniferq
TIEISHT ST 31 HAFHIGH T FHAT, S ST o1t 3A7fe &
Tsiferq B, foraeht afmmor 1180.12 e &9 a4 2

AT GRSl Bl Ui SRR T € AR
167.81 IS TG T THRT 1 Tfcrerar foram 21

T a9l foameH =it @ R

&) didiut HYEHER |y e HioErd- wed
THATEATEITA:

FISR 1 fafies 7 “formm &g sk <fiaa & geam
F WS % foRl 11.7.2016 1 76 THIATEIAETA 6 €1
it Sieliuwatel & siqria angiar R am 27 a9 &
it Hafer 20.7.2018 § TR g5 TAMN THATSHIETA *
T AR T aaenstl 9 FioATgal o HROT GRASHT
frerifea feifer ox ot o =meq 1 1 S weht| 36ft sftr, sRorerare
7 TS i ol safsRm @ Aifew frfa form 2
3R piue & 1 fora 2 foF gl wmeia & siaria oo
AR T AT A §E FHIH For ffa ) e 3
22.3.2021 I I SAfEH & FETd TrEEE F SFAq
quTfy g fria o wm ot wfsem e R foe @ =
TuEi] T T SR (TSI % AT
% ST YR 6T TS 2, 381y HUlue 9T 25.3, 4.5V (@),
18.2.3 & 25.6 H 1 fdw & ¥ srggfiam i &faafd &

AT T ARSI SR shT SATRTEor S|
AT (AT JTATIT hT ARII:
(&9 AT o)
feramor 2020-21 | 2019-20
foramezred = | fofg 39 & &9
d e i 6021.35 910.74
Fo % foweg 9@, UR & &7 H
P 400.00 834.60
m?* é/anq\%m 1070537 | 11308.00
T | 11105.37 | 12142.60
iefidt ShereRI o TTer et EfaeT | 118012.00
% foeg T
16. 9 &y srfergie:
ST TS/, Grefey w01 o 311 Uiy, shegd e aray
Sfreedt & frer sTfgfe & wrree & 31 2

17. usﬁwa:r

Y T oSf H 3Tt e geit, wftrenfed sttt ament
T AR A ST AT 8| ol o6 ISt wafer shr srerfives
IT SRR o T i AT FHAT 81 ST ST Git
T TG HIAT 8 qAT SATMF e ol #§ afEdd &
SRR H FHRITS Ll 2l

T SROT-HR 3T T SRINT a8 ST 2l weftarm et
B U-IR U & FT F FA G F I H F AR
AT S eI SITAT 21 J[ 3R0T H Aokl 9 oish 1T TR
drefepiferer 9 sTedshTfor enfat aftnfera et 21 sfeadt &
3Tt TR OSit 7 STrfera et wfiwfaa gt 8, fe8 it
% T 1 Feed TR ST 8| Feisn afy & q § -1
freferfae om:

(7% A W)

TAT31 | FAT31
feramor =T, 2021 | W=, 2020

Ll Ll
i A 7733468 | 8875858
SETERT; Tehal o Tehel GHAed 320144 |  9920.80
T[S R 74133.24 | 78837.78
i grerae 235204.86 | 237906.66
18 3BT 9 Sfeferdt T ST 3152% |  33.14%
18. wIfaE 10 W&

for Tamees WTa (Sscuael) | Hfa 19 % 6N I Hewr
N foha 21 39 W o ROt U STTIET Yefer JTfereror 3
TR SATIET Tefe ST, 2005 o ST o R(chAT bl AR
T TET STIT Q3T T 6ok TR ol Uehel o T TITaIehidl SURT 33T
T AR ATheTaH, TR TAehersd 31 Higd AFIGRIHISA i
Fd ffa frar Ry

T, <feh TRA GHR % T, Tqqieed o ST HATer
(ATNTAK SR + AT 2Eel HAIe s W & forl
e Hatelt et st sTrareaes da afa i o) fohq nt
TreRTe # forcier o &9 # 36T STANET T UST o, SIIETE
YETSAT T TN o FHRT I TE/HRTERHT Z TR g
H H rEmedr off, dT 37 Teh g qUT Ui HETerehl, Ie
STANTRATS! o T&T TARBT shl TEFAT 1 & T 22 AT,
2020 ¥ 3 |3, 2020 (SATRSTSH rafe) it sTafer 7 fmfataa
ST i feferfiad e foet of:

i) St (diauitas) 3 TquiEe ArET st st e or
22 = 2020 H 14 3T, 2020 Tk shT AT o fof2r AT




& Tt R o 1 shet feretar s (et 72 = sfrfiees
TR Hied) T T S|

i) SITeRfceR SATART: TS 19 HEHHY shi Teh Ut STehfdeh SATTaT
& &7 § @ m, o fafir wfaerett & siwta et
1 O T o R STTTIRT ST ST bl T A
SRR < feT| STqHT= Wi o ST JITer a6t 2o 6
T & 3T ST TROTHT o ¢ |iea Wi fofer & foret
GRS Bt foraTaferd ahee am Stwrer STaifer arqr &t )

iii) T ITANTRATSAT HT THR & Be:

T) ORI o SIS It H :3[eeh HSWOT 3 JTATd &
|

oft) o T A, T, ST 2020 o HIRE g1 TSI
3[E 1 1A ohT STIAI 41 8]

oY) SATeheTs 31afe o oh1g 48 T, foreter T, foreter Tam,
AE A I, SRS ook, dHet el TSl (e,
e Helelt Srefd e Fel T T SR e E 30
foam 1 wfdemy s & s

) I R  forr Afifeek ofr & ATefed & Hig
[eoh /ATST e ferm
iv) O PRI S TR A Be:
T)  ANETATE 91 feae I-foret o s st &€ W i A
o SIS TS SHTET SUHSTTE ST o forT o1, W

aff) i AT (3T, WS, ) F o ugu/eTEie o
sAfereamT, 38 €T dek s hotet ay 3refd | sHad
2019 & 31 feumer 2019 d% & Witk 3a T
TG T T H ST ohT SR R TIT )

) SiieReTed STafy | ig THSIE! (JFAH Teanid oiige)
HIREEH]
<) et afy ¥ Yevia Amdet # wHt & forr &g
arefde T
%) T forell STRY/TST/Teeh o STTS SATIR W SAfdfh
WS T 3T
v) TR A o S deeft TR (GfrermE): arder adia
ST shi sfeh Semfel o S o foreg. 60 et oo st
T ST
Hfeh TR STR $EH 3T TARSISA § AT Tttt b
wifed i feam o SR ot = 7 o < qorT H 18 Wfawd wH
T 2T Saifere foham o, it dge Setefrefiv o o gRe=rer
HETE 8l
19. W&t Tl ATITEH AT, T I o Hlehg AU
ERAEORIC R
20. Tt foramor w61 e

forcfter fomor 25 5T, 2021 &t Fewe Hed g SigAifed T fFfq

S T 3 TSl ATEH)/ SIS 1 S| e o Tordl srferera fofe e
R ute ferfues & forg Y. TR UE ST o forg

/- - TAEE ITFREH
e uTeftaTet, ATE.0TE. . wefte BIATTA. 00437100
e HE Yoy ek gq%mq .
fe&1: 01310101 : 07640613 -

mg/_ e S EraTa Tm-réﬂﬁlzc'rﬁrzzonz
o JTH A,

epor ot et e et o e U ¢ 2122011 200EHSABS 54
TYT: o
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Contribution of Oxygen Concentrators to Stanley Medical College & Hospital
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